
Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

 Page 1  
  

 Rathdrum 
                                         City Council Agenda 

                                   July 8, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber          Zoom Conference information will be on 
  8047 W. Main Street        the City Website –  
                       Rathdrum, ID  83858  www.rathdrum.org/councilmeetings 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 
Physically attending the open meeting: The City Council Chambers will be open for the meeting. However, please note 
the following:  
1. Limited Seating will be provided at a minimum distance of 6’ apart in accordance with guidelines.  
2. If you are feeling sick, have been in close contact with someone who has been sick, or are uncomfortable being in 
physical attendance, please use the video conferencing option.  
3. It is recommended those in attendance wear a face mask.   
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT, EX-PARTE CONTACTS 

AND SITE VISITS The declaration and justification of an amendment must be approved by 
motion of the Council.  

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Regular Council Minutes of June 24, 2020 
B) Special Council Minutes of June 30, 2020 
C) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
D) Westwood Pines Development Agreement changes 

 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 



Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

 Page 2  
  

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  
(No formal action allowed – 3-minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

 
9) PUBLIC HEARING 

 
10) NEW BUSINESS 

A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration Supplemental Agreement #1 with David Evans & 
Associates for the Boekel Road-Meyer Road Intersection Project 

B) ACTION ITEM: Willow Creek Preliminary Replat and Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
C) DISCUSSION ITEM: Red Flag positions 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Public Works Reporting  
B) Police Reporting 
C) Park and Recreation Reporting 
D) City Administrator  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 
 



Council 
Calendar 
July 8, 2020 

 
 
 

July 08 6:00 pm Regular Council Meeting 
July 09 10:30 am Senior Center Meeting 
July 09 1:30 pm KMPO - Cancelled 
July 15 6:00 pm Planning and Zoning Commission 
July 16 11:50 am Chamber Luncheon 
July 22 6:00 pm Regular Council Meeting 

   
   
   
   
   



 

 Page 1  
  

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Minutes 
                                   June 24, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber      
  8047 W. Main Street   
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Mayor Holmes.  Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, 

and Councilor Adams  
ABSENT:       
STAFF:                             City Administrator Duce, Deputy City Clerk Morrell, and  City 

Planner Siess, Finance Director Taylor 
 

4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT, EX-PARTE CONTACTS 
AND SITE VISITS The declaration and justification of an amendment must be approved by 
motion of the Council.  

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Regular Council Minutes of June 10, 2020 
B) Regular and Special Bills as presented 



 

 Page 2  
  

C) Consideration of Surplus Laser Jet 4250 Printer and Ithaca Series 150 Receipt Printer 
 
City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the consent calendar 
         
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Consent Calendar as  
presented.  Motion seconded by Councilor Hill. 

      
AYES: Councilor Rickard 

Councilor Hill 
 Councilor Laws 
 Councilor Adams 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT:  

 
            Passed by all 
 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3-minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) PUBLIC HEARING 
 

10) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Code Enforcement Policy 
 
      Administrator Duce went over the City of Rathdrum Policy for Enforcement Action. 
 

The purpose of this Policy is to provide a general overview of the expected practice for 
Code enforcement procedures for the City’s Code Enforcement Officer position, the 
policies and procedures used, and differentiate those Code enforcement actions 
performed by the Rathdrum Police Department (RPD).   

Due to limited resources in the past the City Planning and Zoning Department has not 
“policed” activity within the community which is within the department’s authority to 
maintain and enforce. “Policing” means, for the purposes of this policy, daily monitoring 
of all portions of the City for full compliance with applicable Rathdrum City Code 



 

 Page 3  
  

sections. Rather than such resource-driven activity, the department utilized a terraced 
system with levels of enforcement for efficient and effective prioritization and timely 
responsiveness. This Policy will follow the same basic format. 

This Policy shall serve as a tool for the Code Enforcement Officer in performing  their 
normal duties related to the goal of obtaining compliance. Additionally, the Policy 
provides guidance to general Planning, Building and Public Works staff regarding the 
processing of Code violations. 

 
      Motion was made by Councilor Laws to table the decision for the Code Enforcement   

Policy until the second meeting in July with staff to provide more information on this. 
Motion was seconded by Councilor Hill. 

 
AYES: Councilor Laws 

Councilor Hill 
 Councilor Rickard 
 Councilor Adams 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT:  

 
            Passed by all 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Finance Reporting 
B) City Administrator  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting is adjourned  7:47 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 

 
 



 

 Page 4  
  

Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 
 Rathdrum 

                                  City Council Special Minutes 
                                   June 30, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:  City Council Chamber         
  8047 W. Main Street    
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

      
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER   

 
Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
2) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Mayor Holmes.  Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, 

and Councilor Adams  
      ABSENT:      None       

STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce, Finance Director Taylor & Police Chief 
McLean 

 
3) BUDGET WORKSHOP – ADMINISTRATION – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, WAGES AND 

PROPERTY TAX 
 
City Administrator Duce gave an overview of the proposed FY20-21 revenues.  He then 
went on to show the Council different scenarios if the Council were to decide to take any 
property tax for next year.  Finance Director Taylor discussed the importance of carry over 
in a budget and how we try to use those monies for one-time projects.  Employee wages 
and benefits were discussed by Council.  City Administrator Duce informed the council 
that we had a small increase in our medical insurance premium but that all the other 
benefits were getting a “rate pass” meaning no increase for FY20-21.  City Administrator 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

Duce and Finance Director Taylor went over the proposed administrative expenses for the 
general, water and sewer funds. Council discussion ensued. 

 
4) ADJOURN 

Meeting adjourned at 8:48 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________________ 

                                                             Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



























Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 20 

EXHIBIT B 

WESTWOOD PINES SUBDIVISION 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 



r:\public works\projects - capital improvements\roads & intersections\boekel & meyer intersection\memo kj-cc - dea supplement #1 - 6.29.2020.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  6.29.2020 

Re:  Boekel / Meyer Intersection Improvement Project 

The Boekel / Meyer Intersection Improvement project has been on-hold for several 
months – awaiting funding allocation pertaining to engineering/design modifications. 

As background information, the intersection project is being “shifted” to the northeast 
to avoid the costly relocation of Avista’s overhead transmission lines. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



Memo KJ-CC - DEA Supplement #1 - 6.29.2020.docx 6/29/2020  Page 2 

 

 

Please find attached the supplemental agreement, which totals $ 453,466.  This is a 
federal-aid project which is being administered by LHTAC. Please note that this 
project has received federal aid, and the City's match for project expenses is 7.34%. 

The City of Rathdrum will be utilizing Circulation (Roads) Impact Fees to fund this 
project.   





Scope of Work 

Final Design, and PS&E – Intersection Shift 
 

Prepared for 

City of Rathdrum - Public Works Department, 

Kootenai County, Idaho 

 
for administration by the  

Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 
 

 

 

STC-5791, Int. Meyer Rd. & Boekel Rd. 
Rathdrum, Idaho 
A013(864), KN 13864 
 

March 31, 2020 

 

 

 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, i 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

Table of Contents 

Scope of Work ............................................................................................................................ 1 

Final Design, and PS&E – Intersection Shift ............................................................................... 1 

Supplemental Description ........................................................................................................... 1 

 Project Management .................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Set up hard copy and Electronic Files ........................................................................................................ 2 

1.2 Prepare Project Schedule ............................................................................................................................ 2 

1.3 Project Team Meetings............................................................................................................................... 2 

1.4 Progress Reports and Invoicing ................................................................................................................... 2 

 Environmental & Cultural Clearance Coordination ..................................................... 2 

3.9 Environmental Re-Evaluation ................................................................................................................... 2 

 Right-of-Way Acquisition Documents ......................................................................... 2 

7.1 Update and Review Title Reports and Supporting Information ................................................................... 2 

7.2 Develop Right-of-Way Plans ..................................................................................................................... 3 

7.3 Prepare Legal Descriptions ........................................................................................................................ 4 

 Final Design................................................................................................................ 6 

9.1 Final Roadway Design .............................................................................................................................. 6 

9.2 ESC/SWPP Plans ................................................................................................................................. 8 

9.3 Final Drainage Design.............................................................................................................................. 8 

9.4 Calculate Roadway Quantities ................................................................................................................... 8 

9.5 Summarize Quantities (3 sheets) ............................................................................................................... 9 

9.6 Update Project Proposal ............................................................................................................................ 9 

9.7 Update Contract Time Determination ....................................................................................................... 9 

9.8 Prepare Construction Cost Estimate .......................................................................................................... 9 

9.9 QC Review of the Final Design Review Submittal ..................................................................................... 9 

9.10 Submit Final Design for Review ................................................................................................................ 9 

9.11 Final Owner Contact Meetings ................................................................................................................ 12 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, ii 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

9.12 Final Design Review Meeting .................................................................................................................. 12 

 PS&E Preparation and Submittal .............................................................................. 12 

10.1 Prepare PS&E Package ......................................................................................................................... 12 

10.2 Submit Resident Engineer Files ............................................................................................................... 13 

10.3 Bid Assistance ........................................................................................................................................ 14 

 Additional Services ................................................................................................... 14 

11.1 Public Hearing/Engagement ................................................................................................................... 14 

11.2 Coordination with Avista ........................................................................................................................ 14 

  

 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 1 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

Supplemental Description 

During design development, Avista utilities presented a relocation cost and easement information for their 
power facilities in the intersection area.  This information was contrary to the budget assumptions made in 
the original scope of work (that there would be no utility agreements).  As a result of ongoing conversations 
with Avista to further understand their facilities and constraints, it was decided to shift the roundabout to a 
location north and east of what was shown in the March 2019 Final Design Submittal.  The shifting of the 
roundabout will preserve much of Avista’s easement on the west side of Meyer Road, allowing for the utility 
to place poles located within the City’s R/W in their (Avista’s) current easement.  With this action, Avista has 
agreed to pay for 100% of the transmission relocation costs.  There will be some costs to the project for 
Avista’s distribution line relocation (~$75k).   

This supplemental includes the redesign associated with shifting the roundabout.  Tasks included in this 
supplemental are detailed below.   

Schedule 

The updated delivery schedule for the Meyer and Boekel Road Intersection project is as follows: 

 Notice to Proceed – March 2020 

 Right-of-Way Plan Submittal – June 2020 

 Final Design – September 2020 

 PS&E Delivery – December 2020 

General Project Assumptions 

In addition to the assumption outlined in the original contract, this supplemental includes the following 
assumptions in this scope of services: 

 The project design will progress to Final Design and PS&E Submittals.  Preliminary Design and Design 
Approval will stay the same.  

 Right-of-Way plans will be modified for the new intersection location. 

 A minor environmental re-evaluation will be required (ITD Form) 

 Project Management  

The project will be extended as a result of this supplemental, requiring additional project management.  The 
previous supplemental extended the project to September 2019.  The project schedule will extend 15 months 
to December 2020.  Project management tasks have been scoped and estimated based upon a 15-month 
duration for this project agreement.   

Scope of Work 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 2 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

1.1 Set up hard copy and Electronic Files 

DEA will update the project’s financial files. 

1.2 Prepare Project Schedule 

DEA will update the project and maintain the schedule for the contract duration.   

1.3 Project Team Meetings  

DEA staff attendance at normal project team meetings will be covered under this task.  DEA will facilitate 
regular project team meetings.  Team meetings (five (5)) will last approximately sixty (60) minutes and be held 
at the DEA Coeur d’Alene office and by conference call and will be held every other month.  Agendas and 
Minutes will be prepared for the meetings.  Four (4) DEA staff members (Project Manager, Transportation 
Engineer, Traffic Engineer, and Survey Task Leader) will be in attendance.   

1.4 Progress Reports and Invoicing 

DEA will provide monthly invoices and monthly progress reports (ITD-771 Form) in accordance with ITD 
standard procedure.  Each invoice package will include the DEA invoice showing all labor and direct expenses 
included for the period, a copy of each PSA showing the amount of the PSA and the charges to date against 
that PSA, the monthly progress report, and full documentation of labor hours and direct expenses charged 
for the period for DEA and each subconsultant.  A total of ten (10) invoices will be submitted as part of the 
contract including one for the month after all deliverables are complete.  

 Environmental & Cultural Clearance Coordination 

3.9 Environmental Re-Evaluation 

DEA will prepare the ITD Form 674 Environmental Re-Evaluation as the project PS&E will be beyond 6 
months since the original environmental documents approval. 

 Right-of-Way Acquisition Documents 

DEA will update and prepare right-of way plans and legal descriptions to acquire necessary right-of-way. 

Assumption 

 The City of Rathdrum will be responsible for hiring a consultant that will provide an ITD approved 
appraisal and acquisition services to support the City in purchasing the right-of-way. 

 LHTAC will approve the Official Right-of-Way Plans. 
 ITD HQ Right-of-Way agent will approve the acquisitions. 

7.1 Update and Review Title Reports and Supporting Information 

DEA will: 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 3 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

7.1.1 Obtain Date Downs (existing title report updates) and Review any Supporting Title 

Information 

DEA will obtain and review date down or existing title report updates originally ordered and review to locate 
any updated encumbrances to the newly affected areas determined by design to be impacted.   Additional 
supporting documents will be acquired and reviewed as needed to determine boundaries not originally 
identified in the initial boundary calculations.   

Assumption 

 DEA will obtain and review up to 4 date down (updated) existing title reports from a local title 
company. 

 Approximately 10 supporting title documents will be obtained, reviewed, and used in right-of-way 
resolution. 

 DEA will coordinate obtaining supporting documents directly with the title company. 

7.1.2 Coordinate with the Title Company to Clarify the Integrity of Title Information 

No changes are included in this scope. 

7.1.3 Incorporate Pertinent Land Title Findings into the Total Ownership Map  

No changes are included in this scope. 

7.2 Develop Right-of-Way Plans 

DEA will develop the Total Ownership Map and Right-of-Way (ROW) Plans based on the right-of-way need 
lines. The project team has tentatively identified 4 acquisition parcels affected by the project from 4 property 
ownerships. The project team will prepare the Total Ownership Map and ROW Plans in accordance with ITD 
Right of Way standards. The project team will: 

7.2.1 Incorporate Section Lines, Parcel Lines and Right-of-Way Lines into the Total Ownership 

Map 

No changes are included in the SOW. 

7.2.2 Prepare InRoads© Alignment Files for each Acquisition Parcel (estimated at 4) 

InRoads alignment files will be updated for each acquisition parcel. This will assist in determination of parcel 
area, closure checks, and in writing legal descriptions. 

7.2.3 Prepare Total Ownership Map (1 sheet) 

The Total Ownership Map will be updated and an electronic Total Ownership Map will be prepared as part 
of the Official Right-of-Way Plans. 

7.2.4 Prepare the Right-of-Way Plan Sheets  

DEA will incorporate the control, monument preservation, right-of-way/ boundary survey, the topographic 
survey and the ownership map and prepare the Right-of-Way Plan sheets to support project acquisition 
activities. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 4 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

7.2.5 Submit Review Copy of the Total Ownership Map and ROW Plans  

DEA will develop a submittal package including of the Survey Control sheets, the Total Ownership Map, and 
the Right-of-way Plan set for review and comment to the City of Rathdrum and LHTAC.  This will be an 
electronic pdf submittal. 

7.2.6 Attend Right-of-Way Plans Review Meeting  

The meeting will be a conference call and will include representatives from the City of Rathdrum, and the 
LHTAC ROW reviewer (either LHTAC staff or a ROW review LHTAC consultant). The purpose of this 
meeting is to discuss comments on the ROW submittal and to clarify how best to address review comments.   

7.2.7 Revise the Total Ownership Map and the ROW Plans to Address Comments 

Review comments obtained from the review meeting will be addressed on the plans and updated ROW Plans 
Essential Checklists will be prepared. 

7.2.8 Submit Final Total Ownership Map and ROW Plans  

A final submittal package consisting of the revised Total Ownership Map and ROW plans discussed in the 
tasks above will be submitted to City of Rathdrum and LHTAC for approval. 

Assumptions 

 Existing road right-of-way and parcel lines have been developed and established in boundary survey 
performed in accordance with previous tasks. 

 Two (2) sets of the deliverables will also be necessary for the project design team. 

Deliverables 

 Draft and Final Total Ownership Map  
 Draft and Final Right-of-Way Plans  
 ITD ROW Plans Essentials checklists for the Total Ownership Map Sheet and for each Right-of-Way 

Plan Sheet. 

7.3 Prepare Legal Descriptions 

The project team will develop and submit stamped legal descriptions for each acquisition parcel. The 
descriptions will conform to ITD standards. DEA will: 

7.3.1 Prepare Legal Descriptions for Each Acquisition Parcel (estimated at 4 legal descriptions) 

DEA will use the MicroStation alignment files prepared in previous tasks to assist in preparing legal 
descriptions.  Legal descriptions for up to 4 acquisition parcels will be prepared along with the ITD’s Legal 
Description Essentials checklist for each description. 

7.3.2 Submit Legal Description Package for Review 

DEA will provide review copies of the legal descriptions and checklists for each acquisition parcel to City of 
Rathdrum and LHTAC for review. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 5 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

7.3.3 Revise Legal Descriptions per Review Comments 

DEA will revise the legal descriptions to address review comments. 

7.3.4 Submit Final Signed and Sealed Legal Descriptions for Acquisition Parcels (estimated 4 

legal descriptions) 

DEA will resubmit the legal descriptions and checklists for each acquisition parcel to City of Rathdrum and 
LHTAC for final review and approval. 

7.3.5 Calculate Acquisition Parcel Corner and Points-on-line Coordinates (estimated at 4 

acquisition parcels) 

DEA will prepare a survey for field-staking the parcels. This will include right-of-way angle points and 
sufficient points along the right-of-way lines to define acquisition areas. 

7.3.6 Stake ROW Acquisition Areas 

DEA will anticipate setting newly anticipated staking points based on the changes of the acquisition areas and 
set inter-visible lath along proposed right-of-way lines, angle points, and proposed permanent easement lines 
(estimated at 4 acquisition parcels) to support negotiation activities.  

7.3.7 Coordinate with Acquisition Team and Answer Survey Acquisition Staking Questions 

DEA will coordinate with the acquisition team and answer questions and clarify information related to the 
survey stakes as necessary during acquisition activities. 

7.3.8 Prepare a Record of Survey 

DEA recognizes State Law requires monuments to be set and a record of survey to be filed to perform the 
survey tasks stated above.  DEA will prepare a record of survey to be filed in the Kootenai County Courthouse 
showing information relevant to the boundary surveying, new right-of-way and the definition of the 
acquisition parcels. 

7.3.9 Review Record of Survey 

DEA will perform a review of the Record of Survey by the Project Surveyor and the Survey Manager.  DEA 
will also submit to ITD for review and discussion as well. 

7.3.10 Verification of Research and Monument   

DEA will need to revisit each monument and verify there are no changes in record documents before filing a 
post construction Record of Survey. 

7.3.11 Set Monuments 

DEA will set monuments along the new right-of-way and at every ownership sideline intersection of the new 
right-of-way per Idaho State Code.  These monuments will be set per Idaho Code.  

Assumptions 

 Up to 4 legal descriptions will be required. 
 Up to 4 acquisition parcels will be staked one time to assist with ROW negotiations. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 6 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

Deliverables 

 Final signed and sealed legal descriptions in electronic and hard copy format. 
 ITD’s Legal Description Essentials checklist for each legal description 
 Electronic pdf of the legal descriptions for the initial submittal. 
 Three (3) copies of the legal descriptions for the final submittal. 

 Final Design 

9.1 Final Roadway Design 

DEA will develop the final roadway design including roadway section and special details.  This task includes 
preparing final plan and profile sheets, special detail sheets and identifying appropriate bid items.  The plans 
will be organized in accordance with ITD Design Guidelines.  The original roundabout was designed with a 
circular truck apron, with the shift, the new roundabout will have an elongated truck apron, requiring 
additional effort. 

9.1.1 Roundabout Geometric Design and Modeling 

DEA will utilize and develop the following items for detailed design line work and a finished model on the 
roundabout: 

 Approach design speeds for all approach legs  
 The design vehicle used for each leg  
 Table summarizing the roundabout design details, including inscribed diameter, central island 

diameter, truck apron width, and cross slope of the circulating roadway  
 Drawing showing the fastest path for each movement, with speed and radius for each curve 
 Autoturn paths showing design vehicle and largest oversize vehicle movements 
 Detailed design of the splitter islands on each leg of the roundabout 
 Central island design 
 Bike and pedestrian design, including ADA requirements 

9.1.2 Final Title Sheet (1 sheet) 

DEA will update the Title Sheet for the Final Design Package. 

9.1.3 Final Legend Sheet (1 sheets) 

DEA will finalize the legend sheet 

9.1.4 Final Total Ownership Map (1 sheet) 

DEA will finalize the Total Ownership Map reflecting the information in the R/W Plans that have already 
been issued.  

9.1.5 Final Survey Control and Found Monuments (3 sheets) 

DEA will finalize the survey control and found monuments previously prepared. 

9.1.6 Project Clearance Summary Sheet (1 sheet)  

DEA will update the project clearance summary sheets based on the current project status.   



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 7 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

9.1.7 Final Typical Sections (3 sheets)  

DEA will finalize the typical sections that were developed as part of the previous Final Design submittal.  
DEA will make adjustments to the typical sections based on comments and changes to the design. 

9.1.8 Final Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets (13 sheets) 

The Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets that were developed as part of the previous Final Design submittal will 
be finalized.  This will include change in sheet match lines, begin and end of construction, and calling out final 
roadside design elements including curb/gutter and bid items to prepare the plans for construction.  This task 
also includes preparing cross sections of the roadway at 50-ft stations (25-ft stations on curves).  Plan 
development is assumed at 10hrs/sheet. 

9.1.9 Final Roundabout Layout and Grading Sheets (4 sheets) 

DEA will update and finalize the roundabout layout and grading sheets.  These sheets will show a detailed 
intersection grading and layout sufficient for construction staking.  Intersection grading will take into 
consideration ADA pedestrian ramp grading requirements.  

9.1.10 Final Roadway Detail Sheets (3 sheets) 

The requirement for special details will occur during the development of the roadway plans.  These details 
may depict special drainage issues, special fill slope details, small retaining walls, or other miscellaneous details 
that become necessary during the development of the plan set. 

9.1.11 Final Approach Plan and Profile Sheets (2 sheets) 

DEA will update and finalize plan and profile sheets for private approaches.   

9.1.12 Final Signing and Pavement Marking Plans (5 sheets) 

DEA will update and finalize Signing and Pavement Marking Plans that will depict the pavement markings 
and signs that will be specified for the project.  We will depict roadway lane configurations and pavement 
marking symbols where applicable.   

9.1.13 Final Sign Erection Specifications and Sign Detail Sheets (3 sheets)  

Signing Erection Specifications and Sign Detail Sheets will be updated.   

9.1.14 Final Construction Traffic Control and Staging Plans (4 sheets) 

DEA will update and finalize the traffic control and staging plans in accordance with MUTCD and ITD 
standards as appropriate.  The staging will be substantially different than what was previously proposed.  Much 
of the northbound can be constructed off alignment, assisting with the construction staging.  

9.1.15 Final Utility Plans and Details (5 sheets) 

DEA will prepare Final Utility Plans based on decisions made with the City and the utility companies.  The 
Utility Plans will be modified to accurately depict agreed upon utility revisions and relocations and will be 
routed to the utility companies for review and comment.  Final Utility Plans will be prepared in color.   

It is anticipated that a City waterline and hydrant are located within the impact limits of the project.  Any 
adjustments to the waterline will be shown on the utility plans as relocated by the City.  An additional detail 
sheet for the water utility is included. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 8 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

Luminary locations shown on the signing and pavement marking plans will also be shown on the utility sheets 
to be installed by utility at utility expense.  Conduit and junction boxes will also be shown and will be paid for 
under a special bid item. 

9.1.16 Coordinate the Execution of Utility Hearing Waivers and Agreement with Avista 

DEA will prepare Utility Hearing Waivers (six (6) anticipated) and coordinate execution of the waivers with 
the utility companies.  A utility agreement with Avista is anticipated.  Additional time is included here for 
extended coordination with Avista. 

9.2 ESC/SWPP Plans  

DEA will update the temporary ESC/SWPP plan to control stormwater runoff and offsite siltation or damage 
resulting from construction activities.  The plan will outline Best Management Practices (BMP’s) which may 
include silt fencing, wattles, seeding, mulching and other items and also show pertinent details.  A Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plan and narrative for the NPDES permit will be developed by ITD with 
assistance by DEA. 

9.2.1 Temporary and Permanent ESC/SWPP Plans (6 Sheets) 

DEA will update and finalize the ESC/SWPP Temporary and Permanent Plans along with a detail sheet in 
accordance with ITD Standards. 

9.2.2 ESC/SWPP Narrative 

ITD will update the ESC/SWPP Narrative for the project with supporting information provided by DEA. 

Assumptions 

 This task does not include the development and filing of a “Notice of Intent” required by a NPDES 
permit.  This will be completed by others. 

9.3 Final Drainage Design 

DEA will update the preliminary drainage design basins and calculations as needed to account for updates 
made to the roadway design.  These updates will be shown in the final design plans.  

9.3.1 Drainage Design Update 

DEA will update the drainage design and calculations.   

9.3.2 Final Drainage Details (1 sheet) 

DEA will update and finalize drainage details for culverts at approaches and roadside ditches/swales. 

9.4 Calculate Roadway Quantities 

DEA will calculate roadway section material quantities from the Phase Materials Reports and Final Design 
for inclusion in the roadway summary and project clearance sheets. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 9 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

9.5 Summarize Quantities (3 sheets) 

DEA will identify bid items and calculate quantities for identification in the appropriate plan summary sheets. 
This will include the following Summary Sheets: 

9.5.1 Project Roadway Summary (2 sheets) 

DEA will prepare the Roadway Summary necessary to report bid quantities related to the roadway. 

9.5.2 Pipe Culvert Summary (1 sheet) 

DEA will prepare a Pipe Culvert Summary as necessary to support drainage facility design. 

9.6 Update Project Proposal 

DEA will update the project special provisions to the ITD Standard Specifications for the contract documents 
which will also include, if necessary, revisions to SSPs and SPs as well as contractor notes.  This will also 
include Special Provisions that are developed as part of the Phase V Materials Report or other Special 
Provisions that may be necessary for the project.   

9.7 Update Contract Time Determination 

DEA will update the contract construction time in accordance with ITD standards.  A Microsoft Project 
construction schedule will be included in this task and be submitted with the Final Design Review package. 

Assumptions 

 The electronic construction schedule will be subject to change based on information provided by the 
successful bidder.  The schedule is provided for planning purposes only. 

9.8 Prepare Construction Cost Estimate 

DEA will prepare a construction cost estimate for bid items using the Cost Estimator estimating software and 
current ITD Average Unit Price Report data.  Cost estimates at 100 percent plan development will be 
completed and submitted for ITD review.  The cost estimate will have an appropriate contingency for a Final 
Design Cost Estimate. 

9.9 QC Review of the Final Design Review Submittal  

A detailed review of the Final Design Review Package will be completed by DEA Senior Transportation 
Engineers not involved in developing the project design prior to Submittal.  QC Review comments will be 
addressed prior to submittal to LHTAC.  Provide LHTAC with a QC Cover/Checklist with the submittal as 
evidence that a QC review as performed. 

9.10 Submit Final Design for Review 

DEA will prepare the final design plans, special provisions, and construction cost estimate and submit for 
ITD review.  DEA will also submit the Final Design Checklists with this submittal. 

The submittal package for Final Design Review will be developed by DEA and will include for ITD review: 

 Project Proposal 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 10 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

 Construction Time Determination 

 ITD’s “Cost Estimator” Project Construction Cost Estimate  

 Project cross section at 50 foot intervals (25 foot intervals on curves) 

 The Final Design Plans as described above and as summarized below: 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 11 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

Scope Item Description Sheets 

Final  Final 

9.1.2 Final Title Sheet (1 sheet) 1 

9.1.3 Final Legend Sheet (1 sheet) 1 

9.1.4 Final Total Ownership Map (1 sheet) 1 

9.1.5 Final Survey Control and Found Monuments (3 sheets) 3 

9.1.6 Project Clearance Summary Sheet (1 sheet) 1 

9.1.7 Final Typical Sections (3 sheets) 3 

9.1.8 Final Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets (13 sheets) 13 

9.1.9 Final Roundabout Layout and Grading Sheets (4 sheets) 4 

9.1.10 Final Roadway Detail Sheets (3 sheets) 3 

9.1.11 Final Approach Plan and Profile Sheets (2 sheet) 2 

9.1.12 Final Signing and Pavement Marking Plans (5 sheets) 5 

9.1.13 Final Sign Erection Specifications and Sign Detail Sheets 3 

9.1.14 Final Construction Traffic Control and Staging Plans (4 sheets) 4 

9.1.15 Final Utility Plans (5 sheets) 5 

9.2.1 Temporary and Permanent ESC/SWPP Plans (6 Sheets) 6 

9.3.2 Final Drainage Details (1 sheet) 1 

9.3 Summarize Quantities (3 sheets) 3 

Sheet Totals 59 

 

 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 12 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

9.11 Final Owner Contact Meetings 

A final owner contact meeting will be attended by one staff member from DEA for up to 5 owner contact 
meetings accompanying a representative from the City of Rathdrum. The purpose of the meetings is to show 
the final design drawings related to the owner properties and make any adjustments from comments or R/W 
acquisition negotiations prior to the PS&E submittal. 

9.12 Final Design Review Meeting 

DEA will attend the Final Design Review meeting with City and LHTAC staff.  DEA will also prepare meeting 
minutes and distribute to the appropriate recipients by email.  Prior to the meeting, DEA will assemble the 
comments received in a comment response form.  The team will address the comments and identify comments 
that require further discussion at the preliminary design review meeting.  The compiled comment form will 
be provided to attendees at the Final Design Review meeting and the final design review comment form will 
be included in the PS&E submittal. 

Assumptions 

 The final design review meeting will last approximately four (4) hours excluding travel 

 The final design review meeting will take place at the City of Rathdrum or DEA’s CDA office. 

 Four (4) DEA staff members (Project Manager, Design Manager, Traffic Engineer, and Senior 
Transportation Designer) will attend the final design review meeting. 

 There will be one Final Design Review Meeting 

Deliverables 

 Final design review package 

 PS&E Preparation and Submittal  

10.1 Prepare PS&E Package 

DEA will revise the Final Design plans, special provisions, cost estimate, and associated materials to address 
Final Design Review comments. 

10.1.1 Revise Plans for PS&E Package 

Final Design Review comments will be addressed, details will be revised, traffic control, drainage, fencing, etc. 
will be accomplished.  Required revisions, received by e-mail or phone, from LHTAC prior to the PS&E 
Submittal will be incorporated.   

10.1.2 Prepare Final Proposal  

Referring to the latest ITD Standard Specifications for Highway Construction and current Supplemental 
Specifications, DEA will make revisions to the Special Provisions and other elements of the project’s Proposal. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 13 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

10.1.3 Finalize the Detailed Engineer’s Estimate  

Final revisions will be made to the project’s cost estimate to reflect comments obtained during Final Design 
Review. 

10.1.4 Finalize the Construction Time Determination CPD 

Final revisions will be made to the project’s Construction Time Determination CPD to reflect comments 
obtained during Final Design Review. 

10.1.5 QC review of the Plans, Specifications, and Estimates 

A detailed review of the PS&E Submittal Package will be completed by a senior-level designer not involved 
in developing the project design prior to the PS&E Submittal.  QC Review comments will be addressed prior 
to submittal. 

included in the Final Design Submittal.  The ITD PES Spreadsheet will also be prepared and submitted. 

10.1.6 Assemble Final PS&E Package and Submit 

DEA will assemble the above described Final Plans, Specifications, Estimate, Checklists, Cost Estimate, and 
Construction Time Determination CPD estimate components.  The Final PS&E Package will be submitted 
for review and advertisement. 

Deliverables 

 Cost Estimate 

 Electronic version of the CPM Schedule for Construction Duration  

 Proposal Package including Specifications and Special Provisions in MS Word 

 Final PS&E package will be printed on 11” x 17” paper with engineer seal. 

10.2 Submit Resident Engineer Files 

DEA will prepare and transmit the Resident Engineer package.  The package will be prepared in an easy to 
reference notebook and include the applicable items listed in ITD’s Design Manual, Section 920.04.  The 
Resident Engineer’s File will include developing the following: 

This includes compiling Design Approval signature sheets, field survey data and information, environmental 
permits and approvals, project contact information, utility waivers and/or agreements, Public Involvement 
Summary, and project CADD Files. 



 

STC-5791, INT Meyer Rd & Boekel Rd, Rathdrum, 14 
Project No. A013(864), KN 13864 

10.2.1 Cross Sections at 50-foot stations (25-foot stations on curves) 

10.2.2 Grade Books for the project 

10.2.3 Roadway Quantity Worksheets  

10.2.4 Compiled Project Information 

10.3 Bid Assistance 

DEA will be available to answer questions and to assist LHTAC/ITD during the advertising and bidding 
process.  This task assumes that up to 16 hours will be required for bidding assistance. 

Deliverables 

 Final PS&E package (hard copy and electronic) 

 Resident Engineer File Package (hard copy and electronic versions) 

 Additional Services 

11.1 Public Hearing/Engagement 

At the direction of LHTAC/City, DEA may be authorized through additional services to perform public 
outreach and engagement necessary to bring the general public and City Council current on the project status 
and changes. 

11.2 Coordination with Avista 

The supplemental has scope and time for coordination with Avista.  Should coordination be found to exceed 
what was scoped, LHTAC/City may direct DEA to perform coordination with Avista under the additional 
services task. 

 

 



CONSULTANT NAME:

PROJECT NAME:

PROJECT NUMBER:

KEY NUMBER:

A.  SUMMARY ESTIMATED LABOR COSTS

Days Hours Hourly Rate Raw Labor Cost

1 Project Manager 18.38 = 147.00 @ $70.32 = $10,337.04

2 Prencipal-in-Charge/Quality Manager 1.50 = 12.00 @ $81.14 = $973.68

3 Transportation Engineer Task Lead 15.50 = 124.00 @ $51.10 = $6,336.40

4 Senior Transportation Designer 41.00 = 328.00 @ $49.26 = $16,157.28

5 Traffic Engineering Task Lead 4.50 = 36.00 @ $57.20 = $2,059.20

6 Traffic Engineer and Utility Coordination 2.63 = 21.00 @ $44.50 = $934.50

7 Traffic Analyst/Designer 6.88 = 55.00 @ $42.80 = $2,354.00

8 Survey Task Lead 4.00 = 32.00 @ $49.00 = $1,568.00

9 Survey Quality Control 1.88 = 15.00 @ $73.00 = $1,095.00

10 Office Survey Technician 9.63 = 77.00 @ $39.25 = $3,022.25

11 Party Chief 2.50 = 20.00 @ $34.50 = $690.00

12 Field Survey Technician 0.00 = 0.00 @ $31.00 = $0.00

13 Senior Environmental Planner 1.13 = 9.00 @ $55.00 = $495.00

14 Senior Scientist 0.00 = 0.00 @ $49.50 = $0.00

15 Project Administrator 0.75 = 6.00 @ $29.34 = $176.04

16 Project Accountant 1.50 = 12.00 @ $35.52 = $426.24

17 GIS Analyst 0.00 = 0.00 @ $42.80 = $0.00

Total Hours = 894.00

TOTAL RAW LABOR COST = $46,624.63

B.  PAYROLL, FRINGE BENEFIT COSTS & OVERHEAD

Total Raw Labor Cost Approved Overhead Rate

$46,624.63 X 174.55% = $81,383.29

FCCM

$46,624.63 X 0.45% = $209.81

C.  NET FEE

Total Raw Labor & Overhead Net Fee

$128,007.92 X 12.00% = $15,360.95

SUBTOTAL LABOR COSTS = $143,578.68

D.  OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES SUMMARY*

Expense

Estimated 

Amount Unit Unit Cost

Estimated 

Expense

1 Mileage 500 (Miles) 0.575$            287.50$             

2 Meals and Incidentals (CDA) (Days) 61.00$            -$                   

3 Print/Copy by Vendor
(B&W) (EA) 0.07$              -$                   

4 Print/Copy by Vendor (Color) (EA) 1.00$              -$                   

5 Conference Calls by Vendor (EA) 35.00$            -$                   

6 Static Laser Scanner (Lump Sum) 520.00$          -$                   

7 Concrete to set Monuments (Lump Sum) 50.00$            -$                   

8 Monument Stamping by Vendor (Lump Sum) 500.00$          -$                   

9 Record of Survey Recording Fees (Lump Sum) 10.00$            -$                   

10 Title Reports (EA) 250.00$          -$                   

11 Miscellaneous Office Expenses 250 (Dollars) 1.00$              250.00$             

12 Express Mailings 2 (EA) 25.00$            50.00$               

13 Traffic Counts by Vendor (Lump Sum) 400.00$          -$                   

DEA TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENSES = $587.50

E.  ADDITIONAL SERVICES (4% OF TOTAL) $144,166.18 X 4% = $5,766.65

TOTAL = $149,933
F.  SUBCONSULTANTS***

1 GeoEngineers =

Subconsultant Subtotal = $0.00

TOTAL = $149,933

David Evans & Associates, Inc.

June 26, 2020

STC-5791, Int. Meyer Road & Boekel Road

A013(864)

13864



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 1 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 FOR 

WESTWOOD PINES SUBDIVISION 

THE CITY OF RATHDRUM, hereinafter the "City", a municipal corporation of the state 
of Idaho, 8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858, and  Viking Construction, Inc., an 
Idaho Corporation, 2605 W Hayden Avenue, Hayden, ID 83835 and Viking Construction, 
Inc., a Washington Corporation, 19425 E Broadway Avenue, Spokane Valley, WA 99016, 
hereinafter together “Owner” or “Developer”, enter into this Development Agreement, 
hereinafter the “Agreement.”  
 

WHEREAS, Owner owns approximately 50.00 acres of real property located within 
the City of Rathdrum, which Owner plans to develop (hereinafter the “Property”) in 
approximately three (3) planned phases. Of this acreage, 110 residential lots, 2 commercial 
lots and 1 well lot are to be developed, commonly identified as Westwood Pines 
Subdivision which requires major investment in public facilities and front-end on-site and 
off-site improvements (hereinafter the “Project.”). The Project area is more specifically 
identified and described in Exhibit “A”, and the Preliminary Plat, Exhibit “B” which is 
attached hereto and incorporated, as if fully set forth herein. 

 
WHEREAS, in order to enhance and strengthen the public planning process it is the 

desire of the City and the Owner to establish conditions of approval and terms of mitigation, 
to describe the scope of construction improvements, to foster an understanding between 
the Owner and the City with regards to the development of the Project described in Exhibit 
“B” and to assure the maximum effective utilization of the City’s resources with the least 
economic cost to its residents.   

 
WHEREAS, the City has complied with the notice and public hearing requirements for 

the subdivision approval for the Property, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval of the subdivision following public hearing on February 19, 2020 
and on March 11, 2020 the City Council of the City of Rathdrum approved the  preliminary 
plat to be constructed in phases; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined the Project is appropriate for development 

conditioned upon the Owner entering into a Development Agreement with the City 
addressing issues relating to development and maintenance of common area landscaping 
and stormwater management systems, street trees, and future water and sewer 
infrastructure, and warranty of the infrastructure, on the terms and conditions set forth 
below. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED that subject to the review process for development of 

the Project, maintenance of continuing progress in development of the Project in 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement, and the availability of utility capacity 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 2 

to the Project, Owner shall be allowed to develop the Project as set forth herein. 

1. Property and Term. 

1.1 Property Subject to this Agreement.  All of the real property defined herein 
as the Project shall be subject to this Agreement, unless otherwise specified 
herein.  

1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the execution of 
this Agreement by all parties hereto and shall continue until all lands in the 
Project are subdivided and/or otherwise developed in accordance with      the 
terms of this Agreement, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  

1.2.1 Section 3.5 Maintenance of Common Area Landscaping and 
Roadway Drainage Swales shall continue in effect after the term of 
this agreement and shall be an ongoing obligation of the Home 
Owner’s Association (HOA) and/or the property owners of the 
whole subdivision collectivelyproperty along which the landscaping 
and/or roadway drainage swales are situated within and external to 
the project, together with and including the east side of Meyer Road 
and the north side of Highway 53 adjacent to the plat, as well as 
those streets interior to the project. A note shall be placed on the face 
of the plat that Tthe lot owner of any property abutting public right 
of way is responsible for maintaining stormwater retention / 
treatment areas (grassy swales) and landscaping, including irrigation 
and mowing, contained within public rights of way, or drainage 
easements for street drainage, along streets interior to the plat unless 
otherwise maintained by the HOA. 

1.3   Phased Subdivision.  The duration of this Agreement envisions continuing 
development of the Project with phases to be presented for final 
construction approval approximately every one to three years, subject to 
market conditions.  If no phase is submitted and constructed for a period of 
three years, City is authorized to give notice to the Owner of intent to 
terminate this Agreement for non-performance. Upon such notice, the 
Owner shall be allowed a public hearing concerning the City’s intent to 
terminate, if requested.  After hearing from the Owner, in addition to 
comments from the public, City’s governing board may finally decide the 
status of this Agreement, setting forth its rationale in writing.  

1.3.1   The terms of this agreement shall apply to all phases of the 
development of the Project.  Any additional or modified terms or 
conditions for a specific phase must be in writing signed by both 
parties and attached to this Agreement as an Addendum. 

2. Project Regulations and Policies. 

2.1 Project Development.  Owner shall have the right to develop the Project in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and City shall 
have the right to control development of the Project as set forth in this 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 3 

Agreement and consistent with applicable local and state laws in effect at 
the time of issuance of any permit.  Except as otherwise specified in this 
Agreement, the approvals memorialized hereby shall control the overall 
design, development and construction of the Project, and all on-and off-site 
improvements and appurtenant improvements in connection therewith, in 
the manner specified in this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall 
contravene any applicable provision of law, which is not lawfully subject to 
modification by the City through an Agreement. 

2.1.1 Existing Approvals. Development of the Project shall be subject to 
all of the conditions and standards as set forth herein. The 
development of the Project shall be consistent with adopted rules, 
regulations and ordinances of the City except where such rules, 
regulations and ordinances are expressly and lawfully modified by 
the approvals accorded the Project. 

2.1.2 Future Application. Sections 2.1 and 2.1.1 herein shall not preclude 
changes in City laws, regulations, plans or policies, the terms of 
which are specifically mandated and required by changes in State or 
Federal laws or regulations which may be otherwise applicable to 
the Project. In the event State or Federal laws or regulations enacted 
after the effective date of this Agreement or action by any 
governmental jurisdiction other than the City prevent or preclude 
compliance with one or more provisions of this Agreement or 
require changes in plans, maps or permits approved by the City, this 
Agreement shall be modified, extended or suspended as may be 
necessary to comply with such State or Federal laws or regulations 
or the regulations of such other governmental jurisdictions. 

2.1.3 Fees.  All applications for City approvals, permits and entitlements 
shall be subject to City’s development and processing fees and 
charges at the time of consideration of the final plat map, 
development approval request, or building permit. 

2.1.4 Final Plat Approval(s).  During the course of development of the 
Project, Owner will make application to City for approval of final 
plat map(s) of the Project. The final plat(s) shall be submitted in 
accordance with Rathdrum Municipal Code Title 12, Chapter 4.  
During City’s review process of final plat map(s), the approvals 
memorialized hereby, and any addenda hereto, shall control 
conditions imposed by City for the Project and future final plat 
maps.  

2.1.5 Disclaimer of Warranties.  Notwithstanding this Agreement or any 
action taken by any person hereunder, neither the City nor any City 
officer, agent or employee warrants or represents the fitness, 
suitability or merchantability of a property, plan, design, material, 
workmanship or structure for any purpose. 

2.1.6 Governmental Authority.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 4 

deemed to compromise the governmental authority of the Mayor 
and City Council of the City of Rathdrum, present or future. 

2.2 Hold Harmless. Owner hereby agrees to and shall hold City harmless from 
any liability for damage or claims for damage for personal injury, including 
death, as well as from claims for property damage which may arise during 
the construction phase and during and following the warranty period as a 
result of the actions of the Developer or the Developer’s contractors and 
consultants, relating to the design or construction of the Project, excepting 
claims and causes of actions brought by the Owner for default of this 
Agreement or those arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
City. 

3. Conditions of Approval. 

3.1 Improvements to be Constructed. Developer shall construct the   
improvements on-site and off-site for the Project required pursuant to the 
Rathdrum City Code, including any current adopted policies pending 
codification, this Agreement and any other conditions of approval imposed 
by the Rathdrum City Council prior to this Agreement. 

3.2 Roadway Drainage Swales.  Developer shall construct roadway drainage 
swales with drywell storm outlet in accordance with adopted policy 
simultaneously with construction of new roadways or improvements to 
existing roadways in the Project, including the east side of Meyer Road, the 
north side of Highway 53 as required by the Idaho Transportation 
Department, and other interior roadways planned to be Cloverdale Street,  
Dayton Avenue, Astoria Loop and Pelican Loop. Note that such road names 
have not been approved for use by Kootenai County and are subject to 
change. Roadway drainage swales shall be constructed in accordance with 
the approved construction plans for the Project and functional prior to 
acceptance by the City. 

3.3 Landscaping/Street Trees.  Developer shall plant grass, plants and trees / 
hydroseed within the swales and along all street frontages of Meyer Road, 
and Highway 53. Trees shall be selected from the City’s Tree and Planting 
Guide and spaced 20-feet maximum. Individual lot owners shall be 
responsible at time of building permit phase to install, maintain or replace 
grass, plants and plant trees when the lots are improved along those streets 
and in those areas as set forth in Landscape Plan component of approved 
construction plans and in accordance with the Rathdrum City Code.  Trees 
shall be selected from the City’s Tree and Planting Guide and spaced 20-
feet maximum along the east side of Meyer, the length of Cloverdale and 
the north side of Highway 53, beginning twenty five feet (25') from the point 
of intersection of city rights of way. All others shall have a minimum of one 
tree within right of way in addition to required on-site landscaping. 

3.4 Irrigation Water Service Lines to Roadway Drainage Swales and Landscape 
Areas.  Developer shall construct water lines with valves and backflow 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 5 

prevention devices for the purpose of providing irrigation service to 
stormwater drainage swales and common area landscaping along the north 
side of Highway 53 and the east side of Meyer Rroad frontages to the 
Project.  Individual lot owners within the Project shall construct irrigation 
lines with valves and backflow prevention devices for the purpose of 
providing irrigation service to each stormwater roadway drainage swale and 
common landscaping areas as located in dedicated right-of-way areas 
fronting their individual lots within the Project at the time of construction 
on the individual lots within the subdivision. 

3.5 Maintenance of Common Area Landscaping and Roadway Drainage 
Swales.  The Home Owner’s Association (HOA) or the owners of all lots 
within the Project are collectively responsible for the maintenance of that 
common area landscaping and all costs associated with the maintenance, 
including the irrigation water fees and replacement of any dead trees, shrubs 
and grass along the east side of Meyer Road, and the north side of Highway 
53 frontages to the Project. Furthermore, the owner of each lot within the 
Project shall be responsible toirrigate and  maintain the landscaping within 
any stormwater drainage area fronting the lot and in groundwater swales 
and/or planting strips in rights-of-way(s) adjacent to the owner’s lot.  The 
responsibility for the maintenance of that landscaping and all costs 
associated with the maintenance, including installation of underground 
irrigation, if necessary, the irrigation water fees and placement or 
replacement of any dead trees, shrubs and grass shall be the responsibility 
of the individual lot owners.  In the event the lot owner fails to meet their 
obligations under this provision, the City is authorized to contract to provide 
the maintenance services and to assess the cost of such maintenance and 
water fees to the lot owners.  This obligation shall be ongoing and constitute 
a consensual perpetual lien upon the property within the Project. 

3.6 Irrigation System Casings.  Developer shall install a two (2) inch minimum 
diameter casing / conduit for each lot under the sidewalks to the planting 
strips or swales and at all lot corners abutting a right-of way during the 
construction of all sidewalks and/or walkways as part of the infrastructure 
to be installed within the Project to support future irrigation system needs.  

3.7 Walkways and Stormwater.   Developer shall construct planting strips and 
stormwater drainage swales along both sides of all improved right-of-ways, 
with the exception of the west side of Meyer Road, within the Project. 
Streets within the development shall have 5-foot wide sidewalks on each 
side as is typical. 

3.8 Streetlights.  Developer shall place street lights along all improved right-of-
ways in the Project as set forth in the approved construction plans.  

3.9 Streets.  All streets in the Project shall be built to City standards. No direct 
lot access shall be allowed to Meyer Road, or Highway 53. Vehicular access 
from Highway 53 shall be limited to no more than one point of access at 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 6 

Cloverdale Street. The developer shall reconstruct Meyer Road, from 
Highway 53 to the project’s northwest boundary. 

3.10 Construction Access.  Access to the Project site shall be limited to improved 
streets located in existing right-of-ways directly adjacent to the area under 
development, which improved streets and right-of-ways shall be maintained 
in a clean and orderly manner kept clear of all construction debris and 
material.    

3.11 Public Street Closure.  When working within the existing public right-of-
way outside of the Project being constructed, the Developer shall keep at 
least one travel lane open at all times and provide the appropriate traffic 
control, at no cost to the City, to allow for vehicle travel in a safe manner 
through the construction area.  Street closures will only be allowed with 
prior approval by the City Engineer and only upon a showing by the 
Developer that the construction cannot be accomplished without a street 
closure.  Approval for a street closure shall be for a limited duration set by 
the City Engineer, which shall be strictly adhered to by the Developer. 

3.12 Phase Sustainability. The public infrastructure and other required amenities 
must be installed for each phase of the Project, to allow that phase to 
function without the construction of any subsequent phases of the Project. 

3.13 Sediment Erosion Control Plan.  Developer shall maintain sediment and 
erosion control measures as set forth in approved sediment and erosion 
control plan during all phases of construction of the Project. 

3.14 Dedication of Right-of-Way.   Developer shall dedicate to the City the 
necessary right-of-ways within the Subdivision for public roads and utilities 
and those adjacent to the Subdivision within Meyer and/or Highway 53 as 
necessary to complete public improvements. 

3.15 Dedication of Easements.  Developer shall dedicate sufficient easements for 
the installation, maintenance and operation of municipal and public utilities, 
street surfacing for public ingress and egress and stormwater treatment and 
disposal over and across the off-site properties owned by Developer as 
necessitated by engineering design.   

3.16 Sewer. The developer shall construct a fully functional public temporary 
sewer force main which alignment shall be contained within noted/platted 
access aisles where it crosses the City’s cemetery property. The developer 
shall construct a 16-foot wide all-weather vehicle access aisle, within said 
force main alignment within the cemetery property. The developer shall 
also construct a permanent sewer force main which alignment shall be 
contained within the Cloverdale Street public right-of-way, and which shall 
terminate on the north side of Highway 53. The developer shall also 
construct a temporary sanitary sewer lift station within the Project. Through 
a separate Credits and Reimbursement Agreement the City will pay for the 
cost difference between the engineer’s original design and the City’s 
requested changes for deepened, oversized sanitary sewer mains. The 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 7 

Developer shall provide a contractor’s itemized cost proposals for 1.) The 
original design and 2.) For the deepened /oversized sewer line. The 
developer shall also provide the City with the cost difference information 
between the engineer’s 81 SFT wet well design and the City’s requested 50 
SFT wet well. The City will apply the wet well cost savings to the Credits 
and Reimbursements Agreement. One (1) hour of emergency storage shall 
be provide and the emergency storage facility shall not be subject to the 
Credits and Reimbursements Agreement. 

3.17 Water. The developer shall construct a 12-inch diameter water main in both 
the Dayton Avenue Public right-of-way alignment (entirety of alignment) 
and Cloverdale Street. The Cloverdale Street 12-inch water main shall 
terminate on the north side of Highway 53. Internal water mains shall be 
looped in Astoria Loop and Pelican Loop.  

Any upsizing of and/or extensions for looping purposes as needed to 
achieve desired fire flows to either commercial lot shall be at the exclusive 
expense of the developer. 

3.18 Fencing. The developer shall install a six-foot tall solid (wood or vinyl, with 
no gaps between slats) fence located three-feet south of the northern 
boundary of the subdivision. 

4. Improvement Construction Standards and Procedures.  

4.1 Any public utility service contemplated by this Agreement needs to be 
provided only to areas where the service is allowed by applicable law. All 
utility service shall conform to the rules, regulations, and tariffs of the State 
of Idaho to the extent they may apply.   

4.2 If the State of Idaho or other agency having authority disallows any utility 
service to be provided by the City or any utility following execution of this 
Agreement, requirements of this Agreement relating to the disallowed 
service shall be deleted from the requirements of the Owner under this 
Agreement. The disallowance shall not be grounds for any claim, action, or 
demand against the City. 

4.3 Owner shall bear all cost associated with the installation of all public 
utilities owned and operated by the City or regulated by the Idaho Public 
Utilities Commission, including street lights. These installation costs shall 
not be passed on to the City unless provided for otherwise within an 
appendix to this agreement. 

4.4 Prior to performing any work in the existing public right-of-way, the Owner 
shall obtain the required encroachment permit and comply with the 
insurance and surety requirements associated with the permit. 

4.5 The Owner shall minimize the tracking of materials and dirt along any 
developed public right-of-way through use of methods approved by the City 
to assure existing streets are kept free of excessive dirt and other foreign 
materials. 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 8 

4.6 Owner shall not proceed with construction of the Project, except for 
movement or stripping of top soil, until construction plans have been 
approved by the City Engineer, a construction improvement agreement is 
signed by the City and a pre-construction conference has been completed 
between the Owner and the City. 

4.7 Owner shall be responsible to either pay the sewer and water cap fees and 
hookup fees or confirm that those fees have been paid by any property 
owner, which the Owner connects to the City sewer or water system as part 
of the installation of the public improvement. If individual connections are 
not made by the Owner, such sewer and water capitalization and hookup 
fees shall be paid by the individual property owner or developer at the time 
of building. 

4.8 The City Engineer is authorized to approve an alternate design for the 
stormwater management system instead of the preliminary drawings 
presented at the public hearing, if, in the opinion of the City Engineer, the 
alternate design meets or exceeds the goals and treatment capacity provided 
in the design reflected on the preliminary drawings. 

4.9 The Owner shall not obtain permits for the construction of improvements 
or commence the construction of improvements until this Agreement has 
been completed and signed by the Owner and the City, and all applicable 
fees have been paid as required by City ordinance or resolution. 

4.10 Building permits may be issued, once a performance bond for the 
completion of the infrastructure is submitted to and accepted by the City 
and final plat recorded, or alternatively, once all infrastructure has been 
installed and approved by the City and final plat recorded. All infrastructure 
associated with the Project, including those items for which surety has been 
provided, must be completed and accepted by the City prior to the issuance 
of any certificate of occupancy for a building constructed within the Project.   

4.10.1 The Owner shall be responsible to provide written notice, at or 
before, the time of closing, to each purchaser of a lot before the 
subdivision improvements are completed that no certificate of 
occupancy will be issued until such time as the subdivision 
improvements are completed and accepted by the City.  

4.11 At all times after construction of the subdivision improvements are 
commenced, and prior to the sale of lots, the Owner shall be responsible to 
provide weed and dust control for the Project, including but not limited to 
weed removal, and to keep the construction site free of garbage and debris.   

5. Performance Guaranty. 

5.1 Owner shall guarantee, for the sole benefit of the City that the Owner will 
perform all of its obligations not yet completed under this Agreement for 
the Project at the time of final plat approval for the Project.  The guaranty 
shall be in a form approved in Sections 5.1.1, 5.1.2, and 5.1.3. During the 
term of this Agreement, the Owner may, with the written consent of the 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 9 

City, substitute for a performance guaranty submitted under this section 
another guaranty in the required amount and in one of the forms specified 
herein. 

5.1.1 Performance Bond.  Owner may provide a performance bond from 
a company qualified by law to act as a surety in the State of Idaho. 
The bond shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney. The 
bond shall name the City as the sole beneficiary and the Owner as 
the principal.  

5.1.2 Escrow.  Owner may deposit funds in an escrow account with a bank 
or financial institution qualified by law to do business in the State 
of Idaho. The disbursement of the escrowed funds shall be governed 
by an escrow agreement in a form approved by the City Attorney.  

5.1.3 Letter of Credit.  The Owner may cause a bank or financial 
institution qualified by law to do business in the State of Idaho to 
issue an irrevocable letter of credit in a form approved by the City.  

5.2 Amount of Guaranty. The guaranty shall be in an amount equal to 150% 
(one hundred fifty percent) of the estimated cost of all improvements not 
yet constructed or completed per City Code, not including those to be 
constructed by private utilities. The estimated cost shall be determined as 
follows. The Owner shall submit for the City Engineer’s approval a cost 
estimate for each improvement required by this Agreement. Before 
submitting the cost estimates, the Owner’s engineer shall have prepared, 
documented and certified each cost estimate. The estimated cost of all 
improvements shall be the sum of the estimated cost as approved by the City 
Engineer.  

5.3  As soon as the earliest of the following occurs, the City shall release any 
performance guaranty which has not been used or encumbered: 

5.3.1 The final acceptance of all improvements and the posting of 
warranty guaranty as provided in Section 5.4.  Or, 

5.3.2 The expiration of the warranty period as provided in Section 5.4. 

5.4 Owner’s Warranty. 

5.4.1 Owner shall warrant the design, construction materials and 
workmanship of the improvements against any failure or defect in 
design, construction, material or workmanship which is discovered 
for one (1) year, except for street improvements, which shall be 
warranted for two (2) years. This warranty shall cover all direct or 
indirect costs of repair or replacement, and damage to the property, 
improvements or facilities of the City or any other person, caused 
by such failure or defect or in the course of repairs thereof, and any 
increase in cost to the City of operating and maintaining a City 
improvement resulting from such failures, defects or damages. 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 10 

5.4.2 The Owner’s warranty shall not extend to any failure or defect 
caused solely by changes in design, construction or materials 
required by the City.  

5.4.3 Except as provided in Subsection 5.4.2, the fact that the City takes 
any action, or omits to take any action authorized in this Agreement 
including, but not limited to, operation or routine maintenance of the 
improvements prior to acceptance or surveillance, inspections, 
review or approval of plans, tests or reports shall in no way limit the 
scope of the Owner’s warranty. 

5.4.4 To secure the Owner’s performance of the warranty under 
subsection 5.4.1, the performance guaranty provided by the Owner 
under Section 5.1 shall remain in effect until the end of the warranty 
period, or the Owner shall provide a warranty guaranty by one or 
more of the methods described in Sections 5.1.1 through 5.1.3. 

5.5    City’s Remedies Under Warranty. 

5.5.1 The City shall notify the Owner in writing upon its discovery of any 
failure or defect covered by the warranty in Section 5.4.1. The City 
shall notify the Owner before conducting any test or inspections to 
determine the cause of failure or defect to the extent the 
circumstances will allow and shall notify the Owner of the results of 
all such tests and inspection. 

5.5.2  Owner shall correct or make a diligent effort to correct any failure 
or defect covered by the warranty within thirty (30) days of 
receiving notice of the failure or defect from the City. Owner shall 
correct the failure or defect at its own expense and to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the City.  

5.5.3 If the Owner fails to correct the failure or defects within the time 
allowed by Section 5.5.2, the City may correct the failure or defect 
at Owner’s expense. If the Owner fails to pay the City for the 
corrective work within thirty (30) days of the City sending the bill, 
the City may pursue any remedy provided by law or this Agreement 
to recover the cost of the corrective work, including calling upon the 
Owner’s security. The City’s attorney’s fees in pursuit of such 
remedy shall be an allowed cost.  

5.5.4 In case of an emergency affecting public health and safety, the City 
may make immediate required repairs and shall notify the Owner and 
warranty bond surety as quickly as possible. 

6. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan. 

6.1   The parties agree that the terms of this Agreement are compatible with the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, and its implementation is in the best interests 
of the City and the health, safety and welfare of its residents.   



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 11 

7. Notices.   

7.1 Formal written notices or demands by the parties pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be sufficiently given if dispatched by a recognized overnight courier 
such as Federal Express or UPS, or by certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, to the offices of the City and Owner indicated below. 
Such written notices, demands, correspondence and communications may 
be sent in the same manner to such other persons and addresses as either 
party may from time-to-time designate by mail as provided in this section.  
Notices may also be delivered by personal delivery to an officer of the 
Owner or the Public Works Director of the City. 

 
DEVELOPER  / OWNER            CITY 

  Viking Construction, Inc.                      Mayor, City of Rathdrum 
  2605 W Hayden Avenue           8047 W. Main Street  
  Hayden, ID 83835                                  Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 

  Viking Construction, Inc. 
19425 E Broadway Avenue 
Spokane Valley, WA 99206 

     8. Default, Remedies, Termination, and Review. 

8.1 General Provisions.  Subject to extensions of time by mutual consent in 
writing, or as otherwise provided herein, failure by either party to perform 
any term or provision of this Agreement constitutes a default under this 
Agreement.  In the event of default under this Agreement or any of its terms 
or conditions, the party alleging such default or breach shall give the alleged 
breaching party not less than thirty (30) days’ notice in writing, measured 
from the date of delivery to a recognized overnight courier such as Federal 
Express or UPS, or certified mailing, specifying the nature of the alleged 
default and, when appropriate, the manner by which said default may be 
satisfactorily cured.  During any such thirty-day period of curing, the party 
charged shall not be considered in default for purposes of termination or 
institution of legal proceeding, unless the act of default is conclusive and 
incapable of cure.  The parties agree to meet face-to-face in the event of any 
such notice of default.  After proper notice, meeting and expiration of said 
thirty (30) day cure period without cure, or if such cure cannot be 
accomplished within such thirty (30) day period, or if the cure has not been 
commenced within such period and diligent effort has not been made to 
effect cure thereafter, the party to this Agreement alleging the default, at its 
option, may institute legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement by 
specific performance or give notice of termination of this Agreement.  
Failure or delay in giving notice of default pursuant to the Notice provision 
of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any default, nor shall it 
change the time of default.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, any failure or delay by either party in asserting any of it rights 
or remedies as to any default shall not operate as a waiver of any default or 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 12 

of any such rights or remedies or deprive either such party of its right to 
institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem 
necessary to protect, assert or enforce any such rights or remedies. City is 
allowed to withhold approval of subsequent phases of the Project or 
issuance of building or construction permits when a material condition of 
default exists. 

8.2 Applicable Law / Attorneys' Fees.   This Agreement shall be construed 
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho. Should any 
legal action be brought by either party because of breach of this Agreement 
or to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the action shall be brought 
in Kootenai County, Idaho and the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and such other costs as may be found 
by the Court. 

9. Subsequent Laws As Superseding Terms. 

9.1 Supersedure by Subsequent Laws.    If any agency other than City imposes 
any law or regulation ("Law") after the date of this Agreement, which 
prevents or precludes compliance with one or more provisions of this 
Agreement, then the provisions of this Agreement shall, to the extent 
feasible, be modified or suspended as may be necessary to comply with such 
new Law. Immediately after enactment of any such new Law, the parties 
shall meet and confer in good faith to determine the feasibility of any such 
modification or suspension based on the effect such modification or 
suspension would have on the purposes and intent of this Agreement. In 
addition, Owner shall have the right to challenge the new Law preventing 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement, and, in the event such 
challenge is successful, this Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full 
force and effect. 

10. Mortgagee Protection; Certain Rights of Cure. 

10.1 Mortgagee Protection.  This Agreement shall be superior and senior to any 
lien placed upon the Project or any portion thereof after the date of recording 
this Agreement, including the lien of any deed of trust or mortgage 
("Mortgage").  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no breach hereof shall 
defeat, render invalid, diminish or impair the lien of any Mortgage made in 
good faith and for value, but all of the terms and conditions contained in 
this Agreement shall be binding upon and effective against any person or 
entity including any deed of trust beneficiary or mortgagee ("Mortgagee") 
who acquires title to the Project, or any portion thereof, by foreclosure, 
trustee's sale, deed in lieu of foreclosure, or otherwise. 

10.2 Mortgagee Not Obligated.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 10.1 
above, no Mortgagee shall have any obligation or duty under this 
Agreement to construct or complete the construction of improvements, or 
to guarantee such construction or completion; provided, however, that a 
Mortgagee shall not be entitled to devote the Project to any uses or to 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 13 

construct any improvements thereon other than those uses or improvements 
provided for or authorized by this Agreement, unless the City releases its 
interest in performance by action of the City Council. 

10.3 Notice of Default to Mortgagee.  If City receives notice from a Mortgagee 
requesting a copy of any notice of default given Owner hereunder and 
specifying the address for service thereof, then City is authorized to deliver 
to such Mortgagee, concurrently with service thereon to Owner, any notice 
given to Owner with respect to any claim by City that Owner has committed 
an event of default. If City makes a determination of noncompliance 
hereunder, City shall likewise serve notice of such noncompliance on such 
Mortgagee concurrently with service thereof on Owner. Each Mortgagee 
shall have the rights during the same period available to Owner to cure or 
remedy the event of default claimed or the areas of noncompliance set forth 
in the City's notice. Owner is obliged hereby to notify the City of any 
Mortgagee with an interest in the Project. 

11. Transfers and Assignments. 

11.1 Right to Assign.  Owner shall have the right to sell, assign or transfer, any 
and all of its rights, duties and obligations under this Agreement, to any 
entity during the Term of this Agreement; provided, however, in no event 
shall the rights, duties and obligations conferred upon Owner pursuant to 
this Agreement be at any time so transferred or assigned except through a 
transfer of Owner’s interest in the Property, or portion thereof transferred.  
This right to assign or transfer shall not compromise the rights of the City 
to require surety to assure completion of Owner’s obligations established 
hereby or by law.  Any purchaser or assignor shall remain obligated to all 
duties and rights accorded hereby to Owner.  Nothing in this Section 11 
shall prevent transfer of some or all of the ownership interest in Owner. 

11.2 Release Upon Transfer.    Upon the sale, transfer or assignment of Owner's 
rights, responsibilities and interests under this Agreement consistent with  
Section 11.1 above, Owner shall be released from its obligations under this 
Agreement with respect to its interest in the Project or portion thereof, so 
transferred arising subsequent to the effective date of such transfer if (1) 
Owner is not then in default under this Agreement; (2) Owner has provided 
to City notice of such transfer,  (3) the transferee executes and delivers to 
City a written agreement in which (a) the name and address of the transferee 
is set forth; and (b) the transferee expressly and unconditionally, upon 
provision of sufficient surety or other assurance of performance, assumes 
all of the obligations of the Owner under this Agreement with respect to the 
Project, or portion thereof transferred; and (4) City approves the transferee, 
which approval City will not unreasonably withhold if such transferee is 
financially capable of performing the obligations of transferor pursuant to 
this Agreement or if surety is provided to guarantee performance.  Failure 
to deliver a written assumption agreement hereunder shall not affect the 
running of any covenants herein with the land, as provided in Section 12 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 14 

below, nor shall such failure negate, modify or otherwise affect the liability 
of any transferee pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 

12. Covenants Run With The Land.     

All of the provisions, agreements, rights, powers, standards, terms, covenants, 
duties and obligations contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties 
and their respective heirs, successors (by merger, consolidation, or otherwise) and 
assigns, devisees, administrators, representatives, lessees and all other persons or 
entities acquiring the Project real property, or any portion thereof, or any interest 
therein, whether by operation of law or in any manner whatsoever, and shall inure 
to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, successors (by merger, 
consolidation or otherwise) and assigns. All of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and do hereby constitute covenants 
running with the land pursuant to applicable laws. 

13. General Provisions. 

13.1 No Joint Venture or Partnership.  City and Owner agree that nothing 
contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection 
with this Agreement shall be construed as making City and Owner a joint 
venture or partners.  It is specifically understood and agreed by the parties 
that the Project contemplated by this Agreement is a private development; 
that the City has no interest in or responsibility for or duty to third persons 
concerning any of Owner’s obligations regarding said improvements; that 
Owner shall have full power over and exclusive control of the Project herein 
described subject only to the limitations and obligations of the Owner under 
this Agreement and applicable provisions of law.  The only relationship 
between City and Owner is that of a governmental entity regulating the 
development of private property pursuant to the laws of the City and the 
State of Idaho.  

13.2 Severability.  City and Owner agree that if any provision of this Agreement 
is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and 
shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual 
consent of the parties. 

13.3. Entire Agreement.    This Agreement is the entire Agreement and may 
only be modified in writing signed by both parties. 

13.4 Minor Changes to Agreement.  Minor changes in the manner of 
implementation of the approval memorialized hereby can be made by 
mutual agreement of the Owner and the City’s administrative staff. 

13.5 Completion of Performance.  Upon completion of performance by the 
parties or revocation of this Agreement, a written statement acknowledging 
such completion or revocation, signed by the appropriate agents of the City 
and Owner shall be recorded in the Official Records of Kootenai County, 
Idaho.  Any such release shall not signal completion or release of any 
provision which confers a public benefit and which is intended to run with 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 15 

the land unless expressly approved by the governing board of the City. 

13.6 Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default where failure 
or delay in performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement is 
caused by floods, earthquakes, other Acts of God, fires, wars, riots or similar 
hostilities, strikes and other labor difficulties beyond such party's control, 
government regulations, court actions (such as restraining orders or 
injunctions by those not party to this Agreement) or by other causes beyond 
such party's control (inability to obtain funding on the part of the Owner 
shall not constitute  a cause beyond the Owner’s control).  If any such events 
shall occur, the term of this Agreement and the time for performance by 
either party of any of its obligations hereunder shall be extended by the 
period of time that such events prevented such performance, provided that 
the term of this Agreement shall not be extended under any circumstances 
for more than three (3) years. 

13.7 Estoppel Certificate.    Owner may, at any time, and from time to time, 
deliver written notice to the City requesting such party to certify in writing 
that, to the knowledge of the certifying party  (1) this Agreement is in full 
force and effect and a binding obligation of the parties; (2) this Agreement 
has not been amended or modified either orally or in writing, and if so 
amended, identifying the amendments; and (3) the requesting party is not in 
default in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, or if in 
default, to describe therein the nature and amount of such defaults. A party 
receiving a request hereunder shall execute and return such certificate or 
give a written detailed response explaining why it will not do so within 
thirty (30) days following the receipt thereof.  City’s Mayor shall have the 
right to execute any certificate requested by Owner hereunder. City 
acknowledges that a certificate hereunder may be relied upon by transferees 
and Mortgagees. 

13.8 Duty To Record.  This Agreement or a Memorandum referencing the 
existence of this Agreement shall be recorded by City. 

 
Executed this   day of   , 2020. 

 
CITY OF RATHDRUM OWNER, 
 VIKING CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
______________________________        
Vic Holmes, Mayor By:  
 

 
ATTEST:      

 
________________________________  
Sherri Halligan, City Clerk    

 
  



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 16 

STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ):ss 
County of Kootenai  ) 
 
 On this  day of   , 2020, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared Vic Holmes and Sherri Halligan known, or identified to me, to be the 
Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Rathdrum, Kootenai County, Idaho, executing the 
herein instrument, and acknowledged to me that such city of Rathdrum executed the 
same. 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
the date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the State of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 
 
 

  



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 17 

STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ):ss 
County of Kootenai  ) 
 
 On this ___ day of _________, 2020, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared     known, or identified to me, to be the manager or 
member of the company that executed this instrument or the person who executed the 
instrument on behalf of said corporation, and said person(s) acknowledged that he/she/they 
signed this instrument, on oath stated that he/she/they was/were authorized to execute the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that such corporation / company executed 
the same. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
the date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the State of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 

 
 

STATE OF               ) 
    ):ss 
County of               ) 
 
 On this ___ day of _________, 2020, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared     known, or identified to me, to be the manager or 
member of the company that executed this instrument or the person who executed the 
instrument on behalf of said corporation, and said person(s) acknowledged that he/she/they 
signed this instrument, on oath stated that he/she/they was/were authorized to execute the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that such corporation / company executed 
the same. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
the date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the State of   
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 18 

EXHIBIT A 
WESTWOOD PINES SUBDIVISION 

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 19 

 
 
 
 
 
  



Westwood Pines Subdivision Development Agreement - 20 

EXHIBIT B 
WESTWOOD PINES SUBDIVISION 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 



STC-5791, Int. Meyer Road Boekel Road
Labor Hours

C:\Users\aaliev\Desktop\AA Desk Top 2.0\Consultant Services\LHTAC\13864 DEA\Final 13864 - Int Meyer  Boekel Rathdrum - Negotiated Labor Estimate Supp022 of 3 6/26/2020

Se
ni

or
 E

nv
 P

lan
ne

r

Se
ni

or
 S

cie
nt

ist

1 Project Management 49 21 0 5 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 12 0
1.1 Set up hard copy and electronic files 4 2 2
1.2 Prepare Project Schedule 4 4
1.3 Prepare Team Meetings 21 5 5 5 5 1
1.4 Progress Reports and Invoicing 20 10 10

2 Concept Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Environmental & Cultural Clearance Coordination 10 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0
3.9 Environmental Re-Evaluation 10 2 8

4 Surveying 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

5 Geotechnical / Materials Engineering 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6 Preliminary Design 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 Right-of-Way Acquisition Documents 146 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 32 15 77 20 0 0 0 0 0 0
7.1 Update and Review Title Reports and Supporting Information 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7.1.1 Obtain Updates and Review Title Reports and Supporting Title Infor 8 2 1 5
7.1.2 Coordinate with the Title Company to Clarify the Integrity of Title Inf 0
7.1.3 Incorporate Pertinent Land Title Findings into the Total Ownership M 0

7.2 Develop Right-of-Way Plans 39 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 6 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7.2.1 Incorporate section lines, parcel lines and right-of-way lines into the   0
7.2.2 Prepare InRoads© Alignment Files for each Acquisition Parcel (estim   5 1 4
7.2.3 Prepare Total Ownership Map (1 sheet) 2 1 1
7.2.4 Prepare the Right-of-Way Plan Sheets 18 1 1 16
7.2.5 Submit Review Copy of the Total Ownership Map and ROW Plans 1 1
7.2.6 Attend Right-of-Way Plans Review Meeting 6 2 2 2
7.2.7 Revise the Total Ownership Map and the ROW Plans to Address Co 6 1 1 4
7.2.8 Submit Final Total Ownership Map and ROW Plans 1 1

7.3 Prepare Legal Descriptions 99 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 8 47 20 0 0 0 0 0 0
7.3.1 Prepare Legal Descriptions for Each Acquisition Parcel (estimated a    14 6 2 6
7.3.2 Submit Legal Description Package for Review 1 1
7.3.3 Revise Legal Descriptions per Review Comments 4 1 1 2
7.3.4 Submit Final Signed and Sealed Legal Descriptions for Acquisition P     2 1 1
7.3.5 Calculate Acquisition Parcel Corner and Points-on-line Coordinates     6 1 1 4
7.3.6 Stake ROW Acquisition Areas 14 2 2 10 0
7.3.7 Coordinate with Acquisition Team and Answer Survey Acquisition S  5 2 1 2
7.3.8 Prepare a Record of Survey 24 4 20
7.3.9 Review Record of Survey 3 2 1
7.3.10 Verification of Research and Monument 11 2 1 8
7.3.11 Set Monuments 15 2 1 2 10 0

8 Design Study Report 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9 Final Design 560 95 8 97 271 22 21 46 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9.1 Final Roadway Design 394 46 0 57 214 12 19 46 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9.1.1 Roundabout Geometric Design and Modeling 44 4 16 24
9.1.2 Final Title Sheet (1 sheet) 3 1 2
9.1.3 Final Standard Drawing Index (2 sheets) 0
9.1.4 Final Total Ownership Map (1 sheet) 0
9.1.5 Final Survey Control and Found Monuments (2 sheets) 0
9.1.6 Project Clearance Sheet (1 sheet) 2 1 1
9.1.7 Final Typical Sections (3 sheets) 10 1 3 6
9.1.8 Final Roadway Plan and Profile Sheets (13 sheets) 130 13 26 91
9.1.9 Final Roundabout Layout and Grading Sheets (4 sheets) 58 4 6 48
9.1.10 Final Roadway Detail Sheets (3 sheets) 15 1 2 12
9.1.11 Final Approach Plan and Profile Sheets (3 sheet) 24 3 3 18
9.1.12 Final Signing and Pavement Marking Plans (5 sheets) 30 5 5 20
9.1.13 Final Sign Erection Specifications and Sign Detail Sheets (3 sheets) 13 1 3 3 6
9.1.14 Final Construction Traffic Control and Staging Plans (5 sheets) 25 1 4 20
9.1.15 Final Utility Plans and Details (4 sheets) 24 4 12 8
9.1.16 Coordinate the Execution of Utility Hearing Waivers and Avista Agre 16 8 8

9.2 ESC/SWPP Plans 44 8 0 10 26 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9.2.1 Temporary and Permanent ESC/SWPP Plans (6 Sheets) 36 6 6 24
9.2.2 ESC/SWPP Narrative 8 2 4 2

9.3 Final Drainage Design 18 2 0 13 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9.3.1 Drainage Technical Memorandum 15 1 12 2
9.3.2 Final Drainage Details (1 sheet) 3 1 1 1

9.4 Calculate Roadway Quantities 14 1 2 8 2 1
9.5 Summarize Quantities (3 sheets) 13 2 0 3 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9.5.1 Project Roadway Summary (2 sheets) 9 1 2 6
9.5.2 Pipe Culvert Summary (1 sheet) 4 1 1 2

9.6 Prepare Project Proposal 8 6 1 1
9.7 Contract Time Determination 3 2 1
9.8 Prepare Construction Cost Estimate 8 2 2 4
9.9 Prepare Submittal Checklists 0
9.10 QC Review of the Final Design Review Submittal 16 8 8
9.11 Submit Final Design for Review 8 2 2 2 1 1
9.12 Final Owner Contact Meetings 10 10
9.13 Final Design Review Meeting 24 6 6 6 6

10 PS&E Preparation and Submittal 129 27 4 22 52 9 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0
10.1 Prepare PS&E Package 95 20 4 17 36 7 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0

10.1.1 Revise plans for PS&E Package 64 8 12 32 4 8
10.1.2 Prepare Final Proposal 6 4 1 1
10.1.3 Finalize the Detailed Engineer’s Estimate 6 1 1 2 1 1
10.1.4 Finalize the Construction Time Determination CPD 1 1
10.1.5 QC review of the Plans, Specifications, and Estimates 8 4 4
10.1.6 Prepare Submittal Checklists 1 1
10.1.7 Assemble Final PS&E Package and submit 9 2 2 2 1 2

10.2 Submit Resident Engineer Files 22 3 0 3 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0
10.2.1 Cross Sections at 50-ft stations (25-ft stations on curves) 4 4
10.2.2 Grade Books for the project 6 6
10.2.3 Roadway Quantity Worksheets 4 1 1 2
10.2.4 Compiled Project Information 8 2 2 4

10.3 Bid Assistance 12 4 2 4 2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 894 147 12 124 328 36 21 55 32 15 77 20 0 9 0 6 12 0

Su
rv

ey
 Q

ua
lit

y C
on

tro
l

Tr
af

fic
 E

ng
in

ee
r a

nd
 

Ut
ilit

y C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n

Tr
af

fic
 A

na
lys

t/D
es

ig
ne

r

GI
S 

An
aly

st

DEA

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

Se
ni

or
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

De
sig

ne
r

Fi
eld

 S
ur

ve
y T

ec
hn

ici
an

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dm
in

ist
ra

to
r

Pr
oj

ec
t A

cc
ou

nt
an

t

Of
fic

e S
ur

ve
y T

ec
hn

ici
an

Pa
rty

 C
hi

ef

Tr
af

fic
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Ta

sk
 

Le
ad

Su
rv

ey
 T

as
k L

ea
d

Task Number Task DE
A

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

Pr
en

cip
al-

in
-

Ch
ar

ge
/Q

ua
lit

y M
an

ag
er

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
En

gi
ne

er
 

Ta
sk

 L
ea

d



C:\Users\aaliev\Desktop\AA Desk Top 2.0\Consultant Services\LHTAC\13864 DEA\Final 13864 - Int Meyer  Boekel Rathdrum - Negotiated Labor Estimate Supp023 of 3 6/26/2020

PROJECT NUMBER: A013(864)

KEY NUMBER: 13864

CERT. % of % of % of % of % of % of % of % of % of % of % of % of

EMPLOYEE WAGE Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj. Cat. Adj.

TITLE NAME RATE Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage Time Wage

Project Manager Rusty Leahy 70.32$    100% $70.32 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

cipal-in-Charge/Quality Manager Greg Holder 81.14$    $0.00 100% $81.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

nsportation Engineer Task Lead Martin Plass 51.10$    $0.00 $0.00 100% $51.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Senior Transportation Designer Bill Stark 49.26$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $49.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Traffic Engineering Task Lead Jerremy Clark 57.20$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $57.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 Engineer and Utility Coordination Linda Mitchell 44.50$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $44.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Traffic Analyst/Designer Chad Karns 42.80$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $42.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Survey Task Lead Gilbert Bailey 49.00$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $49.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Survey Quality Control Duffy Haggarty 73.00$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $73.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Office Survey Technician Kyle McNaught-Davis 37.50$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50% $18.75 $0.00 $0.00

Office Survey Technician Josh Miller 41.00$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50% $20.50 $0.00 $0.00

Party Chief Mark Smith 34.50$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $34.50 $0.00

Field Survey Technician Justin Mickiewicz 31.00$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100% $31.00

Senior Environmental Planner Gray Rand 55.00$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Senior Scientist Katie Carroz 49.50$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Project Administrator Michelle Smith 29.34$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Project Accountant Melissa Fleck 35.52$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GIS Analyst Kayla Kruse 42.80$    $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

HOURLY RATE

Office Survey 

Technician Party Chief

Field Survey 

TechnicianSurvey Task Lead

Survey Quality 

Control

Traffic Engineering 

Task Lead

Traffic Engineer and 

Utility Coordination

Traffic 

Analyst/Designer

David Evans & Associates, Inc.

STC-5791, Int. Meyer Road & Boekel Road

Prencipal-in-

Charge/Quality 

Manager

Transportation 

Engineer Task Lead

Senior Transportation 

DesignerProject Manager

$49.00 $73.00 $39.25$70.32 $49.26$81.14 $51.10 $42.80$57.20 $44.50 $34.50 $31.00



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  1 

 

 

City of Rathdrum 

City Council 
  

Staff Report –Preliminary Plat and PUD 
 

 

To: Rathdrum City Council 

From: City of Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date of Report: July 1, 2020 

Subject: Willow Creek Preliminary Re-Plat (Major Subdivision) and Planned Unit 

Development  

Hearing Date: July 8, 2020 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Applicant / Owner: Seneca Capital Partners, DBA Willow Creek MHP, LLC, 3001 Brighton Blvd. Ste 

334, Denver, CO, 80216, for property owner, Idaho Contractors, 8601 N Hayden Pines Way, Hayden, ID. 

Applicant’s Representative:   Representing the Applicants is Gordon Dobler, PE, Frame & Smetana, PA, 

63 N 4th Street, Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814. 

Site Information / Location of Project:  The 

proposed Re-Plat and PUD is generally located 

to the southwest of Coeur d’Alene Street, 

southeast of the BNSF railroad tracks and north 

of Pine Street.  

The property is a portion of Willow Creek 

Subdivision (135 of the originally platted 140 

lots (so the proposal specifically excludes five 

(5) of the originally platted lots which are in 

separate ownership – Lots 1, 2 and 20, Block 6, 

and Lots 8 and 37, Block 2)). The project area is 

approximately 28.78 acres, including existing 

rights of way, or 22.01 acres excluding right of 

way area. 

The Kootenai County Assessors Tax Parcel 

Number for the subject property (135 lots in 

common ownership) is R-9000-001-000-A. The 

legal description includes all of those lots within 

Willow Creek Subdivision, excluding those five 

(5) in separate ownership noted above, in the SE 

¼ of Section 36, T52N, R5W, BM, Kootenai 

County, Idaho as shown within the Title 

Commitment submitted with the application. 

 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  2 

 

Zoning:  The property is currently zoned R-3 (Residential Multifamily).  

Adjacent Land Uses and Zoning:   

 Table 1 

Northwest 

North 

NA 

Industrial Zone 

BNSF Railway 

S&S Industries LLC 

Northeast 

East 

R-3 Residential Multifamily 

R-2 Residential  

Single family homes 

Single family homes 

Southeast 

South 

R-2 Residential 

R-1 Residential 

Single family homes 

Single family homes 

West R-1 Residential Large lot single family home 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan Designation:  The Future Land Use Map identifies the site as General Commercial for 

the majority of the property and Residential 

for the remainder.  



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  3 

 

Existing Utilities and Infrastructure:  Prior to platting of the original Willow Creek subdivision, private 

on-site water, sewer and stormwater infrastructure was installed with service connections for a total of 180 

homes within the proposed Re-Plat / PUD area. There are five (5) additional homes located within the 

original Willow Creek subdivision which are not included in the subject property.  

At the time of platting, subdivision infrastructure included approximately twenty four foot (24’) wide 

internal streets within fifty foot (50) dedicated rights of ways, private water and sewer mainlines and laterals, 

and a single water meter to service the entire subdivision. Wastewater was originally accommodated through 

a private system which occupied approximately five (5) of the platted lots along the southwest property 

boundary of the subdivision. The subdivision was later connected to City sewer when such service became 

available in the early 90’s and a private sewer lift station was constructed to service the subdivision. The 

previously utilized Imhoff septic tank and drain field were abandoned (but appears were not removed), and 

the private sewer lines were connected to the private lift station which pumps effluent to the City’s utility. 

All on-site utility lines and lift station have remained in private ownership despite several efforts to transfer 

such infrastructure to the City. There are two fire hydrants located internal to the plat. This number is 

substandard - see Northern Lakes Fire Protection District comment letter within Exhibit C. The single water 

meter which was installed has been non-functioning for several years and utilities are currently billed at the 

minimum rate per occupied structure. 

Vehicular access from Coeur d’Alene Street to the northeast of the subdivision is via Park Drive (Park Loop) 

and access to the south is gained via extension of Arbor Street. Internal streets include Meadow Brook Drive 

(Meadow Brook Circle), Willow View Court, and Bordon Court. All are maintained by the City. 

History:   In the late 1970’s the owners of the property where Willow Creek Subdivision is now located 

brought several proposals for subdivision of the property to the Rathdrum City Council. They included a 

traditional 76-lot subdivision, a 180-lot mobile home park, and other variations of platting. After receiving a 

variety of preliminary plat approvals, the property owner installed infrastructure to accommodate 185 homes 

in 1979 (it is unclear if approval of this number of lots was ever discussed with the City). Following the 

installation of such infrastructure, however, the owner returned to the City Council with a revised plat for a 

140-lot subdivision, which was ultimately approved and recorded on August 6, 1981. The existing utility 

infrastructure unfortunately was not revised to reflect the number of platted lots. 

The Willow Creek plat was approved with modified setbacks (fifteen feet (15’) front, five foot (5’) side and 

ten foot (10’) rear) in order to accommodate trailer / mobile / manufactured homes, the typical length of 

which would have encroached into typical setbacks for the platted lots. Two parking stalls were required per 

lot and could be gravel according to the preliminary plat approval discussions.  

Following (or prior to) recording of the plat, it appears that approximately nine (9) mobile / manufactured 

homes and/or RVs were moved into the subdivision while in the ownership of the original developer. The 

location of these homes is unknown, however it appears that the number of homes within the subdivision was 

limited due to the fact that the City began adoption of FEMA flood regulations and NFIP flood mapping in 

early 1982. A majority of the subdivision was mapped within floodplain and approximately twenty (20) lots 

were mapped as entirely within or substantially effected by floodway. Despite protests and appeals of the 

property owner, the City’s Floodplain Ordinance (Ordinance 281) was adopted in September of 1984. It also 

appears that during that period of time, several problems with the installed utility infrastructure were 

identified, and questions regarding who actually owned such infrastructure (and was required to maintain and 

repair it) was debated. The original developer then declared bankruptcy in or around October of 1984 and the 

subdivision was taken over by the bank. 

 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The majority of the property within the original Willow Creek subdivision (all but 16 lots) was purchased 

from the bank on October 31, 1984 by Idaho Contractors. Following the purchase, the new owner quickly 

moved several more mobile / manufactured homes and several RVs into the subdivision and placed them 

according to the utility service locations and NOT the plat. This created several violations of setbacks and 

floodplain regulations and other problems within the subdivision. The first record identifying such problems 

within Willow Creek was within Council meeting records on November 19, 1985.  Vacation of the plat was 

discussed as one possible solution. 

Since purchase of the property by Idaho Contractors there has been a long and varied history of problems 

within the development, and many attempts and meetings with the owner by Council and City staff to try to 

resolve such problems. Issues have included, but are not limited to, requiring hookup to City sewer, 

ownership and maintenance of the water and sewer utilities interior to the subdivision, non-payment of utility 

connection and service fees, more mobile homes within the plat than lots, RVs being illegally occupied and 

connected to utilities, zoning and floodplain violations, and non-issuance of setting permits for new homes 

(owner not obtaining and City filing injunction to not allow more dwellings). In several instances the City 

has sought injunction or filed suit against the owner.  City discussions with the owner have repeatedly 

included possible vacation of the plat or filing for variance to attempt to resolve some of the violations. 

On May 1st, 1996 the owner applied for a Variance of the zoning ordinance (Ord. 271 – sections not 

specified). Such Variance was not approved by the Council, however, “Alternatives” were provided to the 

owner to attempt to resolve violations and problems. Of the two alternatives provided, Idaho Contractors 

agreed in a letter to the City dated August 23, 1996 to accept “Alternative 2” as follows: 1) The Willow 

Creek Mobile Home Park will be recognized as a 187-unit mobile home park with the current lot structure. 

The sponsor will improve the dike to meet FEMA standards and Corps of Engineer approval. This will, in 

effect, eliminate the floodway/plain problem and allow the offending units to stay in the park; 2) The sewer 

system within the park will remain under private ownership unless the system is brought up to the current 

City standards; and 3) Spaces within the “Willow Creek Mobile Home park” shall not be rented to 

recreational vehicles. 

Following acceptance of “Alternative 2”, it appears that Idaho Contractors did not comply with the 

From NFIP Flood 
Insurance Rate Map 

Floodplain    

Floodway    



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  5 

 

requirements of the alternative as it is noted in a letter by City Planner, Jan Hale, dated October 2, 1997 that 

the City will not issue setting permits until an agreement is met on zoning violation issues. There is also no 

record that improvement of the dike was completed in compliance with FEMA and ACOE standards and 

records indicated that several more RVs were moved into the subdivision. In a letter from Planner Hale dated 

May 28, 2002 the City requested removal of several RVs which have been illegally moved into the park.  

Over time lots within the subdivision have been bought and sold by Idaho Contractors and other parties 

resulting in the current condition in which Idaho Contractors owns all but five (5) of the originally platted 

lots. All but one of the RVs which were illegally moved into the park have been removed, and City staff has 

developed policy to deal with setting permits for new homes within the subdivision, as attached in Exhibit A. 

The intent of the policy is to correct zoning and floodplain violations and ensure new units placed within the 

subdivision meet current City Code. The net result has been that no new homes have been permitted to be 

placed within the subdivision since 2015. The property within the proposed Re-Plat / PUD is currently 

occupied by approximately 164 mobile or manufactured homes and one (1) RV (165 dwellings in 135 lots).  

In addition to the plat, setback, home number and floodplain violations and utility problems, other issues 

identified within the subdivision include, but are not limited to: 

1. The “park” at the southwest end of current Block 4 which is in the ownership of Idaho Contractors 

has not been maintained by the owner. The playground equipment and courts are in disrepair and 

there is no attractive common space within the subdivision for use by tenants / owners. 

2. The owner has not maintained vacant lots / spaces in a clean, aesthetic condition. Weeds, garbage / 

refuse and overflow parking of vehicles has been noted within vacant spaces. Please note that 

beginning in April of this year (2020), the current ownership did make an effort to improve these 

vacant spaces. 

3. The property owner and/or individual mobile / manufactured homeowners have not obtained 

permitting of structural additions and alterations which have been constructed on many of the homes 

within the development (number undetermined at this time).  Items such as added entryways (both 

open and enclosed), shed roofs, room extensions, etc. have not been permitted. Such have multiplied 

over time without enforcement or resolution. In addition to many of these additions and alterations 

being visually unappealing, many have aggravated zoning violations and created violations of 

building Code as well as safety concerns. 

4. Accessory structures have also proliferated within the subdivision, many of which do not adhere to 

setbacks and other requirements. There are, in some cases, multiple accessory structures utilized by a 

single home, and the number and appearance of these structures has created contributed to visual 

clutter / crowding of property within the development. 

5. There are several non-licensed, abandoned and/or non-functioning vehicles, personal RVs and boats 

within the development. Many are parked within the required parking stalls and/or in yards on the 

grass. There are also functioning RVs and boats which are parked within required parking stalls. 

6. The owner has not enforced rules within the development requiring tenants to maintain structures and 

leased space. A majority of the homes within the development have one or more issues including 

boarded up or tarped areas, additions and roofs in disrepair, fences and outbuildings falling down, 

faded and peeling paint, and yards and landscaping not maintained. 

7. Animals running at large. 

8. Parking within rights of way and outside of dedicated driveways, combined with the substandard 

road width contributes to safety / emergency response concerns and makes plowing by City 

personnel within the subdivision difficult. 

9. Additional fire hydrants within the subdivision are necessary (see Northern Lakes Fire Protection 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  6 

 

District comment letter within Exhibit C). 

10. There are several lots adjacent to Coeur d’Alene Street with problems as discussed above. This is of 

additional concern to some due to the use of Coeur’ d’Alene Street as a primary route from Highway 

41 into the downtown district creating an unwelcoming entrance to downtown. 

11. Calls for service received by the Rathdrum Police Department within the subdivision (properties 

addressed on Bordon Court, Meadow Brook, Park Loop, parts of Coeur d’Alene Street  and part of 

4th Street) are more than double those received for adjacent areas (State Street, Parkway Street, Larch 

Street, Roth Court and half of 4th Street addresses) - over 355 calls in 2019 in Willow Creek vs. 109 

in adjacent area (see RPD comment letter and attachment in Exhibit C). 

Request:  The Applicant, who is within a contingency period of a contract purchase agreement with Idaho 

Contractors, is requesting approval to Re-Plat the 135 lots of Willow Creek subdivision owned by Idaho 

Contractors, with a Planned Unit Development (PUD) overlay. The Preliminary Plat and Planned Unit 

Development permit applications are being processed concurrently as a single project. The intent of the Re-

Plat and PUD are to resolve most of the zoning violations by removing the underlying individual lot lines 

and consolidating the property into eight (8) new lots (not including the 5 lots in separate ownership) with 

multiple mobile / manufactured homes on each lot. This is allowed within the Multifamily Residential zone 

district. The Re-Plat and PUD would further resolve floodplain / floodway issues, allowing some currently 

vacant (previously occupied) “home sites” to be utilized and also allow the addition of new manufactured 

homes to be placed within the re-platted subdivision through deviation of specific City standards. This 

proposal is being processed as a PUD as there are currently no specific provisions within City Code for 

manufactured home parks.  

A Planned Unit Development is designed to permit building and development flexibility which may consist 

of individual lots or it may have common building sites. Such is the proposal in this case where they are 

proposing multiple “home sites” on seven (7) of the re-platted lots. Common open space for recreational 

purposes may be an element of the development. This proposal includes common open space on the eighth 

(8th) lot – the .6 acre “park” lot. Such developments are allowed in conformance with Rathdrum City Code 

(RCC) Title 11, Ch. 4 §F.  

As part of the proposed Re-Plat the Applicant is requesting allowance of up to 182 “home sites” within the 

re-platted portion of the Willow Creek Subdivision (not including the five (5) lots in separate ownership). 

This is an “addition” of seven (7) “home sites”. These will be accommodated within the abandoned septic 

and drain field area along the southeast perimeter of the property. In addition, the Applicant is proposing that 

six (6) of the existing “home sites” which were either utilized / occupied in the past and/or provided with 

utility connections be combined into three (3) sites, resulting in a net increase of four (4) “home sites” more 

than have been previously utilized / occupied or provided utilities within the subject property – see Exhibit 

B, Appendix A Page 1. The underlying Multifamily Residential R-3 zoning allows for up to 26 residential 

dwellings per acre. The allowed project density for the area pursuant to the current zoning is approximately 

636 dwellings within the 22.01 acres (excluding right of way) within this project area. The proposal is well 

within the allowed density for the zone district at only 182 dwellings (approximately 8.3 units per acre).  

New utility connections will need to be installed to accommodate these new “home sites”, along with new 

driveways and landscaping. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  7 

 

Existing and proposed plats: 

 

 
Existing Plat 

Proposed Plat 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  8 

 

Once re-platted, the proposed 182 “home sites” will be located as follows (also shown within Exhibit B, 

Appendix A, Page 5): 

Table 2 

New Lot Number New Lot Area Number of Proposed 

Residences 

Average Home-Site Area 

Lot 1  .47 Acres 4 5,129 SF 

Lot 2 6.04 Acres 44 5,984 SF 

Lot 3 4.38 Acres 41 4,656 SF 

Lot 4 3.25 Acres 22 6,433 SF 

Lot 5 3.61 Acres 35 4,487 SF 

Lot 6 2.7 Acres 24 4,897 SF 

Lot 7 1.57 Acres 12 5,681 SF 

Total 22.01 Acres 182 5,269 SF 

 

The 8th lot is the .6-acre park. Homes are not to be placed within this lot. 

For comparison to the proposed average home site areas proposed, the City Council recently approved the 

Thayer Farms PUD with minimum individual lot sizes of 5,210 square feet, based on the recommendation of the 

Commission. 

Within the PUD overlay, the applicant proposes to make physical improvements to the area to address safety 

and aesthetics as follows:  

1. Improvement of the .6 acre “park” to create resident open space / recreation area with a 10’ x 10’ 

gazebo, a picnic table, one or two BBQs, a children’s play structure, basketball court, shade trees and 

open play field. Existing structures, courts, etc. are to be removed. Gravel parking may also be 

incorporated into the park area with two spaces accessed from the south side, and two from the north 

side. 

2. Installing new gravel parking areas, limited to two or three parking spaces per dwelling, and removal 

of existing over-graveled areas with replacement with topsoil and grass at each “home site”. 

3. Planting of City approved street trees along Coeur d’Alene Street south of Park Loop Drive within 

newly created yards separating parking areas. 

4. Installation of a six-foot tall white vinyl privacy fence along Coeur d’Alene Street north of Park 

Loop Drive. 

5. Installation of new entry signage to the development and directional signage within the development 

(not specified / depicted within application materials). 

6. Upgrade / replacement of mailboxes adjacent to the “park” area. 

7. Demolition of the Imhoff tank (abandoned septic tank) and other abandoned sewer infrastructure 

within the development, as necessary / required for placement of new homes. 

8. Institution of a “Paint Program” to work with residents to paint structures by offering free or low-cost 

paint. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  9 

 

The Applicant also asserts that they will provide enhanced management of the development through a 

possible on-site manager to be hired through an established residential management company, and by 

instituting and enforcing new community rules (see Exhibit B, Appendix C within the application materials). 

Such rules include, but are not limited to: requiring yard maintenance and mowing, allowing limited outdoor 

storage, requiring visible address numbers, requiring window treatments – ex. curtains, draperies and blinds 

– and prohibiting window coverings such as towels and blankets, limiting new accessory storage buildings to 

one per home site to match the primary structure, maintaining buildings, disallowing non-operational and 

non-licensed vehicles, prohibiting parking on lawns, limiting the number of “authorized” vehicles pursuant 

to the rental agreement for each home site, and placing requirements and restrictions for pets.  The Applicant 

has also stated that they will prohibit RVs and trailers within the development. The Applicant is asking that 

specific rules not be included within the PUD approval to allow for flexibility and updates over time. 

The Applicant is not proposing to remove, correct, or alter any existing structures within the development. 

The Applicant is requesting deviation from City Code as follows (please note that the Table provided by the 

Applicant within Exhibit A, Appendix B is not as comprehensive as found herein): 

Table 3 

Code Requirement / Section Proposed Deviation 

9-4-1 – 9-4-17 Development Impact Fee – all. Deviation to limit required fees to four (4) new 
home sites – the net gain of new utility 
connections after discontinuance of three of the 
existing “home site” utility services.   

11-4A-4 (F), R-3 Residential District, Lot Area, Density 
and Setback Provisions:  

 

1. Minimum lot area: Six thousand (6,000) square 
feet plus one thousand five hundred (1,500) 
square feet per each additional dwelling unit 
over one. 

NA. Proposed lots will exceed the minimum area. 
The smallest proposed platted lot is 20,473 SF in 
area. 

2. Maximum lot width to depth ratio: 1:2.5. Deviation to allow seven (7) consolidated 
building lots or “super blocks” proposed as 
shown within the application which will exceed 
the ratio. 

3. Minimum front yard: Twenty feet (20') 
measured from edge of street right of way to 
front of building. 

Deviation to allow minimum five feet (5’) front 
yard setback for new structures. Various existing 
structures which may be less than 5’ are 
requested to be grandfathered-in as long as they 
remain. Recommended conditions of approval to 
further define / refine the request and/or 
provide for mitigation of impacts have been 
provided as found in Exhibit G. 

4. Minimum side yard: Six feet (6’) wide. Deviation to allow zero feet (0’) side yard 
setbacks from property lines for new structures. 
Various existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. * See 
proposed standard following this section below. 

5. Minimum side yard flanking street of corner lot: 
Twenty feet (20') from street right of way. 

Deviation to allow zero feet (0’) for new 
structures. Various existing structures are 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  10 

 

requested to be grandfathered-in as long as they 
remain. Recommended conditions of approval to 
further define / refine the request and/or 
provide for mitigation of impacts have been 
provided as found in Exhibit G. 

6. Minimum rear yard: Ten feet (10') deep. Deviation to allow five feet (5’) rear yard 
setbacks from property lines for new structures. 
Various existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 
Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. * See proposed standard 
following this section below. 

7.  Maximum building height: Thirty-five feet (35') in 
height. 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

8. Maximum lot coverage: Thirty five percent (35%) Deviation to waive / modify the maximum lot 
coverage standard by limiting the number of 
dwelling units per lot and their setbacks from 
one another as found within the application 
materials.  

9. Minimum size for a single-family dwelling unit: Six 
hundred (600) square feet.  

Deviation to allow 256 square feet minimum 
dwelling size so that 8’ x 32’ “Park Model” 
homes can be utilized. 

10. Minimum driveway requirements: Twenty-five 
feet (25') in length, excluding sidewalks. 

Deviation to allow minimum twenty-feet (20’), 
with part of said length to be located within right 
of way. 

11. Setback requirements must be measured from 
legally established property line. 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

 * The Applicant is requesting that homes within 
the re-platted area be separated from one 
another by ten feet (10’). 

11-4A-4 (G), Residential District, Parking: See chapter 5 
of this title. 

Deviation is requested as found herein for RCC 
11-5. Please also see the parking schematic 
within Exhibit B, Project Narrative, Page 14. 

11-5-1, General Provisions and Performance Standards, 
General Standards: 

 

A. Right of way / Frontage Improvements: The 
following improvements are required along all 
adjacent and abutting rights of way or frontages 
of all land when it is developed. 1) Engineered 
stormwater management, 2) Improved driveway 
approaches, 3) Sidewalks and/or pathways, 4) 
Other frontage improvements. 

Deviation to waive / modify the requirements of 
this section is requested. The subdivision 
frontage improvements were developed in 1979 
and are to be unchanged, including for new 
“home-sites”. Stormwater infrastructure is in 
place for the subdivision, driveway approaches 
are requested to be modified to gravel as 
discussed herein, no sidewalks or pathways are 
present or proposed, limited street trees are 
proposed along a portion of Coeur d’Alene 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  11 

 

Street. Recommended conditions of approval to 
further define / refine the request and/or 
provide for mitigation of impacts have been 
provided as found in Exhibit G. 

B. Points of Access: shall be constructed and 
maintained under approved design. 1) Fifty 
percent (50%) of the lot’s frontage shall be 
retained in stormwater swales or planting strips, 
2) Approaches shall meet width, separation and 
setback standards. 

Deviation to modify the requirements of this 
section is requested. The Applicant proposes to 
install new driveways as shown within Exhibit B, 
Project Narrative, Page 14 and recommended 
conditions of approval to further define / refine 
the request and/or provide for mitigation of 
impacts have been provided as found in Exhibit 
G. 

C. Visibility at Intersections: Structures on corner 
lots shall be located 25 feet (25’) from property 
corners. 

Deviation to waive the requirements of this 
section is requested. Recommended conditions 
of approval to further define / refine the request 
and/or provide for mitigation of impacts have 
been provided as found in Exhibit G. 

D. General Provisions for Fencing: Allowed types, 
heights and required maintenance. 

NA. No deviations are requested. Various 
existing fences are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 

E. Architectural projections: Open structures such 
as porches, canopies, balconies, platforms, 
covered patios and similar architectural 
projections shall be considered part of the 
building and shall not encroach into the required 
side or rear setbacks more than one-third (1/3) 
the setback distance from the property line or 
across the property line where no setbacks are 
required. Eaves shall not encroach into required 
front, side or rear setbacks more than twenty 
four inches (24") or across the property line 
where no setbacks are required. 

NA. No deviations are requested. Various 
existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 
Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. 

F. Stormwater Management NA. No deviations are requested. An existing 
stormwater system was installed at the time of 
original plat infrastructure in 1979, appears to be 
functional, and is requested to be 
grandfathered-in. 

G. Hazards / Nuisances NA. No deviations are requested. 

H. Earthmoving Activity NA. No deviations are requested. 

11-5-1, General Provisions and Performance Standards, 
Residential Standards: 

 

A. Multi-Family Residential Use Standards: Multi-
family residential uses of five (5) or more 
dwelling units shall be required to meet 
commercial development and performance 
standards related to site plan reviews and 

Deviation to waive the requirements of this 
section is requested. Lots two (2) through seven 
(7) are proposed to have more than five (5) 
dwelling units per lot. The Applicant is 
requesting that the modified residential 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  12 

 

required site improvements, frontage 
improvements, parking, maneuvering, 
landscaping and buffering, and trash receptacles 
as detailed in section 11-5-3 of this chapter and 
as otherwise required by this code. 

standards as discussed herein be applied to the 
entire development and that the City accept the 
existing infrastructure. 

B. Residential Landscaping: It is the intent of this 
section to protect and preserve the appearance, 
character and value of surrounding 
neighborhoods. Residential development should 
complement the visual character of the 
landscape and not cause visual deterioration or 
destruction so as to be an asset to the 
community. Minimum requirements are set 
forth below: 

Deviation to modify the requirements of this 
section is requested as found below. The 
Applicant also requests that such modified 
standards apply to the entire development.  

1. a. Not more than fifty percent (50%) of any 
yard adjacent to, fronting on or flanking a 
street shall be impervious surfacing, 
including but not limited to pavement 
(concrete, asphalt) pavers and gravel. Such 
surfacing shall exclude public sidewalks / 
pathways and private pathways of up to five 
feet (5') in width which provides entrance to 
the dwelling(s) on the property. Provisions 
for maintaining stormwater on the property 
shall be provided for all impervious surfaces. 

Deviation to allow for modified impervious 
surfacing for parking areas is requested as shown 
within Exhibit B, Project Narrative, Page 14, and 
recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. Stormwater infrastructure for 
the development is existing and no public 
sidewalks or pathways are existing or proposed. 

1. b.   Any yard adjacent to, fronting on or 
flanking a street which is not covered with 
impervious surfacing shall be landscaped. 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

1. c.   "Landscaped," "landscaping" or 
"landscaped area" shall mean that area of 
land covered with at least seventy-five 
percent (75%) living vegetative material such 
as lawn grass, ground cover, trees, shrubs, 
vegetables and flowers, and which may 
incorporate up to twenty-five percent (25%) 
ornamental landscaping materials. 
            i.   Ornamental landscaping materials 
which may be utilized include round or 
irregular rock which allows for water 
infiltration, boulders, landscape bark (note 
that the City recommends landscape bark 
should not be located within five feet (5') of 
structures to reduce fire hazard) and mulch, 
including rubber mulch. Rock or 
unwashed/unscreened gravel with "fines" 
(finely crushed or powdered material) and 
artificial turf shall not be utilized. 
            ii.   Installation of landscaping shall 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/rathdrumid/latest/rathdrum_id/0-0-0-7604#JD_11-5-3


Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  13 

 

include preventive measures intended to 
reduce the necessary maintenance activities, 
particularly the incidence of weed growth. 
            iii.   Xeriscape landscaping may be 
utilized to reduce the required vegetated 
area to fifty percent (50%) upon City 
approval of a detailed landscape plan which 
demonstrates compliance with the "City of 
Rathdrum Xeriscape Guide" as adopted by 
the city council and subject to the other 
provisions of this Chapter. 

1. d.   Trees: One tree shall be planted within 
each yard area of each public street frontage 
of each residential lot. One tree shall be 
planted for each dwelling unit's public street 
frontage for duplex lots. Trees may be 
planted in stormwater swale/treatment 
areas only when they do not interfere with 
the drainage function of the swale / 
treatment area. 
Required landscape trees shall be trees 
selected from the landscape standards 
manual adopted by the city council and shall 
have a minimum size at time of planting as 
follows: (Table provided within Code). 
Existing trees on a site should be retained to 
the maximum extent possible. Credit may be 
given for incorporating existing trees into 
the landscaping design if it meets the intent 
of this section. 

Deviation to allow existing “home sites” to be 
excluded from this standard is proposed 
Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. 

2. A permanent, underground and automatic 
irrigation system including an approved 
backflow prevention device shall be installed 
and permanently maintained in all required 
landscaped areas for new residential 
development. 

Deviation to exclude this requirement is 
requested. There are no existing sprinkler 
systems within the development and none are 
proposed. 

3.  It is the responsibility of the property owner 
or tenant to ensure all lawn and landscaped 
areas shall be continuously maintained in a 
healthy growing condition, which shall be a 
pest-free condition (free of harmful insects, 
diseases, and weed infestations). If living 
tree, shrub and/or other plant materials are 
damaged or destroyed by any means, they 
shall be replaced with suitable materials in 
suitable quantities. The property owner or 
tenant shall ensure that lawn grass height 
does not exceed ten inches (10") in height 

NA. No deviations are requested. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  14 

 

and that other vegetation is maintained to 
prevent intrusion into right-of-way or 
adjacent property. No vehicle, trailer, 
recreational vehicle or structure shall be 
placed, parked or stored within any required 
lawn or landscaped area. 

4. Certificate Of Occupancy: No certificate of 
occupancy shall be issued until replacement 
of topsoil and planting of required trees has 
been completed, except where a 
"provisional certificate of occupancy" is 
approved. 

Deviation from the requirement to plant trees is 
requested as found above. Recommended 
conditions of approval to further define / refine 
the request and/or provide for mitigation of 
impacts have been provided as found in Exhibit 
G.  

5. Provisional Certificate Of Occupancy: The 
administrator may authorize a delay in the 
completion of landscaping or tree planting 
due to causes beyond the control of the 
developer provided an appropriate 
performance surety in the amount of one 
hundred fifty percent (150%) of cost 
estimates for the required installation is in 
place. In no event shall a final certificate of 
occupancy be issued until all required 
improvements have been constructed in 
accordance with accepted standards. 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

6. Administrative relief of landscaping 
requirements may be granted by the 
administrator based on standards detailed in 
RCC 11-5-3 A5; however, additional 
landscaping provisions may be required. 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

C. Residential Driveways, Approaches And Parking 
Requirements: Residential driveways, 
approaches and parking shall meet the following 
standards:  

 

1.   Not more than fifty percent (50%) of the lot 
frontage shall be driveway or impervious 
surfacing (including gravel) as found in B.1.a. 
of this Chapter. 

Deviation to waive / modify the requirements of 
this section is requested. Driveways to 
accommodate up to 3 cars, side by side, of at 
least 27-feet in width are requested (excluding 3-
foot wings), while the minimum landscape area 
between driveways is proposed at only 20-feet 
minimum. Recommended conditions of approval 
to further define / refine the request and/or 
provide for mitigation of impacts have been 
provided as found in Exhibit G. 

 2.   Driveway Length: Residential driveways shall 
be a minimum of twenty five feet (25') in 
length, or shall be paved to the front of the 
garage, whichever is greater, exclusive of 

Deviation to allow driveways of a minimum of 
twenty feet (20’) in length, partially located in 
right of way is requested. There are no sidewalks 
or pathways present or proposed. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  15 

 

any sidewalk or pathway. Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G.  

3.   Approach: Only an approved approach as 
described within this title shall be utilized to 
access property from right-of-way. Vehicles 
shall not cross over stormwater drainage 
easements and/or planting strips, 
unreinforced sidewalks, or other areas not 
permitted and intended as paved driving or 
parking surface. 

Deviation to allow gravel approaches and 
driveways is requested. Recommended 
conditions of approval to further define / refine 
the request and/or provide for mitigation of 
impacts have been provided as found in Exhibit 
G. 

4.   Driveway Width: The minimum driveway 
width shall be ten feet (10') of driving surface 
and the maximum driveway width within the 
approach, stormwater swale/landscape strip 
and sidewalk area shall be thirty feet (30') of 
driving surface, plus six feet (6') for wings. 

NA. No deviations are requested. Driveway 
widths would be limited to thirty feet (30’) width 
within right of way – the maximum proposed 
width per parking area is twenty seven feet (27’), 
plus wings. Recommended conditions of 
approval to further define / refine the request 
and/or provide for mitigation of impacts have 
been provided as found in Exhibit G. 

5.   Off Street Parking: A minimum of two (2) off 
street parking spaces shall be provided per 
single-family residential dwelling unit. 
Driveways meeting standards set forth herein 
constitute parking space(s), however, garages 
shall not constitute a parking space(s) for the 
purpose of this requirement. Parking shall not 
block sidewalks or pathways. 

Deviation of driveway specifications to allow 
gravel is requested for provision of parking stalls. 
A minimum of two (2) stalls per dwelling are 
proposed. Recommended conditions of approval 
to further define / refine the request and/or 
provide for mitigation of impacts have been 
provided as found in Exhibit G. 

D. Alternate Approach Standards For Duplexes: NA. No deviations are requested. 

E. Corner Lot Yard Definition And Setback 
Interpretation: 

Deviation to waive / modify the requirements of 
this section is requested as found within RCC 11-
4A-4 (F) (5) above. Non-traditional lot and 
structure configuration is proposed. 

F. Conversion Of Dwelling To More Units: NA. No deviations are requested. 

G. Parking And Storage Of Unlicensed And 
Recreational Vehicles: Automotive vehicles of 
any kind or type without current license plates, 
non-operational vehicles, recreational vehicles, 
boats or trailers shall not be parked for more 
than forty-eight (48) hours or stored in the 
required parking area or required front yard 
and/or yard adjacent to a flanking street on any 
residentially zoned property. No recreational 
vehicle, boat or trailer of any description 
whatsoever which is unlicensed or non-
operational shall be stored on a residential lot 

NA. No deviations are requested. Recommended 
conditions of approval to further define / refine 
the request and/or provide for mitigation of 
impacts have been provided as found in Exhibit 
G. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  16 

 

other than in a completely enclosed building or 
carport, with the exception that one (1) 
unlicensed boat and one (1) unlicensed travel 
trailer may be stored in an interior side yard (not 
a required flanking side yard) or rear yard. 

H. Garages: Deviation to waive the requirements of this 
section is requested. No garages are present for 
existing dwellings, nor proposed for new 
dwellings. 

I. Accessory Structures: Residential accessory 
structures present recurring issues concerning 
their relationship with surrounding land uses. 
The following performance standards shall apply 
in addition to all other provisions of this title: 
Shall not be located in front yard or street side 
yard, allowance of exceptions to setbacks for 
side and rear property lines based on size, size 
limits, height limits and right of way 
improvements for vehicular access. 

NA. No deviations are requested. Various 
existing structures (sheds) are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 
Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. 

J. Home Occupation: NA. No deviations are requested. 

K. Manufactured Homes: Manufactured homes 
shall be considered single-family dwellings and 
shall be permitted as a principal use in all 
residential districts. Manufactured homes placed 
in any residential district shall be subject to all 
residential standards set forth in this title and 
title 9, "Building Regulations", of this code. 
1.   Development Standards For Manufactured 
Home On Individual Lot: The following standards 
are in addition to those applicable in the zoning 
district where a manufactured home is located: 

 

a.   Shall be designed for long term use by a 
residential household, contain a kitchen, bath, 
living and sleeping facilities, be multi-sectional 
and meet minimum square foot, bulk and 
setback requirements for the zoning district. 

Deviation is requested to allow single-section 
manufactured homes which meet the minimum 
square foot, bulk and setback requirements as 
discussed herein (may include deviation). 
Various existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 
Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. 

b.   Shall be placed on an excavated and 
backfilled foundation and enclosed at the 
perimeter such that the home is located not 
more than twelve inches (12") above grade. 

Deviation to waive this requirement is requested 
to allow homes to meet the requirements of the 
City’s Floodplain Ordinance and FEMA 
Publication P-85, Protecting Manufactured 
Homes from Floods. Recommended conditions 
of approval to further define / refine the request 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  17 

 

and/or provide for mitigation of impacts have 
been provided as found in Exhibit G. 

c.   Shall have a pitched wood, asphalt or metal 
shingle roof with a minimum slope of two to 
twelve (2:12) and a minimum of six inch (6") 
eave or gutter and eave attached to the entire 
perimeter of the roof. 

Deviation to waive this requirement is 
requested.  Recommended conditions of 
approval to further define / refine the request 
and/or provide for mitigation of impacts have 
been provided as found in Exhibit G. 

d.   Shall have vertical and/or horizontal 
aluminum, vinyl, simulated wood or wood 
siding. 

Deviation to waive this requirement is 
requested. Recommended conditions of 
approval to further define / refine the request 
and/or provide for mitigation of impacts have 
been provided as found in Exhibit G. 

e.   Shall be permanently affixed with the 
running gear and towing hitch removed, and set 
upon a foundation approved as required by 
Idaho Code, and have an anchoring system that 
is totally concealed under the structure. 

NA. No deviations are requested. Various 
existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 

f.   Shall have a poured concrete or mortared 
enclosure, or aluminum, vinyl, simulated wood 
or wood siding consistent with the exterior 
siding of the home, which surrounds the entire 
perimeter of the structure and completely 
encloses the under area which contains the 
blocking and anchoring system. 

NA. No deviations are requested. Various 
existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. 

g.   Shall have a garage and driveway as required 
in other sections of this code. 

Deviation to waive this requirement is requested 
as found herein. 

h.   Shall obtain a setting permit from the city to 
demonstrate the home is assembled on site to 
the standards regulating the anchoring of the 
structure to its foundation and other building 
requirements. Upon completed setup, the 
manufactured home shall be assessed as real 
property and taxed as such on the required 
records. 

Deviation to change the language of this 
requirement is requested as follows: 
Shall obtain a setting permit from the city to 
demonstrate the home is assembled on site to 
the standards regulating the anchoring of the 
structure to its foundation the ground and other 
building requirements. Upon completed setup, 
the manufactured home shall be assessed as real 
personal property, and taxed as such on the 
required records and billed to the owner of the 
home (generally the Home Site Tenant). 
Recommended conditions of approval to further 
define / refine the request and/or provide for 
mitigation of impacts have been provided as 
found in Exhibit G. 

i.   Shall comply with state of Idaho 
manufactured home installation standards. 

NA. No deviations are requested. 

11-5-3 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family and 
Institutional Standards. The following standards where 
applicable for the proposed use of the property in 
addition to other provisions of this title, shall be 

Deviation to waive this entire section, 
subsections A through I, is requested, including 
but not limited to requirements for landscaping, 
off-street parking standards, parking lots, 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  18 

 

addressed in the commercial site plan review process: loading, exterior lighting and trash receptacles. 
The Applicant requests that the development be 
subject to the Residential Standards of 11-5-2 as 
may be deviated from as found within the 
decision for this PUD. 

11-5-4 Site Plan Review Deviation to waive this entire section, 
subsections A through H, is requested. 

13-5 Flood Damage Prevention. NA. No deviations are requested. Various 
existing structures are requested to be 
grandfathered-in as long as they remain. The 
Applicant does not propose to retrofit existing 
structures. Recommended conditions of 
approval to further define / refine the request 
and/or provide for mitigation of impacts have 
been provided as found in Exhibit G. 

The complete project description is available in Exhibit B attached hereto as supplied by the Applicant.  

Exhibit A attached hereto includes policy developed by City staff which is currently followed to address 

violations and issues within the development. The intent of the deviations above are to address the policy. 

PROJECT REVIEW   

City planning and public works staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission have reviewed the proposed 

subdivision. This report reflects an overview of the proposed preliminary subdivision based on the submitted 

application materials, public hearing for the proposal, comments received, the file of record from the existing 

development, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, and other information available at 

the time of this report. The project is subject to modification prior to final action of the Council. 

Public Hearing / Public Comments: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing for this proposal on June 17, 2020 (see process 

information within PUD below).  

During the meeting Paul Luber of Seneca Investments and Gordon Dobler, P.E. of Frame & Smetana 

Engineering, the Applicant’s representatives, provided an overview and presentation outlining their proposal. 

They discussed working and meeting extensively with City staff (City Administrator, Public Works Director 

and City Planner) to address identified conditions in Willow Creek communicated by stakeholders, including 

the Commission and Council. They intend to provide solutions for the zoning / setback issues, floodplain and 

floodway issues, dealing with the appearance of the park, excessive vehicles, RVs and travel trailer, yard 

clutter, home appearances and lack of tidiness. Their intent is to remedy all of these issues through some 

physical improvements and improved management and keep Willow Creek as a mobile home park to provide 

workforce housing that is clean, safe and affordable. The Applicant’s Power Point presentation provided 

during the public hearing has been included in the Council packet for further information within Exhibit H.  

Following the Applicant’s presentation City staff presented the Staff Report and clarified questions of the 

Commission. Following staff’s presentation public testimony was heard. The following public testimony was 

received:  

1. Sara Bennett, 15073 N. Coeur d’Alene Street, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally – Ms. Bennett lives in Willow Creek and reiterated her concerns as stated in her written 

comment provided to the Commission and included in attached Exhibit D. Her concerns are primarily Coeur 

d’Alene Street traffic speed, crosswalk and no parking on the north side for visitors. She is concerned that the 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  19 

 

City may limit her parking area to two vehicles and she and her husband have three. 

2. Kathy Taylor, 8349 W Meadowbrook, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally – Ms. Taylor lives across from the vacant lots where the septic field was located. She is glad 

the Imhoff tank will be demolished but is concerned about additional mobile homes across the street with 

only five-foot setbacks from one another and the fire danger. The area is currently used for BBQing and play 

area. She is also concerned about guest parking. 

3. Jennie Leonard, 8149 W 4th Street, Rathdrum, ID 83858 

Spoke Neutrally – Ms. Leonard lives behind the vacant lots where the septic field was located. She agrees 

that the area is used for a play area. She is concerned about the fencing owned by Willow Creek which backs 

her property also. 

The Applicant’s representative, Paul Luber, provided rebuttal to address public comments and clarify staff’s 

recommended conditions of approval, notably limiting parking on Coeur d’Alene Street to two parking stalls 

(they can work with the owners), spacing of the new homes in the septic area (350’ long allows an average of 

50-feet wide space per home), the use of the area for recreation (they are improving a comparable sized area 

for use and Stub Meyer Park is across 4th Street) and guest parking (they will be putting them throughout the 

development as space allows). Staff also addressed concerns about Coeur d’Alene Street speed limit sign and 

crosswalk (will inform the Public Works Director to evaluate), no parking (had been previously signed no 

parking and was re-signed after stormwater swales installed with development there), and additional parking 

for residences on Coeur d’Alene. Clarifying that dwelling will be required to be at least ten-feet apart and 

there will be a new fire hydrant installed in the area and other improvements are intended to enhance 

emergency response (including dealing with parking). 

Mr. Luber then addressed staff to offer a change to suggested Condition of Approval #25 to allow a third 

parking stall for those homes on Coeur d’Alene Street to be provided front to back, without widening the 

parking areas. Verbiage was discussed with staff and the Commission and agreed to.  

Consistency Analysis Comprehensive Plan: The relevant goals and policies established within the 

Rathdrum Comprehensive Plan that pertain to the proposal are listed in Table 4 attached hereto as Exhibit F. 

Also included is an analysis of whether the proposed project is generally consistent with the requirements of 

those goals and policies.  

Consistency Analysis Rathdrum City Code (RCC):  Several titles of City Code provide regulations for the 

proposal. Those portions of the RCC that pertain to zoning and development standards for the proposal are 

included in Table 3 above. Included is an analysis of how the proposed project is to deviate from such 

standards (or not). Those provisions of Code which pertain to preliminary plat and PUD standards, along 

with regulatory compliance are found below.  

PUD: RCC 12-3-2 contains preliminary plat standards, including the materials required to be provided and 

what is to be shown on the maps, numbered A through S. Staff has determined that the preliminary plat is 

generally compliant with the requirements, or can conform with minor revisions. 

RCC 11-4F includes the requirements for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) (Overlay District). Staff has 

reviewed and determined that the proposal is, or can be, in compliance with the requirements as determined 

by the Commission and Council as follows: 

1. 11-4F-3, Density Provisions. The gross density of a PUD shall not exceed the requirements of the 

underlying zone(s), however, the density provisions in a PUD may vary from that required in the 

underlying zone if through the use of topography, location, or design, the structures will not impinge 

upon the privacy of adjacent existing structures. Common open spaces shall be included when 

determining gross density. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  20 

 

The project is located in a residential multifamily zoning district which allows gross density of 

approximately 636 dwelling, or 26 dwellings per acre (excepting therefrom is right of way). The 

proposed project density is 182 dwellings, or approximately 8.3 dwellings per acre. 

If a PUD is located in more than one zoning district, the space and density requirements shall be 

calculated separately. The distribution of dwellings or other land uses within the PUD shall not be 

affected by the zoning district boundaries. 

The project is located in a residential multifamily zoning district. 

The proposed location and arrangement of structures shall be compatible with existing adjacent 

dwellings and existing or proposed neighborhood developments. High-rise buildings shall be located 

within the PUD in such a manner so as not to create any adverse impact on adjoining low-rise 

buildings. 

The proposed arrangement of structures is compatible with the existing layout within the existing 

Willow Creek development. No high-rise buildings are proposed. 

A PUD shall not be permitted unless adequate Municipal water and sewer services are available. All 

improvements within the PUD shall meet current City standards.  

Water and sewer services connected to Municipal services are present or will be extended to the new 

dwelling spaces within the project by the developer. All on-site utilities will remain in private 

ownership and any new improvements will be required to meet current City standards as determined 

by the Public Works Director, including but not limited to construction and capitalization / impact 

fees. Recommended conditions of approval to address the requirements have been included. 

2. 11-4F-4, Perimeter Requirements. If topographical or other barriers do not provide adequate 

protection for existing uses adjacent to the PUD, the City may impose either, or both, of the 

following requirements: 

A. Structures located within the perimeter of a PUD development must be set back by a distance 

sufficient to protect the privacy and amenity of adjacent existing uses. 

B. Structures located adjacent to the perimeter of the PUD shall be permanently screened.  

The perimeter of the development is located either adjacent to rights of way or similar development. 

Limited fencing along Coeur d’Alene Street is proposed. Recommended conditions of approval to 

address the requirements have been included. The Council may impose additional requirements to 

meet with section. 

3. 11-4F-5 Common Open Space.  

A. If common open space is included in the proposal, the City shall not approve a PUD unless 

the following standards are met: 

1. The location, shape, size and character of the common open space shall meet the 

needs of the PUD. 

2. The uses intended for the common open space must be appropriate to the scale and 

character of the PUD considering its size, density, expected population, topography, 

and the number and type of dwellings or uses to be provided. 

3. Access to the common open spaces should be provided to all properties within the 

PUD. 

4. Common open space should be suitably improved for its intended use, but common 

open space containing natural features, existing trees, and ground cover worthy of 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  21 

 

preservation may be left unimproved. The buildings, structures and improvements 

which are permitted in the common open space shall be appropriate to the uses which 

are approved and shall conserve and enhance the amenities of the common open 

space. 

5. A development schedule must coordinate the improvement of the common open 

space and the construction of all buildings within the PUD. 

6. The use and improvement of the common open space shall be planned in relation to 

any existing public or semi-public open space which adjoins or is within one 

thousand feet (1,000') of the perimeter of the PUD. 

It shall be the responsibility of the Commission and City Council to determine if the location, shape, 

size and character of the proposed common open space will meet the needs of the PUD, is 

appropriate in scale and character, and will be coordinated appropriately into the development 

schedule. Recommended conditions of approval to address the timing of installation of common 

space elements have been included. 

B. All land shown on the final development plan or plat as common open space which is not 

dedicated to the public shall be conveyed to an individual or organization responsible for 

ownership and maintenance of the open space. The form of ownership and maintenance must 

be approved by the City Council prior to recording the final development plan. The 

individual or organization shall not dispose of the common open space without the written 

approval of the City Council. 

The park lot is to be maintained as common open space. Recommended conditions of approval to 

address this requirement have been included. 

C. In evaluating the uses proposed, area requirements, density and open space within the PUD, 

the City shall additionally consider the following factors: 

1. Access to the planned unit development; 

2. Traffic congestion on the streets which adjoin the PUD; 

3. The burden on public facilities which serve or are proposed to serve the PUD. 

The City Council shall evaluate access, traffic congestion and burden of public facilities which serve 

the PUD. Recommended conditions of approval to address this requirement have been included. 

4. 11-4F-6: Public Notice Procedures. See Regulatory Compliance below. 

5. 11-4F-7-A, Criteria for Approving a PUD, Commission Review, the Commission shall review the 

proposal for the following standards and shall find adequate evidence showing that such use is 

compliant: 

A. Is consistent with the intent and purposes of the Rathdrum Zoning Ordinance and 

Comprehensive Plan; 

B. The proposed PUD advances the general welfare of the community and surrounding 

neighborhood; 

C. The benefits and combinations of various land uses and their interrelationship with the 

surrounding area justify the deviation from standard zoning district regulations; 

The Commission shall then forward its findings and recommendation to City Council for 

consideration. 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  22 

 

The Commission has determined that the proposal is in compliance with this section. The 

Commission’s recommendation has been forwarded to the Council by the Planning and Zoning 

Administrator in compliance with Code. 

Plat / Regulatory Compliance: RCC 12-3-1-5, 12-3-1-6, and 11-4F-6 lay out the process which is followed 

for preliminary plat of a major subdivision (long plat) and PUD requirements and public hearing.   

12-3-1-5, Plats and Plans, Requirements:  The Applicant submitted an application on May 15, 2020 A 

hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission was scheduled not less than 20 days after determining 

the application was complete and consistent with RCC 12-3-2, Preliminary Plat Standards, for June 17, 2020. 

Approval of civil infrastructure plans and a pre-construction meeting will be required with the public works 

department prior to construction of any infrastructure necessary for this plat. 

12-3-1-5, Plats and Plans, Adequacy of Plats and Plans:  Staff reviewed the application and determined that it 

was complete and substantially meets the standards set forth in this section. 

12-3-1-5, Plats and Plans, Distribution of Plats and Plans:   The Applicant provided a description of the 

proposal and invitation to provide comment to the required agencies on April 21, 2020: Lakeland School 

District, Northern Lakes Fire Department, Idaho Department of Environmental Quality, Panhandle Health 

District, Kootenai Metropolitan Planning Organization, Idaho Department of Transportation, City of 

Rathdrum Police Department, City of Rathdrum Parks and Recreation Department and Avista.    

Comments Received: Comments received are attached in Exhibit C. 

12-3-1-6, Public Hearing, Notice:  

At least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing, notice of the time, place and a summary of the proposal shall 

be published in the official newspaper of the city.  

Notice of the hearing, including time, place and summary of the proposal was posted in the Coeur 

d’Alene Record on June 2, 2020 in compliance with this section. 

Notice by regular mail shall be provided at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing to record property owners 

of land situated within three hundred feet (300') of the external boundaries of the land being considered, and 

any additional area that may be substantially impacted by the proposal as determined by the administrator.  

Notice by regular mail to all property owners of land situated within three hundred feet of the 

external boundaries of the proposal was provided on June 8, 2020 in compliance with this section. 

Notice shall further be posted on the concerned property at least seven (7) days prior to the public hearing. 

A Public Notice was posted on the property on June 8, 2020 in compliance with this section. 

Notice was also posted as a courtesy on the City’s web site and notice board outside of City Hall. 

All notices included the date, time and place of the hearing as well as a summary of the proposal, and the 

description and location of the subject property. 

The application has been processed in conformance with this Code.   

Furthermore, prior to the date of the public hearing, the City issued this written staff report, integrating any 

public comments received regarding the application, and made available to the public a copy of the staff 

report for review and inspection. A copy of the staff report was provided to the Applicant or the Applicant’s 

designated representative and the Planning Commission prior to the hearing.  



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  23 

 

11-4F-6, Public Notice Procedures: 

Not more than 60 days following the filing of the (completed) application, and prior to granting a PUD, a 

public hearing will be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission. Public notice of the hearing 

scheduled for June 17, 2020, including date, time and location of the hearing, was published in the official 

newspaper of record on June 2, 2020 (at least 15 days prior to the hearing), and mailed to property owners 

within 300-feet of the project boundary, posted on the property and City Hall, posted on the City web site, 

and sent to agencies with jurisdiction on June 8, 2020 (10 days prior to the hearing).  

RECOMMENDATION 

In its review, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered all relevant evidence and comments and 

determined the proposed PUD is consistent with the intent and purposes of Rathdrum City Code and the 

Comprehensive Plan, advances the general welfare of the community and surrounding neighborhood, and that the 

benefits justify deviation from standard zoning district regulations. In addition, the City of Rathdrum Planning 

and Zoning Commission determined that the proposed Re-Plat conforms to the general purpose of the 

Comprehensive Plan and there are existing provisions for streets, drainage and other requirements. The 

Commission recommends APPROVAL of the Preliminary Re-Plat subject to the recommended Conditions 

of Approval as found within Exhibit G attached hereto. Staff recommends the following findings of fact and 

conclusions of law for any approval of the proposed Re-Plat and PUD: 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law: 

1. The applicant seeks approval of a preliminary long Re-Plat and Planned Unit Development for 

portions of the Willow Creek subdivision. 

2. The applicant is Seneca Investments, Inc. representing the property owner, Idaho Contractors. 

3. The project is located in the Multifamily Residential (R-3) zone district. The property / project is 

appropriately zoned for the proposal. 

4. The site is currently developed. The intent of the Re-Plat and PUD is to address and/or correct 

existing violations and problems within the development. 

5. The proposal is subject to the requirements of Rathdrum City Code 11-4A-4, R-3 Residential 

District, 11-4F Planned Unit Development (PUD) (Overlay District), 11-5 General Provisions and 

Performance Standards, 12-3-3 Subdivisions, Long Plats and Title 13 Flood Damage Prevention. The 

proposal has been reviewed for compliance with the applicable Rathdrum City Code and has been 

determined to be compliant with the application of Conditions of Approval as recommended by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 

6. An open record public hearing before the Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Commission is required. A 

public hearing was held, after proper legal notice, on June 17, 2020. 

7. Testimony of the Applicant and public testimony was received during the hearing and considered by 

the Commission in formulating their recommendation in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-7. 

COUNCIL ACTION  

This Commission Report is being provided to the Council for consideration as soon as possible after their review 

in compliance with RCC 12-3-1-8 (A). The Council shall review the report and all other relevant evidence and 

take action to approve, reject the recommendation, or return the plat to the Commission for modification. 

Pursuant to RCC 12-3-1-8 (B), Council approval shall constitute authorization for the subdivider to develop 

detailed plans and specifications for the improvements and facilities of the subdivision and to prepare the final 

plat in strict accordance with the standards set forth by RCC Title 12 and any conditions imposed by the Council. 

 



Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC.doc  24 

 

Potential Motions:  The language set forth below is provided for guidance with no intent to suggest any specific 

action. 

APPROVAL:  I move to approve the proposal, finding that it is in accord with the recommended findings 

of fact, conclusions of law, and conditions of approval. I further move that minor deviations such as project 

phasing may be modified by the Planning and Zoning Administrator if in the option of the Administrator such 

do not change the nature of the approved project nor constitute a variance. The Administrator may require 

changes to be brought back for further Commission and Council review at their discretion. The Planning and 

Zoning Administrator shall provide a reasoned decision regarding this action to the Applicant.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (Optional): I further move that the following additional 

conditions be met in accordance with Rathdrum City Code:       

DENIAL:  I move to reject the proposal, finding that it is not in accord with Rathdrum City Code for the 

following reasons:     

STAFF CONTACT 

For more information regarding this application, the complete project file, including application materials 

and project history, is available for review at Rathdrum City Hall at 8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho, 

or by contacting Planning staff: 

Cary Siess, City Planner / Planning and Zoning Administrator 

City of Rathdrum Public Works Department, Planning Division  

8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 

Phone: 208-687-2700 x 117  

Email: cary@rathdrum.org 

  

Attached Exhibits: 

Exhibit A – Existing City Policy for Willow Creek 

Exhibit B - Project Narrative and Appendices  

Exhibit C – Agency Comments 

Exhibit D – Public Comments 

Exhibit E - Preliminary Subdivision Map 

Exhibit F – Table 4, Comprehensive Plan Analysis 

Exhibit G – Recommended Conditions of Approval 

Exhibit H – Seneca Investments Power Point Presentation, June 17, 2020 

 



Page 1 

Policy Memo 
To:   Rathdrum Building and Planning Staff 

From:  Cary Siess, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date:  June 20, 2019 (corrected / clarified May 2020) 

Re:  Willow Creek Subdivision 

The following policy has been developed using current Federal, State and local requirements, the plat of record, the 
file of record and historical decisions pertaining to this property. 

Pursuant to City records Willow Creek development – commonly called “Willow Creek Park” or “Willow Creek Mobile 
Home Park” - is a 140-lot platted subdivision. Over time more than 140 mobile homes were moved into the 
development (currently there are 186 mobile / manufactured homes and one RV total within the subdivision).  

At this time “Willow Creek Park” is comprised of 135 lots in the common ownership of Idaho Contractors, Inc., who 
rents the land and/or existing mobile / manufactured homes located on the land to tenants, and 5 lots are in other 
private or individual ownership - Lot 37, Block 2; Lot 20, Block 6; Lot 2, Block 6, Lot 1, Block 6; and Lot 8, Block 2. 
The privately owned lots appear to have a single manufactured home located on each lot while there are in some 
cases multiple manufactured homes located on the individual lots owned by Idaho Contractors, Inc. Many of the 
structures do not meet the required setbacks and are not in compliance with current manufactured home and 
floodplain regulations. 

Of the 135 Idaho Contractors lots, there are 5 lots (lots 6 through 10, Block 5) which contain the original sewage 
facilities for the subdivision, including but not limited to an Imhoff tank and lift station (facilities are primarily 
underground). The lots on either side of those lots (lots 5 and 11, Block 5) are vacant. The lots are currently utilized 
as a “park” area and some of the lots are not buildable at this time because of the existing sewage facilities. There is 
an additional platted park area, not included in the lot count, in the ownership of Idaho Contractors located at the 
western end of Block 4 that is not intended for placing homes. 

After extensive research and legal consultation, the City has determined that the Plat of Willow Creek Subdivision is 
and remains the governing document for the development. The utilities and roads within the subdivision are sub-
standard and there are more water and sewer service “connections” (as well as other utilities) within the subdivision 
than platted lots – 185 connections (lots 6 through 10, Block 5 were not provided connections because of the 
sewage facilities) vs. 140 lots. The roads within the subdivision were dedicated to the City at the time of platting, 
however the water and sewer lines located within the subdivision are privately owned and are not the responsibility of 
the City to maintain or replace. Historically the City has rejected any offers or attempts to dedicate the water and 
sewer lines to the public. The private water and sewer lines are tied into City utilities and are subject to all fees 
associated with such service. 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
Planning and Zoning Division 

8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 

 



Page 2 

 

Of the platted 140 lots, there are approximately 20 lots mapped by the current FEMA FIRM map as either entirely 
within or substantially effected by floodway. 

For the purposes of this Policy, the following definitions shall be applicable: 

“Lot” shall mean a legally recorded lot of record as shown on the plat of Willow Creek Subdivision and individually 
numbered by lot and block. 

“New” shall mean new to this location or moved from another location in the subdivision. 

“RV” shall have the same meaning as found within Rathdrum City Code 11-3-2. 

“Space” shall mean the an area of land occupied, previously occupied or intended to be occupied by an structure, 
RV, mobile home or manufactured home, and may include a lot, lots, or portions thereof. 

“Substantially altered” shall mean added on to, expanded in use, repaired, remodeled or otherwise altered, excepting 
as required by law, when such activities will constitute a value of seventy five percent (75%) of the value of the 
structure as determined by consideration of the assessed value. 

“Substantially damaged” shall mean (that the cost of renewal of the damaged parts exceeds seventy five percent 
(75%) of the cost of the replacement of the entire unit (exclusive of foundations) using new materials. 

“Unit” shall mean a structure, building, RV, mobile home or manufactured home and any attachment thereto, 
including but not limited to stairs, decks, and other appurtenant features. For purposes of this definition, “building” 
and “home” may be used interchangeably with “unit”. 

 

Policy 

The following standards are applicable to the subdivision1: 

1. Spaces within the subdivision shall not be rented to RVs, nor shall RVs be given any other type of permission 
or allowance for use for dwelling purposes.   

2. No new, substantially altered or substantially damaged unit shall be located within the floodway.  When any 
unit currently located within the floodway is substantially altered or substantially damaged, it shall be 
removed from the floodway within 30 days. Such unit shall not be placed in any location within the 
subdivision unless it conforms entirely to this Policy.  

3. When any unit currently located within the floodway is moved or removed for any reason, the space shall not 
be rented nor re-occupied by any structure. If a unit located in the floodway is sold, it shall be moved and the 
space cannot be rented nor re-occupied by any structure. All utilities for said unit or space shall be 
appropriately removed, capped and/or discontinued. 

4. When any unit currently located in the floodplain is moved, another unit or structure shall not occupy that 
space unless it meets FEMA elevation, City Floodplain Ordinance and construction requirements and 
conforms entirely to this Policy Memo. 

5. When any unit is substantially damaged by any means the unit shall be removed from the subdivision within 
30 days unless it conforms entirely to this Policy Memo. 

6. No unit shall be substantially altered unless it conforms entirely to this Policy Memo.  

7. New units shall meet the following setback requirements of the Plat – setbacks shall be measured from the 
legally established lot line: 

a. No structure, part thereof, or attachment thereto shall be located within 15-feet of the front lot line. 

 
1 Note that these requirements are specific to this subdivision and are not meant to provide a comprehensive list of every 
applicable law, regulation or code effecting the subdivision which shall be considered applicable in addition to this Policy. 



Page 3 

 

b. No structure, part thereof, or attachment thereto shall be located within 5-feet of any side lot line. 

c. No structure, part thereof, or attachment thereto shall be located within 10-feet of any rear lot line. 

d. No structure, part thereof, or attachment thereto shall be located within any legally established 
easement area or right of way. 

8. No more than one structure, part thereof, or attachment thereto shall be located on a single lot. Where an 
existing unit is located in a way that any portion thereof is located on more than one lot of record, no new unit 
shall be located on any of the lots which are occupied or partially occupied by that existing unit. 

9. When any unit which is currently located on more than one lot of record is moved or removed the space 
cannot be rented nor re-occupied by any structure. All utilities for said unit or space shall be appropriately 
removed, capped and/or discontinued.  

10. New units shall meet the following provisions: 

a. Shall be designed for long term use by a residential household, contain a kitchen, bath, living and sleeping 
facilities, be multisectional and meet minimum square foot (600 SF), bulk and height requirements. 

b. Shall be placed on an excavated and backfilled foundation and enclosed at the perimeter such that the 
home is located not more than twelve inches (12") above grade. 

c. Shall have a pitched wood, asphalt or metal shingle roof with a minimum slope of two to twelve (2:12) and 
a minimum of six inch (6") eave or gutter and eave attached to the entire perimeter of the roof. 

d. Shall have vertical and/or horizontal aluminum, vinyl, simulated wood or wood siding. 

e. Shall be permanently affixed with the running gear and towing hitch removed, and set upon a foundation 
approved as required by Idaho Code, and have an anchoring system that is totally concealed under the 
structure. 

f. Shall have a poured concrete or mortared enclosure, or aluminum, vinyl, simulated wood or wood siding 
consistent with the exterior siding of the home, which surrounds the entire perimeter of the structure and 
completely encloses the under area which contains the blocking and anchoring system. 

g. Shall have a garage as required by RCC 11-5-2(H) and a driveway, a minimum of 20-feet in length, which 
can accommodate two vehicles. Such driveway may be graveled as required by the Plat. Paved driveway 
surfacing is preferred. 

h. Shall obtain a setting permit or building permit from the City to demonstrate the home is assembled on site 
to the standards regulating the anchoring of the structure to its foundation and other building requirements. 
Upon completed setup, the home shall be assessed as real property and taxed as such on the required 
records. To obtain a setting permit from the City, the following shall be submitted: 

i. A Building Permit Application as required by the City; 

ii. A record of survey for the lot which has been recorded with Kootenai County; 

iii. An elevation certificate for the lot based on the building(s) siting proposal for any lots located 
within the floodplain (permits will not be issued for any floodway area); 

iv. A dimensioned site plan showing, at minimum, the dimensions of the lot, the placement and 
dimensions of the building(s) to be placed on the lot and any attachments thereto (such as decks, 
stairs, etc.), distance of the building(s) from property lines, and the location and dimensions of 
required parking; 

v. Anchoring details of the structure(s) to foundation(s); and 

vi. Structural specifications showing that the structure(s) meet the design loads for the Rathdrum 
area (for example snow, wind and seismic loads). 

i. Shall comply with State of Idaho manufactured home installation standards. 





 

 
Willow Creek Mobile Home Community 

 
 

Plat Revision &  
Planned Unit Development 

 
 

Project Narrative 
May 15, 2020  

 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY  
APPLICANT and ENGINEERING & PLANNING COUNSULTANT 

 
 

APPLICANT:     ENGINEERING & PLANNING COUNSULTANT
     
Seneca Capital Partners c/o  Frame & Smetana  
Willow Creek MHP, LLC   Gordon Dobler P.E. 
Paul Luber     Jack Smetana   
3001 Brighton Blvd Suite 334  603 N 4th St,  
Denver, Colorado 80216   Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814 

(720) 320–8033    (208) 755-9732 (M) (208) 664-2121 (O)  



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 2 of 19 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 
SECTION 1   Project Summary - Introduction and PUD Objectives……….. Page   4  

SECTION 2   History & Resolution of Plat Issues…………..………………. Page   5 

SECTION 3   Land Use……………………………………………………..…… Page   6 

SECTION 4   Plan to Improve Willow Creek MHC ………………………. …. Page   7 
   4.1  Improved Community Management – a Public Benefit ……... Page   7  
   4.2   Improvements – A Public Benefit ……………………………… Page   8  
   4.3   Existing Home Sites ……………………………………….…… Page   9 
   4.4   New Home Sites …………………….……………………..…… Page 10 
   4.5   Density ………………………………..………………….……… Page 11 

SECTION 5   PUD & 1981 Plat Revision ……………………………….…… Page 12 
         5.1  Plat Revision…………………………………………………….. Page 12 
         5.2   Super Blocks..………………………………………….………… Page 13  

SECTION 6   Parking………………………………………………………..…. Page 14  

SECTION 7   Code Analysis & PUD Performance Standards……………... Page 15  

SECTION 8   Placing & Replacing Homes in the Floodway & Floodplain… Page 16  

SECTION 9   Transportation & Roads…………………………..……………. Page 17  

SECTION 10  Utilities ……………………………………………………………. Page 17  
         10.1  Domestic Water, Fire Service & Sewer service……………… Page 17  

  10.2   Stormwater …………………………………………….………… Page 17  
  10.3   Dry Utilities….…………………………………………………… Page 17 

SECTION 11  Improvement Schedule………………………………………… Page 17  

SECTION 12  Applicant Team - Project Team & Strong Sponsor…………. Page 18  



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 3 of 19 

 
 

 
APPENDICIES  
 
APPENDIX A – Drawing & Diagrams  
 

Page # Title Purpose of / Notes on Diagram 

Page 1 1979 Plan Illustrates 185 Existing Home Sites 

Page 2 1979 Infrastructure Plan Infrastructure Plan for 185 existing Home Sites  
(Roads & Utilities) 

Page 3 1981 Plat 

140 Lots – Paper Lots – Paper Lots. 
Never Implemented.
Does not reflect actual existing Home Sites 
Infrastructure locations   

Page 4 2020 Re-Plat – Final Plat Exhibit 
Creates Super Blocks. 
Retains Original Blocks of 1981 Plat. 
Eliminates Individual Platted Lots    

Page 5 Willow Creek Home Site Exhibit Shows 182 Home Sites
= 177 Existing Homes Sites + 5 New Home Sites

Pages
 6 -8 Preliminary Plat Exhibit Shows 182 Home Sites & Setbacks

 (177 Existing Home Sites + 5 New Sites)    
 

 
APPENDIX B - Code Analysis & PUD Performance Standards. 
 
APPENDIX C – Model Rules & Regulations – Guidelines for Community Living  
 

 Topic R&R Section(s)
Parking 12, 17
Cars 12
Yard Cleanliness 3, 4, 7
Home Appearance 3, 4, 9, 10
Accessory Structures 3, 8, 13
Animals 14     



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 4 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 1. Project Summary - Introduction and PUD Objectives  
Seneca Capital Partners (“Applicant”, “SCP” or “Seneca”) is under contract to purchase the 
Willow Creek Mobile Home Park (“Community”). The Community is located in Rathdrum, ID 
between W Highway 53 and ID-41, west of Coeur d’Alene St. and north of 4th Street.  Applicant 
is currently in the contingent period of its purchase contract.  
 

As a condition to the Applicant committing to the purchase the Community, it is seeking the 
resolution of certain long-standing City concerns relative to the Community.  The Applicant and 
the City Staff have engaged in a dialogue to resolve these concerns. At the suggestion of the 
City Staff, Applicant is proposing a resolution by using the (i) PUD process, (ii) re-platting the 
existing subdivision plat and (iii) through improved operation of the Community.  The shared 
objective of the Applicant and the City are to provide attractive, safe, clean, affordable work-
force housing for an estimated 550 residents that call the City of Rathdrum their home.  
 
The Applicant’s business plan for the Community has two main components:  
 

1. Improve Property Operations   
2. Improve the Physical Property    

 
The Applicant a is respected and capable Manufactured Home Community owner and operator . 
The Applicant currently owns and operates nine manufactured housing communities with over 
1250 lots across the United States. With the addition of Willow Creek and another community in 
Hayden, these numbers will grow to 11 communities with over 1,450 lots.  
 
The Applicant has expertise in the renovation and rehabilitation of existing manufactured 
housing communities with an emphasis toward improved infrastructure and operations. 
Seneca’s overarching goal is to upgrade the quality of life for the residents of the community.  
Seneca acquires “2-star” parks and improves them to “3+ star” parks. Seneca has a strong track 
record of improving and enhancing communities. More information on the Applicant Team is 
shown in Section 12 on Page 18  
 
The objectives of the PUD, Re-platting  & Improved Community Operations are six-fold: 
 

PUD Provisions:   
 
1. Reconfiguration of the existing 1981 Plat (“Plat) through the re-platting process to 

resolve long standing lot line encroachment, setback issues and home site count issues. 
2. Allow for homes to be placed and replaced in the Floodway on the western end of 

the Community and in the balance of the Community and other vacant sites in the 
Community.  

3. Make physical Improvements to the Community to address safety, aesthetics and 
enhance the quality of life for the residents. 

4. Confirm 177 existing Home Sites plus 5 new Home Sites in a vacant section within 
the Community.    

 
Improved Community Operations  

 
5. Improve the operation of the Community relative to its current status in terms of (i) 

parking issues, (ii) yard clutter and (iii) Community aesthetics 
6. Improve aesthetics of the Resident owned homes in the Community.  



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 5 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 2 - History & Resolution of Plat Issues   
The Community was originally developed in 1979 as a manufactured home park according to 
the 1979 Plan which has 185 Home Sites. The roads and all utilities (water, sewer, gas and 
electric) were installed in the summer of 1979 based on the 1979 Plan. Despite the existing 
roads and utilities being installed for 185 Home Sites, three years later, in 1981, the owner at 
that time, sought and obtained approval by the City for the Willow Creek Subdivision Plat which 
had 140 lots. This Plat was recorded on August 3, 1981 (“Plat”). The Plat identified 45 less 
Home Sites than the 1979 Plan. The 1979 Plan, the 1979 Infrastructure Plan and the 1981 Plat 
are shown as pages 1, 2 and 3 in Appendix A.  
 
In 1984, Bud Ford of Idaho Contractors, the present owner, purchased most of the lots 
contained in the Plat.  He began to fill the Community with mobile homes according to the 1979 
Plan (185 Home Sites). Mr. Ford’s filling strategy was based on the location and number of 
utility hook ups (185 vs 140). This development of the property has led to multiple instances of 
homes straddling lot lines of the Plat or being positioned so as to not meet required lot line 
setbacks. There are 185 home sites vs. the 140 legal lots in the Plat (“Plat Issues”). 
Consequently, these Plat Issues have been in existence since the mid 1980’s; about 35 years.  
 
As a part of the resolution, the Applicant is proposing to re-plat the existing 1981 Plat (“Plat) to 
resolve these long-standing lot line encroachment, setback issues and home site count issues.  
The purpose is to acknowledge and recognize the 185 existing Home Sites that were 
constructed in 1979.  It is important to note that although the 1981 Plat is the current legal 
subdivision of the land, these are simply “paper lots” that have nothing to do with the actual 35-
year-old reality of the “facts on the ground”.  The 2020 Re-plat is shown on Page 4 of 
APPENDIX A. This RE-Plat is explained further in SECTIONs 5.1 and 5.2.     



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 6 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 3 - Land Use   
The subject property is an existing manufactured home park and the property is currently zoned 
R-3 Multi-Family Residential (High Density) according to the 2019 City of Rathdrum Zoning 
Map. Newly developed manufactured home parks are established according to PUD 
requirements per the City Code (“Code”). Applicant is seeking PUD approval of the existing 
property to accomplish the four objectives set out under “Project Summary - PUD Provisions” in 
Section 1 on Page 3, 
 
Surrounding Land Uses.   
The properties to the South and Southwest are zoned R-1 Single Family Residential. The 
Northwest side of the community abuts to the BNSF Railroad tracks and directly to the north is 
an Industrial District zoned parcel. Adjacent parcels to the northeast, east and south east are 
zoned R-2 Single Family & Duplex Residential (Medium Density). A few parcels located directly 
south of the park are also zoned R-3 Multi-Family Residential (High Density).  
 

Figure 1: City of Rathdrum Zoning Map 

 
 
The existing and proposed uses for Willow Creek are consistent with the existing zoning 
classification. The property is residential as is most of the surrounding land uses. The Applicant 
is proposing PUD performance standards shown in the Code Analysis in the APPENDIX B.  



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 7 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 4 – Plan to Improve Willow Creek MHC  
 
The Applicant’s plan for the Community has two main components:  
 

1. Improve Property Operations  
 

2. Improve the Property.    
 
SECTION 4.1 - Improved Community Management – a Public Benefit  
 
Primary City Concerns. The City and its stakeholders have expressed concerns including 
number of parked vehicles, manner of parking, debris in yards, accessory structures, home 
appearance and unpermitted structures. Applicant will address these issues with improved 
Community management and provisions of the PUD.  
 
Competent Local Management & Strong Oversight by Applicant. The Applicant will be 
successful at Willow Creek, by (i) recruiting a reputable first-class third-party management 
company whose primary business is mobile home park management and by Applicant’s 
attentive supervision that third-party manager.  This management company will be key to 
implementing the Applicant’s business plan.  The Applicant is currently identifying suitable 
candidates with an established presence in the Coeur d’ Alene/Spokane area.  
 
On-Site Manager.  Among other criteria, we will evaluate the competency of the Regional and 
Community Manager staff. We hope to arrange for the Community Manager to live on-site.   
 
Enforce Rules.  Another key selection criterion will be a manager’s willingness to enforce Rules 
and Regulations for the benefit of all residents. These enforcement efforts will be integral to 
managing parking and controlling clutter in yards. Rules and Regulations, no matter how well 
written, are only as good as the willingness of the Community Manager to monitor and enforce 
them for the benefit of all residents.   
 
The Model Rules & Regulations.  - APPENDIX C contains our Guidelines for Community Living 
for our 5 communities in Wisconsin. We intend to implement a similar set of rules and 
regulations at Willow Creek. Pertinent sections of the Rules & Regulations are shown below and 
are highlighted in APPENDIX C.  
 

 Topic R&R Section(s)
Parking 12, 17
Cars 12
Yard Cleanliness 3, 4, 7
Home Appearance 3, 4, 9, 10
Accessory Structures 3, 8, 13
Animals 14  
 
Not Part of PUD. The provisions of this SECTION 4.1 or APPENXIC C will not be a part of the 
PUD Record. The Applicant does not intend to incorporate its management approach or the 
Rules & Regulations into the PUD as there needs to be flexibility over time to modify 
management and rules and regulations to fit changing circumstances at the Community. 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 8 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 4.2 - Improvements – A Public Benefit  
 
Recreation Area and Open Space.  Applicant is proposing to create a 27,000 SF +/- resident 
open space recreation area in the center of the Community. It will occupy the area where 
current playground and tennis courts exist. Features will include:  

 
1. Play structure for kids,  
2. Gazebo with picnic table & a BBQ, 
3. Basketball court,  
4. Open play field for soccer or other sports activities.  
5. Shade trees.  

 
Other Improvements.   The Applicant also intends to: 
 

6. Limit parking to no less than two and on average less than 2.5 space per home Site.  
a. See SECTION 6 Parking - Figure 3 on Page 14 - Parking Schematic.    

7. Define parking areas by increasing green space throughout Community between 
driveways with grass areas.  

b. Remove extra gravel parking areas above 2.5 spaces per home.  
c. Place topsoil and grass over surplus parking areas.    

8. Plant City Approved street trees in newly created yards area between driveways on 
Coeur d’Alene Street south of Park Drive.    

9. Install a six-foot white vinyl privacy fence on Coeur d’Alene Street, north of Park Loop Dr.  
10. Install Improved directional signage within the Community for improved way finding & life 

safety.  
11. Install new entry signage.  
12. Mailboxes will be upgraded or replaced.   
13. The Applicant, through its Manager, will have “Paint Program” and work with residents to 

paint and otherwise improve the exterior of the tenant owned homes.   
d. The Paint Program will feature Applicant contribution of free or low-cost paint for 

use by the residents.  
e. Emphasis will be put on improving the appearance of homes on Coeur d’Alene St 

south of W. Park Loop Drive. 
14. Demolish the concrete “eye sore” Imhoff Tank at vacant area in connection with 7 new 

homes sites.   
 

 
The management approach in SECTION 4.1 and the investment in various improvements 
throughout the Community presented in SECTION 4.2 are key to implementing the Applicant’s 
strategy to improve the neighborhood curb appeal and to providing clean, safe, affordable 
workforce housing.    



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 9 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 4.3 – Existing Home Sites  
 
In return for the public benefits derived from:  
 

(i) community improvements, enhanced open space and  
(ii) improved Community Operations,  

 
the Applicant is proposing recognition 182 Home Sites, of which 177 exist and 5 new Homes 
Sites.  Refer to TABLE 1 below. As a reference, a comparison to the 1981 Plat is also 
presented.  
 

Existing Home 
Sites & 1979 Plan 

1981 Plat Lots Difference 

Total Existing Home Sites & Home Sites 
Illustrated on 1979 Plan  & 
# of Lots on 1981 Plat 

185 140 45

Less 5 Individually Owned Lots -5 -5 0

Willow Creek MHC Home Sites 
Owned By Seller 

180 135 45

Consolidate Small Existing Home Sites into 
adjacent Home Sites due to smaller size or 
irregular geometry (1)  

-3 0 -3

Home Sites Owned By Seller
 per '79 Survey (2) 177 135 42

New Homes Sites at Septic Area (3) 5 0 5

Number of Home Sites in PUD Application 
= 177 Existing Home Sites + 5 New Home 
Sites (3) 

182 135 47

TABLE 1 - Summary of Existing Home Sites, 1979 Plan & 1981 Plat  

(1) Home Site #'s on '79 Plan To Be Consolidated 
     Home Sites 11+10 , Home Sites 87 + 88 & Home Sites 95 + 96.   See '79 Plan - Page 1 of APPENDIX A.

(2) Among the 177 Home Sites, there are 10 Home Sites which are currently rented to 5 Tenants (5 double Home 
Sites). These tenants desire larger yards. In the future, if any of tenants move, Owner may opt to lease any of 
these 10 Home Sites individually as a Home Site. An example of this would be Home Sites 45 & 45 which is 
currently leased to a tenant with a "side set" double wide. See '79 Plan - Page 1 of APPENDIX A 

(3) 7 new Home Sites = 2 existing Home Sites (among the 177 Home Sites) on '79 Plan (Lot 75 & 81) + 
      five new Home Sites between Lot 75 & Lot 81. See '79 Plan - Page 1 of APPENDIX A.   

 
 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 10 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 4.4 - New Home Sites  
 
The Applicant is proposing to create five (5) new Homes Sites and to develop two (2) “existing 
Home Sites on the south side of the Community in the vacant former septic area.  The five new 
Home Sites are between Home Site 75 & Home Site 81. The 2 “existing” Home Sites are Home 
Sites 75 & 81 on the 1979 Plan and are among the 177 Home Sites.  The location of these 
Home Sites is shown on Page 1 and Page 5 of APPENDIX A.  
 
The dimensions of each new Homes Site will be approximately 48 feet by 97 feet.  These Home 
Sites are generous by mobile home community standards and can easily accommodate a 
double wide home.  This is typical of the existing home site sizes in the Community.  
 
These Home Site additions will have the added benefit of the demolition of the existing concrete 
bunker on Home Site 81.   



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 11 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 4.5 DENSITY 
Applicant acknowledges staff & others’ concerns regarding density.  Applicant believes that 
maximizing the open space in the center of the Community is best for the Public Interest.  
Applicant also believes that adding this very small number of Homes Sites in at the former 
septic field area will have minimal impact on the existing low-density feel of the Community.  An 
added benefit will be that these homes will be newer and therefore will improve the look and feel 
of the Community.  The Community even with the new home sites has low Density compared to:   
 

1. The permitted density under the R-3 Zoning.  
2. Golden Spike Development.  

 
With the addition of these five (5) Home Sites, the total Home Sites will increase from 177 to a 
total of 182 home sites in the Community.  This represents a nominal increase of less than 3% 
relative to the existing 177 Home Sites, which equates to 6.3 homes per acre.  This density is 
very spacious by national manufactured home community standards.  This density is much 
lower than permitted by the site’s current R-3 Residential zoning.  R-3 Residential density could 
easily accommodate multifamily units of 12 to 15 units per acre1  
 
A local density reference would be the 269-unit Golden Spike development which has a density 
of about 6.1 units per acre (without the inclusion of the open area under the power lines).  
 

Number of 
Home Sites 
(Existing + 
Proposed )

Area 
(Including Street 

& ROW) (1)  

Home Sites per 
Acre

Average SF per 
Home Site (2) 

Willow Creek                         182                           28.8                          6.3                     6,889 

Golden Spike 
w/o Open Space 
under power lines 

269                           44.3                          6.1                     7,181 

Golden Spike 
w/ Open Space under 
power lines 

269                           57.0                          4.7                     9,230 

Number of 
Home Sites 
(Existing + 
Proposed 

Area 
(Excluding Street 

& ROW) (3)  

Home Sites per 
Acre (4)

Average SF per 
Home Site (4) 

Willow Creek (3) 182                           22.0                          8.3                     5,269 

(2) - WC Density calc = Area from note 1 / Number of existing + proposed Home Sites 

TABLE 2 - Comparative Density - Willow Creek & Golden Spike 

TABLE 3 - Willow Creek Density (Using only Private Land - No ROW) 

(4) The density of  8.3 home sites per acres reflects density calculation without public ROW & is 
consistent with calculation of R-3 zoning  

(1) - Total Parcel Area: WC includes ROW & Streets LESS 5 Private lots. 
          For GS includes private roads. 

(3) The 22.014 Acres excludes the streets and undeveloped ROW. 

 

 

1 

R-3 Density Calc. - Assume 1 acre site & 2 story units with 600 SF/ Flr. + big 2 car garage 

Site Size (SF) 
Coverage 

Ratio 
Buildable 

Area 
Unit Living SF 
Size - 2 stories 

Unit Foot 
Print (1st flr.) 

2.5 car 
Garage 

Total Foot 
Print 

Unit Per 
Acre

43,560           35% 15,246        1,200                 600 500 1,100        13.86       



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 12 of 19 

 
 

 
SECTION 5 – PUD & 1981 Plat Revision  
 
The Applicant proposes to accomplish several things through the PUD & Revision to the 1981 
Plat.  The major objectives are:  

 
1. Re-plat the existing 1981 Plat (“Plat””) to resolve long standing lot line encroachment, 

setback issues and home site count issues. 
2. Allow for homes to be placed and replaced in the Floodway on the western end of the 

Community and in the balance of the Community and other vacant sites in the 
Community.  

3. Make physical Improvements to the Community to address safety, aesthetics and 
enhance the quality of life for the residents. This was discussed in SECTION 4.2  

4. Allow for 177 existing Home Sites plus 5 new Home Sites in a vacant section within the 
Community for a total of 182 Home Sites. 

5. Define PUD Performance Standards in order to accommodate new or existing conditions 
which Applicant cannot or will not be able to comply with relative to the Code or other 
regulations. 

  
SECTION 5.1 – Plat Revision  
As noted Section 2 on page 5, the Community was originally developed in 1979 according to the 
1979 Plan which has 185 Home Sites (Page 1 Appendix A).  These 185 Home Sites and the 
associated infrastructure exist today.  Despite the existing roads and utilities being installed for 
185 Home Sites, in 1981 the then current owner obtained approval by the City for the Willow 
Creek Subdivision Plat which had 140 lots. The Plat has 45 less Home Sites than the 1979 
Plan. The Plat is shown as (Page 2 Appendix A)  
 
As previously noted, this has led to some of the homes straddling lot lines of the Plat or being 
positioned such that required lot line setbacks are not met. There are 185 home sites vs. the 
140 legal lots in the Plat (“Plat Issues”).  
 
In order to solve these Plat Issues, the Applicant is proposing to re-plat the existing 1981 Plat 
(“Plat) As mentioned, the purpose is to acknowledge and recognize the 185 existing Home Sites 
(as modified in TABLE 1) that were constructed in 1979 
 
It is worth noting that the legal status of five (5) individual lots (owned by others aside from 
Idaho Contractors) which are a part of the 1981 Plat will be unaffected. These lots’ legal 
description and legal status will be the same after the re-plat of the Plat.  
 
 
 
 
 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 13 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 5.2 - Super Block   
In order to legally solve the home site count issue, encroachment issues and various setback 
issues, the Applicant is proposing to consolidate the existing multi-lot blocks of the 1981 Plat 
into ”Super Blocks”.  In essence, the legal lot lines inside the block would be deleted. The 
perimeter lot line (along the public roads) would remain the same.  Page 2 – Appendix A shows 
the 1981 Plat and Page 4 of Appendix A show the Super Block concept.          

 
a. Each of these super blocks will have a specified number of Home Sites, generally per the 

1979 Plan and the Home Site Count Exhibit.  
b. The number of Home Sites per Super Block will generally be equal to the number of 

existing Home Sites on each block (generally per the 1979 Plan).  
c. These Home Sites are generally illustrated on the 1979 plan (Page 1 APPENDIX A) and 

on the Home Count Exhibit (Page 5 APPENDIX A).   
d. A summary of the Home Sites by Super Block is shown below:  

Super Block # & Home 
Sites #'s from '79 Plan  (1)

Area of Each 
Super Block

 (SF)

Area of Each 
Super Block 

(Acres )

# Existing Home Sites 
For Each Super Block

(See Block 6 note)

Density w/o 
ROW 

(Home Sites/acre) 

Average SF / 
Home Site 

BLOCK 1 20,517                 0.47 4 8.5 5,129                    
BLOCK 2 

(Home Sites 1-8, 10-46)
263,277               6.04 44 7.3 5,984                    

BLOCK 3 190,880               4.38 41 9.4 4,656                    
BLOCK 4 141,526               3.25 22 6.8 6,433                    
BLOCK 5 157,034               3.61 35 9.7 4,487                    
BLOCK 6 

(Home Sites 62 - 85)(2) 117,525               2.70 24 9.8 4,897                    

BLOCK 7 
(Home Sites 48-59)

68,171                 1.57 12 7.7 5,681                    

Total Block 1 - 7 958,930              22.01 182 8.3 5,269                   

(1) Home Site numbers referenced below correspond to Lot #'s as shown on 1979 Plan.
(2) Block 6: 24 units = 5 new units at former septic field + 19 existing Home Sites. 
    For clarity, 5 new Home Sites at septic area are between Home Sites 75 & 81. Conceptually Home Sites 75 & 81 are also 
"new Home Sites".  
    The sum of 5 + 2 = 7 new Home Sites. 
    Lot 75 currently has the "Imhoff" Tank which will be demolished.  
    To best of Applicant's knowledge, Lot 81 has never had a manufactured home placed on it.       

TABLE 3 - Willow Creek Existing Home Sites & 1979 Plan 

 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 14 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 6 – Parking  
Applicant proposes to limit parking to 2.5 vehicles per Home Site (excluding Guest parking). See 
Figure 2 - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC below.  To the extent that current parking 
spaces are in excess of 3 spaces per home, Applicant will spread topsoil and plant grass on the 
extra parking spaces in order to convert these areas to green space within the Community.  
Applicant may vary the driveway configuration to address Home Site specific issues or desires 
of residents. As an example, two parking spaces could be arranged in a “tandem” manner. 
    
Applicant will not permit unauthorized overflow parking on vacant Home Sites.  Applicant 
reserves the right but is not creating an obligation to designate an open area in the Community 
for authorized guest or overflow or guest parking. The parking surface will be gravel.  This 
parking may be in excess of the proposed 2.5 spaces per Home Site. 
 
FIGURE 2 – Parking Schematic  
 

Two & Three Car Parking Schematic Willow Creek MHC - 05/06/20
Scale is proportional and approximate

(1) 20' minimum dimension assumes 50' Home Site. This measurement may be less for smaller or irregular Home Sites  

Car #2

Manufactured 
Home #2

Grass

Gravel Parking Area
Car #3Car #1  

20
'

27'20' Minimum

Grass

16'

Grass

M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d 
Ho

m
e 

#3
(h

al
fa

 h
om

e 
sh

ow
n)

13
'

Grass

3 cars / home

Manufactured 
Home #1

16'

Paved Public Road 24
'25
' R

O
W

[5
0'

 / 
2 

= 
25

']

Drive Way 
(3 spaces)

Drive Way 
(2 cars)

18'

Property
Line

20' Minimum (1)

 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 15 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 7 – Code Analysis & PUD Performance Standards. – Refer to APPENDIX B  
 
Applicant has reviewed Rathdrum Code. It is attached as APPENDIX B.  Applicant has listed 
sections of Code that the Applicant believes to be pertinent to the PUD for Willow Creek Mobile 
Home Community. Any requested PUD Performance Standards (which differs from the Code) 
are explained in the "Willow Creek PUD" right-hand column beginning on Page 2.  Page 1 is 
General notes. 
 
APPENDIX B will be a part of the PUD.  
 
Note: Changes in Code Grid since prior submission on May 6, 2020 are Green Font.   
 
[Note To City: If there are sections of the code (or other regulations) that Applicant has not 
examined but should, please let Applicant know.]   



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 16 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 8 – Placing and Replacing Homes in the Floodway and Floodplain 
Applicant will have the right to place homes that are new to the Community on vacant Home Sites 
or replace homes that are removed from the Floodway or Floodplain. The ability to utilize Home 
Sites in the Floodway or Floodplain is consistent with “FEMA Publication P-85 Protecting 
Manufactured Homes from Floods & Other Hazards 11-2019” (“P-85”). As confirmed with Maureen 
O’Shea, NFIP State Coordinator, Idaho Dept. of Water Resources, on March 23, 2020 and as 
further clarified on May 6, 20201, below are the Requirements for Manufactured Home Installation in 
Floodways: 

1. First Floor 1’ above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) 
2. Flood water diversion around Foundations do not increase the BFE 
3. Properly anchored with Straps 
4. Foundations are double unbonded dry stack concrete block on top of frost proof 

subgrade concrete piers per local flow data and FEMA design requirements for 
Zone AE.   

5. Utilities are watertight 
 

The floor of each home will be set about 1’ above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). The ground is 
generally about 1.5’ – 2.0’ below the BFE.  Therefore, the home will generally be set about 3 feet 
above grade. There are other FEMA requirements which require that the foundation not interfere or 
change the elevation of the BFE. Based on this, solid “pit set” foundations would divert and affect 
the BFE and therefore are not permitted under FEMA regulations and, consequently, will not be 
required at the Community. 
Foundations  
The Floodway & Floodplain are shown as Zone AE on the FEMA Flood Map. The flow velocities 
applicable to Willow Creek MHC are equal to or less than 1.5 feet per second according to FEMA 
Flood Insurance Study – Kootenai County effective May 3, 2010.  Based on this combination of 
design parameters, Section 8.7.5 of P-85 TABLE 8.2 indicates the typical foundations are to be 
unbonded double dry stack concrete block on top of frost proof subgrade concrete piers. 

 

 
 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 17 of 19 

 
 

 
SECTION 9 – Transportation & Roads 
 
The Community is on the western side of north end of the City adjacent to downtown. The main 
roads which provide access to this part of the City are State Highway 41 and West Highway 53. 
Immediate access to the Community is from Coeur d’Alene Street on the east and 4th Street to 
the south.  Streets within the Community are set within a 50’ right of way that is 50’ and have 24’ 
of pavement. The streets are public and are maintained by the City. 
 
SECTION 10 – Utilities  
 
SECTION 10.1 – Domestic Water, Fire Service & Sewer service is provided by the City of 
Rathdrum in the Community. The water and sewer lines are currently privately owned and 
maintained by the current owner.  Applicant will not make any changes to the water or sewer 
system as a part the PUD other than for the new Home Sites.  However, the Applicant would 
consider some cost sharing with the City of Rathdrum to address the Fire Hydrant issue 
articulated by Tyler Drechsel of North Lakes Fire District. 
   
There are no individual water meters for the homes. There is a nonfunctioning master-water 
meter at the northeast Community entrance.  Based on the Rathdrum City water and sewer 
billing and rate structure, there is no economic incentive for the City or the Applicant to repair 
the Master Meter.  Applicant will continue to bill and collect water & sewer bills on behalf of the 
City. City will bill Applicant based on number of occupied homes. The monthly flat rate amount 
($80.00/month as of the date of this PUD) will be consistent with other customers who consume 
similar amounts of water and sewer. This arrangement will be documented between City and 
Applicant in a separate utility agreement.  
 
SECTION 10.2 – Stormwater  
 
Storm water sheet flows to drywells which are located cross the Community.  
 
SECTION 10.3 – Dry Utilities  
 
Dry utilities such as electric, natural gas, internet and other communications are available to and 
serve the site.  
 
SECTION 11 - Improvement Schedule 
 
The applicant intends to construct improvements within 18 months of closing on the property. 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 18 of 19 

 
 

SECTION 12 – Applicant Team – Project Team & Strong Sponsor  
 
Project Team: 
 
Local Design, Zoning, Surveying Professionals.  Frame & Smetana, P.A. is a leading Civil Engineering 
consulting firm located in Coeur d’Alene, Idaho that has been in practice since 1969.  Gordon Dobler PE, 
Jack Smetana and Russ Honsaker’s are Seneca’s lead design, engineering and surveying consultants 
for this project.  
 
Gordon Dobler, P.E. – Gordon is a staff engineer.  Gordon has a long-standing reputation as a 
Professional Engineer in the Spokane Valley – including a long span of his career as the City Engineer 
for the City of Coeur d’Alene from 1993 – 2016. 
 
Local Property Manager.  This important team member is yet to be identified given the COVID 19 travel 
restrictions.  Seneca is hopes to identify this group before the Planning & Zoning hearing on June 17, 
2020.   
 
Seneca Capital Partners, a is respected and capable Manufactured Housing Community owner. The 
Applicant currently owns and operates nine manufactured housing communities with over 1250 lots 
across the United States.  With the addition of Willow Creek and another community in Hayden, these 
numbers will grow to 11 communities with over 1,450 lots. 
 

  
 
The Senior Management team at Seneca. Seneca has deep experience in commercial and 
residential real estate, including land use, development, redevelopment/repositioning, financing, 
property management and asset management. This experience spans many different 
commercial and residential property types including substantial experience with Manufactured 
Housing Communities. Please see our team members below and their respective 
responsibilities moving forward: 
 
Paul Luber, P.E. – Paul is a Partner and Chief Operating Officer at Seneca.  Paul’s 
accomplishments span the entire commercial real estate investment cycle including: 
acquisitions & capital raising; ground-up development & redevelopment of existing properties, 
leasing & portfolio operations optimization and dispositions across multiple product types 
including office, retail, industrial, multifamily, senior housing, land, self-storage and mobile home 
communities.  Paul holds Bachelor degrees in Architecture and Structural Engineering and a 
Masters in Commercial Real Estate. 
 



Willow Creek - Plat Revision & PUD Project Narrative     May 15, 2020 
 

  
Page 19 of 19 

 
 

 
Larry Nelson, CPA – Larry is the Director of Asset Management for Seneca.  Larry will directly 
oversee the Property Management and Asset Management for Willow Creek.  Prior to joining 
Seneca Capital Partners, Mr. Nelson served for 6 years as the Vice-President of Operations for 
the Farrell-Roeh Group, that owned and operated Manufactured Housing Communities (“MHC”).  
Mr. Nelson was primarily in charge of operating FR Communities, an 11-community MHC 
portfolio located in 5 states, as well as managing FR Homes, a direct affiliate that purchased, 
maintained, rented, and sold Manufactured Homes. This $30,000,000 portfolio of homes 
approached 1,000 units.  For large part of Mr. Nelson’s career, he has been directly involved in 
the infrastructure development and construction of affordable housing units.    
 
Rhett Trees – Rhett is the Founder and CEO of Seneca.  Seneca is one of the fastest growing 
firms in the Mobile Home sector.  From 2013-2017, Rhett was an Equity Partner at Caddis 
Capital Investments, the sponsor of Trico Fund III, an equity vehicle that held a $75 million 
Mobile Home Community Portfolio, that sold most of the Fund assets to Blackstone in 2019. 
Trico III qualified as one of the Top 70 Largest Mobile Home Community Owners in the US.  
Caddis Capital Investments was a diversified private equity firm with a charter to own and 
operate income-oriented assets spanning multiple sectors including: mobile home communities, 
self-storage, student housing and parking assets.   
 



 



 



 

 



 



 



 



 



 

 



 

 



 



B. Code & Regulation Applicability.  To the extent that elements of the Property are being changed, these elements will comply with current 
codes and regulations, unless a PUD Performance Standard is established using the PUD process (for example, current setbacks for R-3 zoning will 
be modified by PUD).  However, if an aspect of the property is not being changed as part of PUD, then the original provisions of the 1979 code in 
place at the time of approval or construction will continue to apply and no new construction or modifications will be required.  

General Notes

 Willow Creek PUD - APPENDIX B
Rathdrum Code Analysis & Schedule of Requested PUD Performance Standards

A.  PUD Performance Standards. Applicant has reviewed Rathdrum Code. Listed below are sections of Code that the Applicant believes to be 
pertinent to the PUD for Willow Creek Mobile Home Community. Any requested PUD Performance Standard (which differs from the Code) is 
explained in the "Willow Creek PUD" right-hand column beginning on Page 2. 
If there are sections of the code (or other regulations) that Applicant has not examined but should, please let Applicant know.

C.  Certain Existing Conditions.  The PUD Performance Standards are intended for (i) installation of homes that are new to the Community and (ii) 
other physical improvements which are to be made under this PUD to the Community and (iii) accommodating most existing conditions.  
       C.1.  However, there are specific existing conditions that do not comply with the code or the PUD Performance standards. These existing 
conditions shall be "grandfathered" (permitted to continue to exist) or will be permitted by other agreement. These conditions do not require 
compliance with existing code or the PUD Performance Standards [Explanation: For example structures encroaching in the ROW. There are a 
limited number of mobile home that do not comply with proposed (reduced) set backs. There a certain mobile homes that encroach into 
undeveloped ROW. Both of these conditions can be seen on Applicant's Preliminary Plat Exhibit dated 5/15/20. Over time as mobile homes are 
replaced, the replacement homes will be placed in a way that complies with the PUD set backs. It is important to note that although we are not 
proposing to move these homes,  these situations are not true encroachments in that these home are moveable.]      

D.  Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards.  For each code provision in the left hand column below, Applicant has listed either: 
     (i) "Acceptable" OR 
    (ii) "PUD Performance Standard". In some cases,  PUD Performance Standard is explained in [brackets].  

E. Placing Homes in Floodway or Flood Plain.  Applicant will be able to place & replace homes in the Floodway and Flood Plain provided the 
installation of such homes complies with relevant FEMA Regulations 

Page 1 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #
Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

1 New Definition 

“Lot” shall mean a legally recorded lot of record as shown on the 
REVISED plat of Willow Creek Subdivision This will mean Super 
Block lot and will not apply to individual Home Sites after revision to 
Plat.

2 New Definition 
“Space” or “Home Site” shall mean an area of land occupied, 
previously occupied or intended to be occupied by an structure, RV, 
mobile home or manufactured home. 

3 Chapter 4 Impact Fees
PUD Performance Standard Required:
Not applicable to Willow Creek PUD, except in connection with new 
Home sites accounting for three consolidated Home Sites.

CHAPTER 4 - DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE

 9-4-1 => 9-4-17   

11-3-2 SPECIFIC DEFINITIONS:

Comparison of Code To Willow Creek PUD 

Page 2 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #

Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

4
      1.   Minimum lot area: Six thousand (6,000) square feet plus 
one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet per each 
additional dwelling unit over one.

Acceptable:  
[Explanation: Willow Creek Average Density = 8.6 home Sites 
per acre << permitted Density under this R-3 provision @ 12 or 
15 home site per acre.  

5       2.   Maximum lot width to depth ratio: 1:2.5. PUD Performance Standard Required:
Not applicable to Super Block Concept  

6       3.   Minimum front yard: Twenty feet (20') measured from 
the edge of the street right of way to the front of the building.

PUD Performance Standard Required - Generally, 5 feet 
measured from Public right of way to the front of the bldg. 
Certain specific existing instances, set back will be 0'.  In certain 
instances, Set back will be less than 0 (temporary encroachment 
into ROW. See limited instances on Preliminary Plat Exhibit.      
[Explanation: Many existing occurrences of homes about 5' from 
front property line. See General Note C.1

7       4.   Minimum side yard: Six feet (6') wide.

PUD Performance Standard Required:  Minimum side yard: 
Five feet (5') wide and certain existing cases 0 feet. 
[Explanation: There may be limited cases of encroachments into 
ROW. See Note C.1]  

8       5.   Minimum side yard flanking street of corner lot: Twenty 
feet (20') from street right of way.

PUD Performance Standard Required:  Minimum side yard: 
Five feet (5') wide and certain existing cases 0 feet. 
[Explanation: There may be limited cases of encroachments into 
ROW. See Note C.1]  

9       6.   Minimum rear yard: Ten feet (10') deep. PUD Performance Standard Required - Generally, 5 feet 
measured from Rear Property Line to the rear of the bldg. 

11-4A-4: R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT:

 11-4A-4: R-3  F.   Lot Area, Density And Setback Provisions:

Page 3 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #

Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

10

    6.A  New Provision
 No comparable provision in existing code 

Address internal home spacing 
within Super Block  

relative other homes 

"6.A" NEW PUD Performance Standard (Required for Super
Block Concept): Homes within a Super Block shall be
separated by a minimum distance 10 feet. This provision shall
apply to home spacing within a Super Block relative other
homes which are: 
      (i) side by side, 
     (ii) back to back or 
    (iii) any other adjacent configuration 
but there is no legal lot lines between them. Setting homes at a
distance of less than 10' (but not less than permitted by the IFC 
& IBC) may be administratively approved by the Planning
Director.] 

11       7.   Maximum building height: Not to exceed thirty five feet 
(35'). Acceptable

12       8.   Maximum lot coverage: Thirty five percent (35%). Acceptable 
(Coverage % applies only to homes; not accessory Structures)

13       9.   Minimum size for single-family dwelling unit: Six hundred 
(600) square feet.

PUD Performance Standard Required: 320 SF minimum to permit 8'x 
32' park model. 
Section 9-4-2 permits a 320 SF Manufactured Home 8' x 40'
 
[Explanation: Park model to be permitted on small lots. Travel Trailer 
& RV prohibited]  

14       10.   Minimum driveway requirements: Twenty five feet (25') 
in length, excluding sidewalk.

15
         Exception: Lots platted prior to September 2003, may 
have driveway lengths no less than twenty feet (20'), excluding 
sidewalk.

16       11.   Setback requirements must be measured from a legally 
established property line. Acceptable

17    G.   Parking: See chapter 5 of this title. (Ord. 493, 11-12-2008) PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

Page 4 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #

Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

18

19
         a.   Shall be designed for long term use by a residential 
household, contain a kitchen, bath, living and sleeping facilities, 
be multisectional and meet minimum square foot, bulk and 
setback requirements for the zoning district.

PUD Performance Standard Required   Shall be designed for 
long term use by a residential household, contain a kitchen, 
bath, living and sleeping facilities, be multisectional or single 
sectional and meet minimum square foot, bulk and setback 
requirements for Willow Creek PUD.

20
         b.   Shall be placed on an excavated and backfilled 
foundation and enclosed at the perimeter such that the home is 
located not more than twelve inches (12") above grade.

PUD Performance Standard Required  This provision will not
apply. The floor of each Homes new to the Community shall be
set at least 1’ above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). Homes
new to the Community will generally be set about 36” above
grade in order to be 1 foot above BFE. Home foundations will
comply FEMA Publication P-85 – Protecting Manufactured
Homes from Floods

21
         c.   Shall have a pitched wood, asphalt or metal shingle 
roof with a minimum slope of two to twelve (2:12) and a 
minimum of six inch (6") eave or gutter and eave attached to the 
entire perimeter of the roof.

22          d.   Shall have vertical and/or horizontal aluminum, vinyl, 
simulated wood or wood siding.

23
         e.   Shall be permanently affixed with the running gear and 
towing hitch removed, and set upon a foundation approved as 
required by Idaho Code, and have an anchoring system that is 
totally concealed under the structure.

Acceptable

PUD Performance Standard Required. Homes new to the park 
will generally be 1990 or newer with vinyl siding and pitched 
shingle roofs. Applicant, in its discretion, may allow an older 
home that does not meet these criteria, if such home is well 
maintained. 

11-5-2K Manufactured Homes 

      1.   Development Standards For Manufactured Home On Individual Lot: The following standards are in addition to those 
applicable in the zoning district (1)  where a manufactured home is located:  
[ (1) It appears that these provision apply to MH on  Individual lot and MH in other zoning districts. ] 

11-5-2: RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS (From CHAPTER 5 GENERAL PROVISIONS AND PERFORMANCE STANDARDS)

Page 5 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #

Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

24

         f.   Shall have a poured concrete or mortared enclosure, or 
aluminum, vinyl, simulated wood or wood siding consistent with 
the exterior siding of the home, which surrounds the entire 
perimeter of the structure and completely encloses the under 
area which contains the blocking and anchoring system.

 Acceptable 

25          g.   Shall have a garage and driveway as required in other 
sections of this code.

PUD Performance Standard Required. 
Home Owner (Home Site Tenant) shall not be  required to have a 
garage.  

26

         h.   Shall obtain a setting permit from the city to 
demonstrate the home is assembled on site to the standards 
regulating the anchoring of the structure to its foundation and 
other building requirements. Upon completed setup, the 
manufactured home shall be assessed as real property and 
taxed as such on the required records.

PUD Performance Standard Required. Shall obtain a setting permit 
from the city to demonstrate the home is assembled on site to the 
standards regulating the anchoring of the structure to its foundation 
the ground and other building requirements. Upon completed setup, 
the manufactured home shall be assessed as real personal property, 
taxed as such on the required records and billed to the owner of the 
home (generally the Home Site Tenant).

27
         i.   Shall comply with state of Idaho manufactured home 
installation standards. (Ord. 545, 9-10-2014; amd. Ord. 585, 12-
11-2019)

 Acceptable 

Page 6 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #

Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

28
      1.   Not more than fifty percent (50%) of the lot frontage shall 
be driveway or impervious surfacing as found in B.1.a. of this 
Chapter, except as provided herein for duplexes.

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

29
      2.   Driveway Length: Residential driveways shall be a 
minimum of twenty five feet (25') in length, or shall be paved to 
the front of the garage, whichever is greater, exclusive of any 
sidewalk or pathway.

30
         a.   Exception: Lots platted prior to September 2003 may 
have driveway lengths no less than twenty feet (20') excluding 
sidewalk.

31

      3.   Approach: Only an approved approach as described 
within this title shall be utilized to access property from right-of-
way. Vehicles shall not cross over stormwater drainage 
easements and/or planting strips, unreinforced sidewalks, or 
other areas not permitted and intended as paved driving or 
parking surface.

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

32

      4.   Driveway Width: The minimum driveway width shall be 
ten feet (10') of driving surface and the maximum driveway width 
within the approach, stormwater swale/landscape strip and 
sidewalk area shall be thirty feet (30') of driving surface, plus six 
feet (6') for wings.

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

33

      5.   Off Street Parking: A minimum of two (2) off street 
parking spaces shall be provided per single-family residential 
dwelling unit. Driveways meeting standards set forth herein 
constitute parking space(s), however, garages shall not 
constitute a parking space(s) for the purpose of this 
requirement. Parking shall not block sidewalks or pathways.

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

11-5-2C C.   Residential Driveways, Approaches And Parking Requirements: Residential driveways, approaches and parking 
shall meet the following standards:

Page 7 of 9 May 15, 2020



Ite
m

 #

Code Provision Willow Creek PUD Performance Standards 

34
      6.   Surfacing: All residential approaches/points of access 
from public rights-of-way, driveways and parking spaces as 
required by this code shall be paved with hot asphalt, portland 
cement concrete, or approved paving blocks or bricks.

PUD Performance Standard Required - paving may be Gravel 
Driveways 

35

         a.   Additional parking and drives accessed from an 
existing approved paved approach and driveway may be 
graveled, subject to compliance with the other provisions of this 
Chapter. Landscape borders, such as landscape timbers, 
blocks, or curbing shall be used to protect sidewalks, 
swales/landscape strips and required landscaped areas from 
intrusion by gravel and vehicles.

 Acceptable 

36

         b.   Paving shall not be utilized within required easements. 
Pavement and impervious surfacing, including gravel, shall not 
be utilized within two feet (2') of any side or rear property line. 
Such area shall be retained for the provision of stormwater 
and/or landscaping.

PUD Performance Standard Required:
See Exhibit A - Parking Schematic - Willow Creek MHC

Page 8 of 9 May 15, 2020









 

 

 

 



  
 

 

   

 
Willow Creek Mobile Home Community 

 

APPENDIX C  
MODEL RULES & REGULATIONS  

GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITY LIVING  

 
NOTE: Not Part of Plat Revision & Planned Unit Development 

Provided as a reference & support of Section 4.1 of the PUD Narrative which 
is also not a part of PUD   

 

May 15, 2020  

All sections of R& R’s will Apply to 
Operation of Willow Creek MHC.  

Sections that respond to City Concerns 
for Willow Creek are shown below    

 Topic R&R Section(s)
Parking 12, 17
Cars 12
Yard Cleanliness 3, 4, 7
Home Appearance 3, 4, 9, 10
Accessory Structures 3, 8, 13
Animals 14  



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 
 
 
 

GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITY LIVING   
In order to have a neat, clean and attractive Community and one that not only we, but also the other 
residents of the Community will be proud of, the Management has set forth the following guidelines for living 
of which the residents and their guests shall abide. These are a part of your lease. 

 

(1) GENERAL 
 

1. Management has the right to approve or reject the type, size, and appearance of all homes before admittance or 
resale. 

 
2. Resident shall be responsible and pay for any damages caused by other occupants of home or guests. 

 
3. Streets are for traffic only. 

 
4. No discharge of firearms, bow and arrow, hunting or trapping, etc. will be permitted in the community. 

 
5. Occupancy standard must meet local municipality requirements. 

 
6. One above ground commercially manufactured fire pit is allowed if it meets local municipal requirements. 

 
(2) SUBLETTING, SELLING, OR RENTING 

 
1. Only one commercially manufactured “for sale” sign may be used. It may be displayed from the interior of the 

front window and may not exceed 14"x18". It will not be permitted to be left up unless the home is actively being 
solicited for sale. 

2. If Lessee plans to sell the home and have it remain in the Community: 
a) The Tenant must first notify Landlord that he or she wishes the home, if sold, to remain in the community. 

Notification is required at least 45 days before the sale. 
b) In addition, an exterior inspection of home and site shall be conducted by community management that 

includes, but is not limited to, skirting, steps, shed, awnings, and the exterior condition of the home and yard. 
This inspection is to be requested at the time of notification. 

c) All repairs or changes which are found necessary as a result of the inspection must be completed 15 days prior 
to the sale of the home. In the event any repair is found not to be satisfactory, Landlord reserves the right to 
require the work be done by a qualified contractor. 

d) After inspection has been completed and the home is found to be satisfactory, Tenant shall receive from the 
Community Management a letter stating that the home is qualified for resale. The processing of the 
prospective purchaser/Tenant will not be initiated until this letter is provided. 

e) The Tenant has the responsibility to have the purchaser of Tenant’s home fill out and file with the Landlord an 
Application for Rental Agreement and Register at least 15 days before final approval will be given. 

f) Current Tenant’s rent account must be paid in full prior to Landlord entering into a lease agreement with new 
approved Tenant. 

g) After the application has been approved, the purchaser must sign a new lease and pay in full the security 
deposit and all rent and charges otherwise due. 

h) If you plan to sell the home, but have it removed from the premises, you must notify the Manager a minimum of 
28 days in advance in writing, and specify the date of removal and the parties who will be removing the home. 
The home must be moved by a licensed installer with community approval. Mover must provide proof of 
liability insurance. 

 
(3) HOMES AND SITES 

 
1. The resident shall not in any way attach additions, lean-tos, sheds, cabanas, or enclosures to his/her home 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 9 
 
 
 
 

except by written approval from Landlord. Completion of a Building Permit Application will be required, along with 
blueprints or drawings of any additions before their approval. 

 
2. No fences of any kind may be put up by the resident without prior written permission, and submission and approval 

of a building permit. It is further recognized some fences may already exist and are “Grandfathered” and may be 
required to be removed upon a Change of Ownership or for failure to maintain it in a neat, orderly and safe 
manner.  

3. Alterations shall not be made to the community site of the service facilities or components thereof without first 
receiving written permission from the Management. 

 
a) Trees, shrubs, and flowers may be planted only after receiving prior consent of the Landlord. Tenant agrees 

they will become part of the real estate and must remain on the site at the termination of the lease. Landlord 
shall not be responsible for damage to any plants, shrubs, or lawns caused by the moving of a home on or off 
any site. Before planting any trees or shrubs, please contact Diggers’ Hotline as there are many utilities 
underground, and we do not want to dig over electric cables. This also includes garages, or any other 
outbuildings built on the premises. Tenant is responsible for care of landscaping. 

b) Trees that are not approved for planting in the community include, but are not limited to willow, cottonwood, 
ash, silver maple, sumac and poplar. Trees trimming on or around Owned homes is the responsibility of the 
homeowner and any proposed tree removal is at the discretion and permission of Management and will be 
recorded in writing.  

c) Bird feeders that are damaged, or not in use must be removed immediately. No items can be affixed or hung 
from trees. 

d) Gardens: Approval from the community management must be obtained first if you should decide to plant a 
garden. The size must not exceed 10' x 10'. No gardens shall be allowed in front yards. Locations must be 
behind your shed, or in back of your home, depending on instruction from the office. Your site must be able to 
tastefully accommodate a garden. Compost piles are not allowed. All plants should be removed after the 
growing season. Fencing around any gardens must be built with approved materials only and must also be 
removed after the growing season. All gardens must be approved in writing by Management prior to 
installation.  

e) Landscaping items such as lawn mowers, riding lawn mowers and tractors must be stored in your shed, garage, 
or off-street view during the off season. 

f) Snow blowers must be stored in your shed, garage, or off-street view during the off season. 
 

4. Tarps can be used only with prior approval from management for home site. They must be a neutral color, i.e. 
black, brown or grey. Covers for cars, air conditioners, grills, motorcycles must be commercially designed for 
those specific items. They also must be a neutral color of black, brown or grey 

 
5. The resident is responsible and must pay for damages caused by the resident while working on or around the 

utilities including the electrical pedestal, receptacles, television, or telephone cables or pedestals, gas, water, and 
sewer pipes, etc. Resident is also responsible and must pay for damage to property and structures such as sign 
posts, mailboxes, or lawns, etc. when damage was caused by the resident or the resident’s guest. 

 
6. The care and condition of each Community site is the responsibility of the Tenant unless otherwise noted. Lawns 

must be BOTH mowed and trimmed a minimum of once per week, or more if necessary. Any shrubs must be 
maintained by Tenant. There is no lawn mowing or construction work on Holidays. If it becomes necessary for 
Management to mow lawns, clean up unsightly rubbish, etc. maintenance charges will apply (see lease for 
charges). Repeated forced mowing’s could result in a mandatory lawn care program at a price determined by the 
lawncare contract plus administrative fees.  

 
7. The resident shall be responsible for proper installation of the manufactured home as dictated by manufacturer’s 

installation manual, and proper installation of all utility connections. 
 

8. No storage of any item is permitted on patios or exterior areas surrounding the home except steps, patio furniture, 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 
 
 
 

or other patio related items. 
 

9. Before driving any rods, posts or like materials into ground, check with Diggers’ Hotline as to the location of 
underground utilities. 

 
10. Trespassing on other residents’ sites is not allowed without their expressed permission. 

 
11. Each home MUST have the address displayed clearly on the exterior. If the Community has a standard type of 

number, letter, size or location, that will be the only allowable type of address. If there is no standard, any 
commercially produced number or letter would be acceptable providing it is proportional in size with the norm in 
the community. 

 
12. No painting or dressing of any concrete walks or patios. 

 
13. Window air conditioner units must be installed with supports attached to the home, not by posts to the ground. 

 
14. Do not install insulation in your windows. Any materials designed as an additional storm window or 

weatherization must be secured on the inside of the home, not visible from the outside. Tape, plastic, and 
insulation, which can be seen on the exterior of the home, are not allowed. 

 
15. Windows must be decorated with commercially designed window treatments, i.e. curtains, draperies, blinds, etc. 

Bath or beach towels, blankets, flags, or bed sheets or like materials will not be accepted as window coverings. 
 

16. Commercially designed lawn furniture is allowed for outside use. No old upholstered furniture or furniture designed 
for interior use will be allowed. Furniture should be stored away during the off-season. 

 
17. Any lawn decorations, lawn ornaments, or flags must be commercially produced and tastefully decorate your 

home site. Landlord at his own discretion may refuse any decorations deemed untasteful. 
 

18. Outdoor holiday decorations must be removed no more than three weeks after the holiday. 
 

19. All removable hitches must be removed after arrival in the Community. 
 

20. Any murals or expressions of art on exteriors of garages, sheds, or home must be submitted with a building 
permit and approved by Landlord prior to initiation. 

 
21. If any entrance to the home is designed for two doors, there must be two doors at all times, i.e. inside door and 

outside storm or combination door. 
 

22. If home has a wood burner or fireplace, from October 1 to April 15, no more than two face cords of firewood may 
be stacked neatly on the site; from April 16 to September 30, no more than one face cord can be stacked on the 
site. Whenever possible it should be out of view from the street. All wood must be pre-cut before it is delivered to 
your site 

 
23. In the event of fire, wind, or other causes of damage to the home or any of the Tenant’s property on the home site, 

the Tenant is responsible for debris removal within a reasonable period of time as deemed by Landlord. If 
debris is allowed to remain, Landlord at his option may have it removed. The debris removal fee will be 
charged accordingly to current hourly rates, plus any refuse container fees as billed by them plus potential 
Administrative Fees for processing.  

(4) SKIRTING 
 

1. The resident will be expected to paint the skirting or any skirting that was installed in the past less vinyl skirting, 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 
 
 
 

which is not painted, then keep it ii a well-maintained condition each year. Skirting must be kept in place and 
broken pieces replaced. 

 
2. Hay bales, bags of leaves, or any other materials may not be placed around the skirting. 

 
(5) WATER METERS 

 
1. Resident is responsible for providing properly installed heat tape on their service line and meter. If 

meter freezes and breaks expense to have the meter replaced is the responsibility of the resident. 
 

(6) SEWERS 
 

1. Materials foreign to normal toilet usage such as disposable diapers, paper towels, napkins, Tampax, Kotex, etc..., 
shall not be placed in the toilets or drains. 

 
2. If sewers become plugged and any foreign items listed above are found, it shall be the resident’s sole 

responsibility to pay for the entire sewer-cleaning bill or sewer repair. 
 

3. Residents are responsible for the maintenance of plumbing for the prevention and repairs of leaks in faucets, 
water lines, and toilets. 

 
(7) GARBAGE 

 
1. Garbage cans and/or proper plastic containers must comply with local Health Department Codes. All containers 

must be kept in a shed, or garage if available, or at the rear of the resident’s home site, completely out of sight. 
 

2. Garbage cans must be kept covered and not allowed to overflow. Do not at any time set garbage bags outside. 
 

3. Do not set your garbage out to the curb for collection until late the evening before or early on the day of 
collection. Common sense should be used on windy days; anchor lightweight refuse and recyclables. 

 
4. No burning of debris at any time. 

 
5. If your community has recycling containers, store the separate containers in your shed, garage or out of site. 

 
(8) STORAGE BUILDINGS, GARAGES & CARPORTS 

 
1. A building permit must be submitted before any structure can be installed. Only one (1) storage building per site is 

allowed. If you are interested in building a new garage on your site, you must first submit detailed plans to 
Management for approval. A building permit from your local municipality must be obtained before any construction 
begins. The size of your site will dictate what structures will be allowed. 

 
2. The utility building/garage must be vinyl sided with a pitched shingled roof. All siding, trim, and roofing materials 

must be identical to the colors and materials used on the home. The roof must be shingled with regular house-type 
roof shingles. 

 
3. A base of concrete, cement slab, or gravel must be provided for the shed to rest on. This will depend on local codes. 

 
4. All sheds shall be securely anchored to the base ground. 

 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 
 
 
 

5. No used sheds may be brought on the premises unless prior approval in writing is given by Management. 
 
6. If you plan to have a shed or garage built, you must use new materials, and submit a plan to the home office for 

inspection and approval. We do not allow materials such as flake board, wafer board, particleboard, or blandex as 
exterior siding. The materials used MUST BE DESIGNED FOR RESIDENTIAL EXTERIOR USE and must be 
identical to the exterior siding and roofing material that was installed at the factory when the manufactured home 
was built. 

 
7. The resident is required to keep buildings well maintained including paint, siding, windows and roofs. 

 
8. Driveways, garage slabs and foundations become community property and are not allowed to be removed from 

the premises should the resident decide to relocate. Not all sites are conducive to garage construction. Added 
driveways must be the same as the existing drives to maintain a proper cosmetic appearance. All additions require 
prior written approval by Management. 

 
9. If a carport, whether attached or freestanding, is on more than two sides, a garage door on the end facing the 

road will be required. 
 
10. All unpainted material, i.e. brick molding, garage, or shed trim, etc. must be painted within 30 days of construction 

completion. 
 
11. Any adverse effect of drainage due to new construction by resident will be corrected at the resident’s expense. 

 
12. Doors on storage buildings and garages must be kept closed when not in use. 

 
(9) STEPS 

 
1. All treated lumber decks or steps must be sealed or stained a coordinating color to match home, and properly 

maintained when needed. 
 

2. All decks and steps must comply with local building code. 
 

(10) SIGNS 
 

1. No signs without prior community approval are allowed in the yard. This includes “For Sale” signs. 
 

2. Political signs may be displayed during election time only and are to be removed promptly after the election is 
decided. 

(11) PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT AND SWIMMING POOLS 
 

1. If playground equipment or pools are allowed in your specific community, you must submit a plan for prior written 
approval with Management as to details and location before installing it up. Management reserves the right to 
reject the condition of equipment and require its removal if it has not been authorized. No trampolines, tires or 
swings in trees are allowed. If you are considering installation of playground equipment, or a swimming pool larger 
than a wading pool you must first: 

a) Submit a plan to Management listing the dimensions of the equipment or the pool along with a brochure on 
what it will look like when complete. 

b) Pools must have a safety cover designed specifically for the pool and is securely kept on the pool when not in 
use. 

c) The ladder to the pool must be removed when the pool is not in use. Safety netting must be on trampolines 
when not in use. 

d) Local ordinances must be checked before installing a pool. 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 
 
 
 

e) Tenant must provide Landlord with indemnification from Tenant’s insurance company for any playground 
equipment and swimming pools prior to installation. 

f) Lawn damage by swimming pools must be repaired by tenant. 
g) Pools must be dismantled and removed by October 1 and must be emptied each night to avoid mosquito issues. 
h) Playground equipment may not be used for storage. 
i) It is recognized that some communities may have “Grandfathered” items and those MUST have documented 

Management Approval and are subject to removal upon Change of Ownership of the home or due to improper 
care/upkeep,  

 
(12) AUTOMOBILES, SNOWMOBILES OR MOTORCYCLES & BOATS 

(LOCAL MUNICIPAL ORDINANCES WILL APPLY IN LIEU OF THE APPLICABLE PROVISIONS LISTED 
BELOW IN COMMUNITIES WHERE THE MUNICIPALITY OWNS THE ROADWAYS) 

 
1. Motorbikes, snowmobiles, mini-bikes, ATVS, and similar recreational vehicles may not be ridden in the 

community, around your home, empty sites or any property owned by Community at any time, except to and from 
marked trails at the posted speed. Please find the closest point of egress. 

 
2. No motorized toys allowed to be operated on any roads or parking areas of the community. 

 
3. Utility trailers, snowmobiles, campers, and boats are not allowed to be stored on site unless they are kept in a shed or 

garage. 
 

If your Community has a storage compound facility; snowmobiles, campers, trailers and boats must be 
stored in this compound with the exception of motorcycles. These compounds are to be used for Seasonal 
Recreational vehicles only. They are not to be used to store fish (ice) shanties, unlicensed, inoperative, or 
unused cars and trucks, or equipment of any kind. These items cannot be stored on your home site. 
Management reserves the right to charge an additional fee for storage of recreational vehicles at your site if 
seasonal storage area is not available and it is recognized that this may not apply to all communities. 

 
4. All recreational vehicles kept in the compound facility must be registered with management. Management reserves 

the right to refuse items for storage. Proper registration and identification must be kept on item in storage at all 
times and parked in assigned space only. Off road motorcycles, mini-bikes, ATVs, etc., shall be kept in shed or 
garage. 

 
5. The resident or his guests shall drive in and out of the Community in a careful prudent manner and on the proper 

side of the road obeying road signs. All residents and guests must obey posted speed limit at all times. 
 

6. Residents shall park their automobiles in the designated spaces. Absolutely no parking in the streets unless the 
Community has been approved to do so by local ordinances. NOTE: Parking in the streets must, without 
exception; park with the traffic flow. During times of snow, nobody may park in the roads and Management is not 
subject to any liability to damages caused to cars parked on the streets and all responsibility falls upon the owner 
of the vehicle.  

 
7. Any and all vehicles must be in operable condition and display a current license plate. 

 
8. Working on, repainting, overhauling, or changing oil, etc., is not permitted in streets or site. Damage resulting from 

petroleum or any other vehicle fluid spillage/leaks will be billed to the tenant. If you are changing a tire, the vehicle 
cannot be on jacks for more than 24 hours. 

 
9. No delivery trucks, semi-trailers or similar sized vehicles are allowed to be parked in the communities, (van and 

pickups accepted). 
 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 
 
 
 

10. Driving or parking of vehicles or recreational vehicles on lawns for any reason is absolutely prohibited. 
 

11. Fish (ice) shanties, or other such similar items, are not allowed in the community at any time. 
 

12. All motorized vehicles operated in the Community must be licensed and operated by a licensed driver. 
 

13. Resident must notify Landlord in the event of a change in vehicles giving a complete description of the new vehicle. 
The number of vehicles to be kept at the site must remain the same as Tenant’s application for rental agreement 
unless prior written approval is approved by the landlord. 

 
 

(13) TENTS AND CANOPIES 
 

Tents should not remain up for an extended period of time that could cause damage to the lawn. Any 
damage to the lawn must be repaired by tenant. Tents are allowed to be aired out for a 24-hour period but 
are not to be used to any other purpose. Canopies are to be for temporary use and are to be 
removed/taken down when not in use.  

 
1. Tents and canopies must be in good condition, not faded, torn, etc. 

 
2. Management reserve the right to refuse any tent or canopy that is deemed undesirable. 

 
(14) ANIMALS 

 
1.  All pets must be approved and registered by the Community PRIOR to obtaining the pet. There is no size limitation 

on dogs. Monthly fees for dogs are as follows: $10 per month for dogs 15 inches or smaller at the highest point of 
the back, $20 per month for dogs taller than 15 inches. Aggressive dogs or dogs that display aggressive behavior to 
include but not limited to: Doberman Pincher, German Shephard, Pit Bull, Staffordshire Terriers, Rottweiler, 
Huskies, Wolf Breeds or any mix thereof will not be permitted into the Community. Landlord reserves the right to 
permit or disallow any pet into the Community. All dogs, regardless of size must be photographed by the Community 
Manager prior to moving into the Community or when pet is acquired.  

 
2. All animals must be confined to your site only unless being walked by the Resident, Occupants or Guests.  

 
3. Pets may not run loose and must be on a leash no longer than six (6) feet long, held by the resident, occupants, or 

guest anytime the pet is outside to include those communities with permitted fences. Fencing does not preclude the 
leash requirements. Failure to comply will result in the loss of pet privileges and may include termination of your 
Lease Agreement.  
 

4. “Beware of Dog” signage is strictly prohibited.  
 

5. Noisy or unruly pets or those that cause qualify of life complaints are subject to removal from the community.  
 
6. Pets are not allowed to be tied up or tethered outside for any reason. 

 
7. Pet feces is to be confined to your lot and must be picked up daily. Please refrain from walking pets in any 

playground or paly areas and always clean up after your pet when walking it in the Community.  
 
8. All dogs and cats are subject to the local pet ordinances which include licensing provisions. You must contact your 

local clerk to obtain a license for your pet. All pets must be current on vaccinations. Feeding of strays is prohibited 
and are subject to trapping, removal, and possible monthly charges per the pet policy as well as termination of the 
Lease Agreement.  

 
9. The resident is responsible for their visitor/guest animals to ensure that they conform to the animal rules and 



Willow Creek MHC 
APPENDIX C –Model Rules & Regulation 

  May 15, 2020 
 

Page 9 of 9 
 
 
 
 

visitation must be approved in writing by Management.  
 
10. External animal enclosures, i.e. dog houses, kennels, pet fences etc. are not permitted.  

 
11. Management must be informed in writing when a pet is no longer in the household to terminate the next month’s pet 

fees…back pet fees will not be credited if you fail to properly report the removal or loss of a pet.  
 

(15) ANTENNAS 
 

1. Management reserves the right to require removal of any antennas or similar equipment that causes a problem, 
 

2. External devices or receivers, designed to pick up or transmit television, internet and/or radio signals are permitted in 
the Community with prior approval. Management reserves the right to determine where said devices are placed on 
the home/site.  

 
3. Surveillance or recording devices must meet local ordinances.  

 
(16) SNOW REMOVAL—PUBLIC STREETS 

 
1. It is the resident’s responsibility to keep their driveway clear of snow. 

 
2. The Community does not allow on-street parking during the winter. The plow will normally concentrate on one 

street at a time. Cars plowed in must be shoveled out by owner. (NOTE: The above, though informational in 
format, is considered part of the specific rules and regulations.) 

 
(17) SPECIAL 

 
All person will be required to observe local ordinances in regard to nighttime curfews. 

 
The Landlord shall not be responsible for any damage or injury, whether to person, property or otherwise, 

resulting from or caused by 
a) Fire, theft and elements, falling trees or limbs of trees, falling power lines, water, snow, ice, structures 

themselves, or any other types of damage over which the Landlord has no control. 
b) Anything done, caused or suffered to be done, or omitted to be done by the Tenant and/or agents or employees of 

the Tenant or any other person on the Community property whether by invitation or license of the Tenant or 
otherwise. 

c) The items covered herein are a majority of areas typically addressed however for any situations not covered, 
Management reserves the right to make an informed decision to determine validity of the issue or concern and 
take action or make decisions accordingly.  

 
 



Willow Creek Open Space and Recreation Area 
 
 

Actual Location of elements may be 
different depending on field conditions 

BB Court  

OPEN PLAY 
 FIELD 

PLAY 
STRUCTURE 

BBQ  

GAZEBO 



&ƌŽŵ͗�^ƚĂĐǇ�^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ
^ĞŶƚ͗�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϭ͗ϭϲ�WD
dŽ͗�dǇůĞƌ��ƌĞĐŚƐĞů͖�'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͖��ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖��ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&͖�ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖��ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ͖�ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ͖�
ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ƐĞůůŝƐŽŶΛƉŚĚϭ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ͖�
ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�tŝůůŝĂŵ�ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶ
�Đ͗�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�Z�͗��yd�ZE�>�Z�͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

/d��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŝŵĞ�ƵŶůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�Ă�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ƚŽ�^,�ϱϯ�Žƌ�^,�
ϰϭ͘�

dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͕

^ƚĂĐǇ�^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ�
/ĚĂŚŽ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƚŝŽŶ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ
WĞƌŵŝƚ��ŽŽƌĚŝŶĂƚŽƌ�ͬ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ϭ
ϲϬϬ�t͘�WƌĂŝƌŝĞ��ǀĞ͘
�ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛�ůĞŶĞ͕�/��ϴϯϴϭϱ
ϮϬϴͲϳϳϮͲϭϮϵϳ KĨĨŝĐĞ
ϮϬϴͲϮϴϳͲϯϴϳϯ &Ăǆ
^ƚĂĐǇ͘ƐŝŵŬŝŶƐΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ

&ƌŽŵ͗ dǇůĞƌ��ƌĞĐŚƐĞů�фƚĚƌĞĐŚƐĞůΛŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶůĂŬĞƐĨŝƌĞ͘ĐŽŵх�
^ĞŶƚ͗tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϳ͗ϱϮ��D
dŽ͗ 'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ фŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵх͖��ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖��ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&�ф�ĂƌĞǇ͘�ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖��ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ�фĚĐĂůůĂŚĂŶΛŬĐŐŽǀ͘ƵƐх͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ�ф:ĂŵŝĞ͘,ŽǁĂƌĚΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ�ф:,ŽĨĞƌΛŬĞĐ͘ĐŽŵх͖�ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ƐĞůůŝƐŽŶΛƉŚĚϭ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ�фƌŽŶĂůĚ͘ů͘ŚĞůŵŝĐŬ͘ŝŝΛĨƚƌ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĂĐǇ�^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ�ф^ƚĂĐǇ͘^ŝŵŬŝŶƐΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀх͖�
ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�tŝůůŝĂŵ�ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶ�фtŝůůŝĂŵ͘ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀх
�Đ͗ ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ�фƉƚůƵďĞƌΛƐĞŶĞĐĂĐƉ͘ĐŽŵх͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ�
фũƐŵĞƚĂŶĂΛƌŽĂĚƌƵŶŶĞƌ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗ �yd�ZE�>�Z�͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�



��� 7KLV�HPDLO�LV�IURP�DQ�H[WHUQDO�VHQGHU��%H�FDXWLRXV�DQG�'2�127�RSHQ�OLQNV�RU�DWWDFKPHQWV�LI�
WKH�VHQGHU�LV�XQNQRZQ�����
dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�Ă�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ũƵƐƚ�ŝƚĞŵƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚͬĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŝŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞͲ
ƉůĂƚ͘

dŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�>ĂŬĞƐ�&ŝƌĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĨŝƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ĐĂůůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ dŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ůŽŐŝƐƚŝĐĂů�ƉƌŽďůĞŵƐ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ůĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĨůŽǁͬĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ƚǁŽ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ŵƵĐŚ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĨƌŝĐƚŝŽŶ�ůŽƐƐ�ŝĨ�Ă�ĨŝƌĞ�ŽĐĐƵƌƐ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϱϬϬ�ĨĞĞƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌŝĐƚŝŽŶ�ůŽƐƐ�
ŐƌĞĂƚůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĨůŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶŐŝŶĞͬƉƵŵƉĞƌ͘� dŚŝƐ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞƐ�Ă�ƉƌŽďůĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ĞǆƚŝŶŐƵŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘

dŚĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŝƐ�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚ͕�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐĂůůǇ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘ dŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�
ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ�ƚǁĞŶƚǇ�;ϮϬͿ�ĨĞĞƚ�ǁŝĚĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĐĐĞƉƚĂďůĞ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�&ŝƌĞ��ŽĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ďƵƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�Ă�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƚǁĞŶƚǇͲƐŝǆ�;ϮϲͿ�ĨŽŽƚ�ǁŝĚĞ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚ�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝĨ�ĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�
ǁŝĚƚŚ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ͘ �ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďƵŝůĚƵƉ�ŽĨ�ƐŶŽǁ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌŽĂĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĞŝŐŚƚĞĞŶ�;ϭϴͿ�ĨĞĞƚ�ǁŝĚĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞĚ�Ă�ůŽŐŝƐƚŝĐƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ĨĂƚĂů�ĨŝƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĐĐƵƌƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽďůĞŵ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶƚĞŶƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ŽŶͲƐƚƌĞĞƚ�
ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŽĐĐƵƌƐ͘

/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ĚĞĐŝĚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�
EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�>ĂŬĞƐ�&ŝƌĞ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĨĞĞ�ŽĨ�ΨϰϳͬŚŽƵƌ͕�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�ŚŽƵƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ůĞƚ�ŵĞ�ŬŶŽǁ�ŝĨ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ͘

dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͘

7\OHU�'UHFKVHO
'LYLVLRQ�&KLHI�RI�)LUH�3UHYHQWLRQ�)LUH�0DUVKDO
1RUWKHUQ�/DNHV�)LUH�3URWHFWLRQ�'LVWULFW
(PDLO��WGUHFKVHO#QRUWKHUQODNHVILUH�FRP
2IILFH��������������
&HOO��������������

)URP� *RUGRQ�'REOHU�>PDLOWR�JRUGRQ#GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP@�
6HQW� 7XHVGD\��$SULO���������������30
7R� $GDP�)UHGHULFN#LGZU�LGDKR�JRY��DQJHOD�FUDQHU#XVSV�JRY��EFOHVOLH#ESD�JRY��%RUFKDUGW��&DUH\�)��
GDQLWDE#FHQWXU\WHO�QHW��'DYLG�&DOODKDQ��HULF#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��IOHQ�JD]#EQVI�FRP��MFPXUUD\#ESD�JRY��
+RZDUG��-DPLH��MDVRQ�QHEHO#FKDUWHU�FRP��-HUHP\�+RIHU��LQIR#NFHPVV�RUJ��NHYLQ#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��
DPDULHQDX#NPSR�QHW��.ULVWLH�0F(QURH#GHT�LGDKR�JRY��ERQQ\#ODNHVKZ\�FRP��
0DWWKHZ�3ODLVWHG#GHT�LGDKR�JRY��VHOOLVRQ#SKG��LGDKR�JRY��PGPFSKHH#ESD�JRY��,QIR#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP��
WRPL#UDWKGUXPSROLFH�RUJ��+HOPLFN�,,��5RQDOG��VKLUOH\#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP��6WDF\�6LPNLQV��
VWKRPVRQ#QRUWKLGDKRVWHP�FRP��6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP��EHFN\�PH\HU#ODNHODQG����RUJ��
WRGG�NLHVEX\#DYLVWDFRUS�FRP��7\OHU�'UHFKVHO��:LOOLDP�5REHUVRQ#LWG�LGDKR�JRY
&F� FDU\#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��3DXO�/XEHU��-DFN�6PHWDQD
6XEMHFW� :LOORZ�&UHHN�0RELOH�+RPH�3DUN�38'



�ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ͕��ŝƚǇ�WůĂŶŶĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͕�/�Ăŵ�ƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/��ϭϵ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ͕�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉƌĞͲĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǇŽƵ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŵĂŝů͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƐĞŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĂƐ�
͞ƌĞƉůǇ�Ăůů͟�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͘

tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝŶ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƚŚ ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛ĂůĞŶĞ�;ƐĞĞ�
ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂƉͿ͘ dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�Wh��ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǇĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐĞƚďĂĐŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚ�ůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ͘ /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚƉůĂŝŶ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽďƐŽůĞƐĐĞŶĐĞ�
Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�Ăƚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ͘ dŚĞ�Wh��ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϱƚŚ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�
�ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ Žƌ ϮϬϴ͘ϲϴϳ͘ϮϳϬϬ �ǆƚ͘�ϭϭϳ ͘

'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͕�W͘�͘
�ŽďůĞƌ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ϮϬϴ�ϳϱϱͲϵϳϯϮ



&ƌŽŵ͗�'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ
^ĞŶƚ͗�dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϱ͗ϰϵ�WD
dŽ͗��ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖��ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&͖�
ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖��ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ͖�ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ͖�ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ƐĞůůŝƐŽŶΛƉŚĚϭ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ͖�ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĂĐǇ�
^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ͖�ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�dǇůĞƌ��ƌĞĐŚƐĞů͖�
tŝůůŝĂŵ͘ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ
�Đ͗�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

�ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ͕��ŝƚǇ�WůĂŶŶĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͕�/�Ăŵ�ƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/��ϭϵ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ͕�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉƌĞͲĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǇŽƵ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŵĂŝů͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƐĞŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĂƐ�
͞ƌĞƉůǇ�Ăůů͟�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͘

tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝŶ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƚŚ ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛ĂůĞŶĞ�;ƐĞĞ�
ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂƉͿ͘ dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�Wh��ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǇĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐĞƚďĂĐŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚ�ůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ͘ /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚƉůĂŝŶ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽďƐŽůĞƐĐĞŶĐĞ�
Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�Ăƚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ͘ dŚĞ�Wh��ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϱƚŚ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�
�ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ Žƌ ϮϬϴ͘ϲϴϳ͘ϮϳϬϬ �ǆƚ͘�ϭϭϳ ͘

'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͕�W͘�͘
�ŽďůĞƌ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ϮϬϴ�ϳϱϱͲϵϳϯϮ



Hunter G. Foreman
Text Box
Page 5 - Kootenai County GIS - Park Aerial Map with Plat shown



&ƌŽŵ͗�DĂŝů��ĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�^ƵďƐǇƐƚĞŵ
^ĞŶƚ͗�dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϱ͗ϰϵ�WD
dŽ͗�ŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗��ĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�^ƚĂƚƵƐ�EŽƚŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�;&ĂŝůƵƌĞͿ

DĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ďůŽĐŬĞĚ�

zŽƵƌ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ƚŽ�ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ďůŽĐŬĞĚ͘�^ĞĞ�ƚĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĨŽƌ�
ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ͘�

dŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽƚĞ�ƐĞƌǀĞƌ�ǁĂƐ͗

��� �������IOHQ�JD]#EQVI�FRP!��5HFLSLHQW�DGGUHVV�UHMHFWHG��$FFHVV�GHQLHG�

Loading
...



&ƌŽŵ͗�ZĂǇŵŽŶĚ͕�ŵĂŶĚĂ�Z�;�W�Ϳ�Ͳ d�ZZͲ��>>Ͳϭ
^ĞŶƚ͗�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϴ͗ϰϮ��D
dŽ͗�ŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�&t͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ�ƐŽ�ŵƵĐŚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŵĂŝůŝŶŐ��W��ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬ͘�
�W��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘�

'ŽŽĚ�>ƵĐŬ͊�

�ŵĂŶĚĂ�ZĂǇŵŽŶĚ
ZĞĂůƚǇ�^ƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ʹ �Ğůů
ZĞĂů�WƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ
�ŽŶŶĞǀŝůůĞ�WŽǁĞƌ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ
�͘�ϮϰϭϬ�,ĂǁƚŚŽƌŶĞ�ZĚ͕�DĞĂĚ͕�t��ϵϵϬϮϭ
;ϱϬϵͿ�ϰϲϴͲϯϬϴϭ ʹ ŽĨĨŝĐĞ
;ϱϬϵͿ�ϯϬϵͲϵϳϴϴ ʹ ĐĞůů
ĂƌƌĂǇŵŽŶĚΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ

&ƌŽŵ͗ >ĞƐůŝĞ͕�ƌĞŶƚ���;�W�Ϳ�Ͳ d�ZZͲZ��DKE��фďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀх�
^ĞŶƚ͗tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϲ͗ϰϰ��D
dŽ͗ ZĂǇŵŽŶĚ͕�ŵĂŶĚĂ�Z�;�W�Ϳ�Ͳ d�ZZͲ��>>Ͳϭ�фĂƌƌĂǇŵŽŶĚΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗ &t͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

&z/

ZĞŐĂƌĚƐ͕

%UHQW�/HVOLH�
ZĞĂůƚǇ�^ƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�
�ŽŶŶĞǀŝůůĞ�WŽǁĞƌ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ͮ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŶĞƌŐǇ
ZĞĂů�WƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�&ŝĞůĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ͮ�d�ZZͲZ��DKE�
ϯϲϱϱ�^t�,ŝŐŚůĂŶĚ��ǀĞ
ZĞĚŵŽŶĚ͕�KZ�ϵϳϳϱϲ
KĨĨŝĐĞ͗ ;ϱϰϭͿ�ϱϭϲͲϯϮϱϳ DŽďŝůĞ͗�;ϵϳϭͿ�ϮϴϰͲϵϱϳϰ
ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ
>ĂŶĚŽǁŶĞƌ�hƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ
ŚƚƚƉƐ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀͬWƵďůŝĐ/ŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚͬ>ĂŶĚƐ�ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬWĂŐĞƐͬĚĞĨĂƵůƚ͘ĂƐƉǆ



�ŽŶĨŝĚĞŶƚŝĂůŝƚǇ�EŽƚŝĐĞ͗ dŚŝƐ�ĞͲŵĂŝů�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�ĂƚƚĂĐŚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽůĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ƌĞĐŝƉŝĞŶƚ;ƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�
ŵĂǇ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ĐŽŶĨŝĚĞŶƚŝĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝǀŝůĞŐĞĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ͘��ŶǇ�ƵŶĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞĚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͕�ƵƐĞ͕�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞ͕�ĐŽƉǇŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ͕�
ŝƐ�ƐƚƌŝĐƚůǇ�ƉƌŽŚŝďŝƚĞĚ͘�/Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ƌĞĐŝƉŝĞŶƚ͕�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞŶĚĞƌ�ďǇ�ĞͲŵĂŝů�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƐƚƌŽǇ�Ăůů�ĐŽƉŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ͘

&ƌŽŵ͗ 'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ�фŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵх�
^ĞŶƚ͗ dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϱ͗ϰϵ�WD
dŽ͗ �ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�>ĞƐůŝĞ͕�ƌĞŶƚ���;�W�Ϳ�Ͳ d�ZZͲZ��DKE��
фďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀх͖��ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&�ф�ĂƌĞǇ͘�ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵх͖�ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖�
�ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ�фĚĐĂůůĂŚĂŶΛŬĐŐŽǀ͘ƵƐх͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�DƵƌƌĂǇ͕:ĂŵŝĞ���;�W�Ϳ�Ͳ
d�ZZͲ<�>/^W�>>�фũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀх͖�,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ�ф:ĂŵŝĞ͘,ŽǁĂƌĚΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ�ф:,ŽĨĞƌΛŬĞĐ͘ĐŽŵх͖�ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖
ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ƐĞůůŝƐŽŶΛƉŚĚϭ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ�фƌŽŶĂůĚ͘ů͘ŚĞůŵŝĐŬ͘ŝŝΛĨƚƌ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĂĐǇ�^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ�ф^ƚĂĐǇ͘^ŝŵŬŝŶƐΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀх͖�
ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�dǇůĞƌ��ƌĞĐŚƐĞů�фƚĚƌĞĐŚƐĞůΛŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶůĂŬĞƐĨŝƌĞ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
tŝůůŝĂŵ͘ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ
�Đ͗ ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ�фƉƚůƵďĞƌΛƐĞŶĞĐĂĐƉ͘ĐŽŵх͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ�
фũƐŵĞƚĂŶĂΛƌŽĂĚƌƵŶŶĞƌ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗ �yd�ZE�>�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

�ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ͕��ŝƚǇ�WůĂŶŶĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͕�/�Ăŵ�ƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/��ϭϵ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ͕�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉƌĞͲĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǇŽƵ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŵĂŝů͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƐĞŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĂƐ�
͞ƌĞƉůǇ�Ăůů͟�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͘

tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝŶ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƚŚ ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛ĂůĞŶĞ�;ƐĞĞ�
ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂƉͿ͘ dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚƐ ĂŶĚ�Ă�Wh��ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǇĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐĞƚďĂĐŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚ�ůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ͘ /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚƉůĂŝŶ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽďƐŽůĞƐĐĞŶĐĞ�
Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�Ăƚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ͘ dŚĞ�Wh��ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϱƚŚ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�
�ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ Žƌ ϮϬϴ͘ϲϴϳ͘ϮϳϬϬ �ǆƚ͘�ϭϭϳ ͘

'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͕�W͘�͘
�ŽďůĞƌ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ϮϬϴ�ϳϱϱͲϵϳϯϮ



&ƌŽŵ͗�&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬ͕��ĚĂŵ
^ĞŶƚ͗�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϳ͗ϬϮ��D
dŽ͗�'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�Z�͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

dŚĞ�/ĚĂŚŽ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�tĂƚĞƌ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚ͘

�ĚĂŵ

�ĚĂŵ�&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬ
tĂƚĞƌ�ZŝŐŚƚƐ�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ
/ĚĂŚŽ��ĞƉƚ͘�ŽĨ�tĂƚĞƌ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ
EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�KĨĨŝĐĞ
WŚŽŶĞ�ϮϬϴͲϳϲϮͲϮϴϬϬ

&ƌŽŵ͗ 'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ�ŵĂŝůƚŽ͗ŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵ�
^ĞŶƚ͗ dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϱ͗ϰϵ�WD
dŽ͗ &ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬ͕��ĚĂŵ�ф�ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀх͖�ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
�ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&�ф�ĂƌĞǇ͘�ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵх͖�ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖��ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ�
фĚĐĂůůĂŚĂŶΛŬĐŐŽǀ͘ƵƐх͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ�
ф:ĂŵŝĞ͘,ŽǁĂƌĚΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵх͖�ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ�ф:,ŽĨĞƌΛŬĞĐ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ƐĞůůŝƐŽŶΛƉŚĚϭ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ�
фƌŽŶĂůĚ͘ů͘ŚĞůŵŝĐŬ͘ŝŝΛĨƚƌ͘ĐŽŵх͖�ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĂĐǇ�^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ�ф^ƚĂĐǇ͘^ŝŵŬŝŶƐΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀх͖�
ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�dǇůĞƌ��ƌĞĐŚƐĞů�фƚĚƌĞĐŚƐĞůΛŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶůĂŬĞƐĨŝƌĞ͘ĐŽŵх͖�
tŝůůŝĂŵ͘ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ
�Đ͗ ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ�фƉƚůƵďĞƌΛƐĞŶĞĐĂĐƉ͘ĐŽŵх͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ�
фũƐŵĞƚĂŶĂΛƌŽĂĚƌƵŶŶĞƌ͘ĐŽŵх
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

�ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ͕��ŝƚǇ�WůĂŶŶĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͕�/�Ăŵ�ƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/��ϭϵ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ͕�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉƌĞͲĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǇŽƵ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŵĂŝů͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƐĞŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĂƐ�
͞ƌĞƉůǇ�Ăůů͟�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͘

tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝŶ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƚŚ ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛ĂůĞŶĞ�;ƐĞĞ�
ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂƉͿ͘ dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�Wh��ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǇĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐĞƚďĂĐŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚ�ůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ͘ /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚƉůĂŝŶ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽďƐŽůĞƐĐĞŶĐĞ�
Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�Ăƚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ͘ dŚĞ�Wh��ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘



WůĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϱƚŚ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�
�ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ Žƌ ϮϬϴ͘ϲϴϳ͘ϮϳϬϬ �ǆƚ͘�ϭϭϳ ͘

'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͕�W͘�͘
�ŽďůĞƌ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ϮϬϴ�ϳϱϱͲϵϳϯϮ



&ƌŽŵ͗��ŚƌŝƐ�tĂǇ
^ĞŶƚ͗�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϭϭ͗ϯϯ��D
dŽ͗�ŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵ
�Đ͗�ƚĚƌĞĐŚƐĞůΛŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶůĂŬĞƐĨŝƌĞ͘ĐŽŵ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

�ĞĂƌ�^ŝƌ͕

<��D^^�ŚĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�>ĂŬĞƐ�&ŝƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŵĞŶƚŝŽŶĞĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͘ dŚĂŶŬ�
ǇŽƵ�ĨŽƌ�ĂůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƵƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚ

&KULVWRSKHU�(��:D\��%$��3DUDPHGLF
&KLHI��.RRWHQDL�&RXQW\�(06�6\VWHP
�����:HVW�6HOWLFH�:D\
&RHXU�G
�$OHQH��,'������
������������ �2IILFH�
������������ �)D[�
FKULVZ#NFHPVV�RUJ

�7KH�HVVHQFH�RI�WKH�SDVW�LV�H[SHULHQFH��7KH�HVVHQFH�RI�WKH�IXWXUH�LV�RSSRUWXQLW\��7KH�HVVHQFH�RI�
ZLVGRP�LV�WR�SURSHUO\�FRQQHFW�WKH�WZR��



r:\public works\app review-plats+site plans\long plats\willow creek replat and pud 2020\memo kj-cs - 6.15.2020.docx 

Memo 
To:   Cary Siess (via email) 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  June 15, 2020 

Re:  Proposed Willow Creek PUD 

Here are some comments which address public infrastructure conditions/expectations 
for Willow Creek. 

Sanitary Sewer Collection System 

The sanitary sewer collection system within Willow Creek is privately-owned by the 
property owner (Idaho Contractors, Inc.).  This includes the sanitary sewer upstream 
of the sewer tie-in point which is located on Lot 4 of the Forest Park Addition. 
 
Rathdrum Public Works would like for the Willow Creek sanitary sewer system to 
remain privately-owned and privately-maintained. 
 
Water Distribution System 

The water distribution system, including hydrants, within Willow Creek is privately-
owned by the property owner (Idaho Contractors, Inc.).  The Willow Creek water 
system connects to the City of Rathdrum’s water system at Coeur d’Alene Street.  
Currently, Willow Creek is assessed a base monthly water/sewer fee for each lot.  The 
water consumption/usage is currently not metered.  There is a meter vault near the 
Coeur d’Alene Street tie-in location – but, it is out-of-service and non-functional. 
 
Rathdrum Public Works would like for the Willow Creek water system to remain 
privately-owned and privately-maintained.  However, for the purposes of tracking water 
usage, we would like the commercial water meter set-up to be rehabilitated.  The costs 
associated with re-establishing an accurate & reliable water meter set-up shall be 
borne by the property owner.  The water meter arrangement would need to be made 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



Memo KJ-CS - 6.15.2020.docx 

compliant with the Rathdrum Standard for 4-inch water meter set.  The water meter 
vault, including meter, will be owned by the property owner. 
 
Roadways 

The roadways within Willow Creek are publicly-owned and maintained by Rathdrum 
Public Works.   
 
In 2014-2015, Rathdrum Public Works had all of the Willow Creek roadways 
rehabilitated by patching pavement failure areas followed by an asphalt pavement 
overlay of all Willow Creek streets.  Immediately following the City’s pavement 
rehabilitation program, several Willow Creek residents were requesting to open-cut the 
roadways so that they could extend natural gas service to their respective lots.  With 
this in mind, the City of Rathdrum presented the opportunity to Idaho Contractors to 
make the Willow Creek roadways private. 
 
Permits & Fees Required 

An extension of a utility service to any lot will require that the applicant secure a right-
of-way encroachment permit from Rathdrum Public Works and remit payment for 
associated fees. 
 
Where a lot currently sits vacant, the City of Rathdrum will also require the applicant to 
remit payment for capitalization fees, impact fees, hook-up fees, and building permit 
fees. 
 



&ƌŽŵ͗�dǇůĞƌ��ƌĞĐŚƐĞů
^ĞŶƚ͗�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϳ͗ϱϮ��D
dŽ͗�'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͖��ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
�ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&͖�ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖��ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
ũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ͖�ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ͖�ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ƐĞůůŝƐŽŶΛƉŚĚϭ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ͖�ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĂĐǇ�
^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ͖�ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�tŝůůŝĂŵ͘ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ
�Đ͗�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�Z�͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�Ă�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ũƵƐƚ�ŝƚĞŵƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚͬĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŝŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞͲ
ƉůĂƚ͘

dŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�>ĂŬĞƐ�&ŝƌĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĨŝƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ĐĂůůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ dŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ůŽŐŝƐƚŝĐĂů�ƉƌŽďůĞŵƐ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ůĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĨůŽǁͬĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ƚǁŽ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ŵƵĐŚ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƐƉĂĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĨƌŝĐƚŝŽŶ�ůŽƐƐ�ŝĨ�Ă�ĨŝƌĞ�ŽĐĐƵƌƐ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϱϬϬ�ĨĞĞƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌŝĐƚŝŽŶ�ůŽƐƐ�
ŐƌĞĂƚůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĨůŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶŐŝŶĞͬƉƵŵƉĞƌ͘� dŚŝƐ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞƐ�Ă�ƉƌŽďůĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ĞǆƚŝŶŐƵŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘

dŚĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŝƐ�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚ͕�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐĂůůǇ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘ dŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ
ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ�ƚǁĞŶƚǇ�;ϮϬͿ�ĨĞĞƚ�ǁŝĚĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĐĐĞƉƚĂďůĞ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�&ŝƌĞ��ŽĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ďƵƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�Ă�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƚǁĞŶƚǇͲƐŝǆ�;ϮϲͿ�ĨŽŽƚ�ǁŝĚĞ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚ�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝĨ�ĨŝƌĞ�ŚǇĚƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�
ǁŝĚƚŚ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ͘ �ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďƵŝůĚƵƉ�ŽĨ�ƐŶŽǁ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝĚĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌŽĂĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�ǁŝĚƚŚƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĞŝŐŚƚĞĞŶ�;ϭϴͿ�ĨĞĞƚ�ǁŝĚĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞĚ�Ă�ůŽŐŝƐƚŝĐƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ĨĂƚĂů�ĨŝƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĐĐƵƌƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽďůĞŵ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶƚĞŶƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ŽŶͲƐƚƌĞĞƚ�
ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŽĐĐƵƌƐ͘

/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ĚĞĐŝĚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�
EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�>ĂŬĞƐ�&ŝƌĞ ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĨĞĞ�ŽĨ�ΨϰϳͬŚŽƵƌ͕�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�ŚŽƵƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ůĞƚ�ŵĞ�ŬŶŽǁ�ŝĨ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ͘

dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͘

7\OHU�'UHFKVHO
'LYLVLRQ�&KLHI�RI�)LUH�3UHYHQWLRQ�)LUH�0DUVKDO
1RUWKHUQ�/DNHV�)LUH�3URWHFWLRQ�'LVWULFW
(PDLO��WGUHFKVHO#QRUWKHUQODNHVILUH�FRP
2IILFH��������������
&HOO��������������



)URP� *RUGRQ�'REOHU�>PDLOWR�JRUGRQ#GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP@�
6HQW� 7XHVGD\��$SULO���������������30
7R� $GDP�)UHGHULFN#LGZU�LGDKR�JRY��DQJHOD�FUDQHU#XVSV�JRY��EFOHVOLH#ESD�JRY��%RUFKDUGW��&DUH\�)��
GDQLWDE#FHQWXU\WHO�QHW��'DYLG�&DOODKDQ��HULF#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��IOHQ�JD]#EQVI�FRP��MFPXUUD\#ESD�JRY��
+RZDUG��-DPLH��MDVRQ�QHEHO#FKDUWHU�FRP��-HUHP\�+RIHU��LQIR#NFHPVV�RUJ��NHYLQ#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��
DPDULHQDX#NPSR�QHW��.ULVWLH�0F(QURH#GHT�LGDKR�JRY��ERQQ\#ODNHVKZ\�FRP��
0DWWKHZ�3ODLVWHG#GHT�LGDKR�JRY��VHOOLVRQ#SKG��LGDKR�JRY��PGPFSKHH#ESD�JRY��,QIR#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP��
WRPL#UDWKGUXPSROLFH�RUJ��+HOPLFN�,,��5RQDOG��VKLUOH\#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP��6WDF\�6LPNLQV��
VWKRPVRQ#QRUWKLGDKRVWHP�FRP��6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP��EHFN\�PH\HU#ODNHODQG����RUJ��
WRGG�NLHVEX\#DYLVWDFRUS�FRP��7\OHU�'UHFKVHO��:LOOLDP�5REHUVRQ#LWG�LGDKR�JRY
&F� FDU\#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��3DXO�/XEHU��-DFN�6PHWDQD
6XEMHFW� :LOORZ�&UHHN�0RELOH�+RPH�3DUN�38'

�ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ͕��ŝƚǇ�WůĂŶŶĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͕�/�Ăŵ�ƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/��ϭϵ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ͕�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉƌĞͲĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǇŽƵ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŵĂŝů͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƐĞŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĂƐ�
͞ƌĞƉůǇ�Ăůů͟�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͘

tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝŶ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƚŚ ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛ĂůĞŶĞ�;ƐĞĞ�
ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂƉͿ͘ dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�Wh��ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǇĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐĞƚďĂĐŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚ�ůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ͘ /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚƉůĂŝŶ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽďƐŽůĞƐĐĞŶĐĞ�
Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�Ăƚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ͘ dŚĞ�Wh��ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϱƚŚ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�
�ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ Žƌ ϮϬϴ͘ϲϴϳ͘ϮϳϬϬ �ǆƚ͘�ϭϭϳ ͘

'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͕�W͘�͘
�ŽďůĞƌ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ϮϬϴ�ϳϱϱͲϵϳϯϮ



&ƌŽŵ͗�dŽŶǇ��ǁŝŶŬ
^ĞŶƚ͗�dŚƵƌƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�Ϯϯ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϵ͗Ϭϯ��D
dŽ͗�'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͖��ĚĂŵ͘&ƌĞĚĞƌŝĐŬΛŝĚǁƌ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ĂŶŐĞůĂ͘ĐƌĂŶĞƌΛƵƐƉƐ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďĐůĞƐůŝĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�
�ŽƌĐŚĂƌĚƚ͕��ĂƌĞǇ�&͖�ĚĂŶŝƚĂďΛĐĞŶƚƵƌǇƚĞů͘ŶĞƚ͖��ĂǀŝĚ��ĂůůĂŚĂŶ͖�ĞƌŝĐΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĨůĞŶ͘ŐĂǌΛďŶƐĨ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
ũĐŵƵƌƌĂǇΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�,ŽǁĂƌĚ͕�:ĂŵŝĞ͖�ũĂƐŽŶ͘ŶĞďĞůΛĐŚĂƌƚĞƌ͘ĐŽŵ͖�:ĞƌĞŵǇ�,ŽĨĞƌ͖�ŝŶĨŽΛŬĐĞŵƐƐ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ŬĞǀŝŶΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ͖�ĂŵĂƌŝĞŶĂƵΛŬŵƉŽ͘ŶĞƚ͖�<ƌŝƐƚŝĞ͘DĐ�ŶƌŽĞΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�ďŽŶŶǇΛůĂŬĞƐŚǁǇ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
DĂƚƚŚĞǁ͘WůĂŝƐƚĞĚΛĚĞƋ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖�^ŚĂǁŶ��ůůŝƐŽŶ͖�ŵĚŵĐƉŚĞĞΛďƉĂ͘ŐŽǀ͖�/ŶĨŽΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�
ƚŽŵŝΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵƉŽůŝĐĞ͘ŽƌŐ͖�,ĞůŵŝĐŬ�//͕�ZŽŶĂůĚ͖�ƐŚŝƌůĞǇΛƉŽƐƚĨĂůůƐŚĚ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĂĐǇ�^ŝŵŬŝŶƐ͖�
ƐƚŚŽŵƐŽŶΛŶŽƌƚŚŝĚĂŚŽƐƚĞŵ͘ĐŽŵ͖�^ƚĞǀĞͺŵĐŶƵůƚǇΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ͖�ďĞĐŬǇ͘ŵĞǇĞƌΛůĂŬĞůĂŶĚϮϳϮ͘ŽƌŐ͖�
ƚŽĚĚ͘ŬŝĞƐďƵǇΛĂǀŝƐƚĂĐŽƌƉ͘ĐŽŵ͖�tŝůůŝĂŵ͘ZŽďĞƌƐŽŶΛŝƚĚ͘ŝĚĂŚŽ͘ŐŽǀ͖��Đ͖͗�WĂƵů�>ƵďĞƌ͖�:ĂĐŬ�^ŵĞƚĂŶĂ
�Đ͗�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�Z�͗�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

�ůů͕

/ƚ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ�ƚŚŝƐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƐĞǁĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘��Ɛ�ƐƵĐŚ͕�W,��ǁŝůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�
ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŝůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĨŝůĞ�Ă�>ĂŶĚ��ƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ŽĨĨŝĐĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚƚŝŶŐ͘�

7RQ\�=ZLQN
(QYLURQPHQWDO�+HDOWK�6SHFLDOLVW
3DQKDQGOH�+HDOWK�'LVWULFW
W]ZLQN#SKG��LGDKR�JRY
2IILFH����������������
&HOO����������������
�����1��$WODV�5RDG
+D\GHQ��,'�����

)URP� *RUGRQ�'REOHU�>PDLOWR�JRUGRQ#GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP@�
6HQW� 7XHVGD\��$SULO���������������30
7R� $GDP�)UHGHULFN#LGZU�LGDKR�JRY��DQJHOD�FUDQHU#XVSV�JRY��EFOHVOLH#ESD�JRY��%RUFKDUGW��&DUH\�)��



GDQLWDE#FHQWXU\WHO�QHW��'DYLG�&DOODKDQ��HULF#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��IOHQ�JD]#EQVI�FRP��MFPXUUD\#ESD�JRY��
+RZDUG��-DPLH��MDVRQ�QHEHO#FKDUWHU�FRP��-HUHP\�+RIHU��LQIR#NFHPVV�RUJ��NHYLQ#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��
DPDULHQDX#NPSR�QHW��.ULVWLH�0F(QURH#GHT�LGDKR�JRY��ERQQ\#ODNHVKZ\�FRP��
0DWWKHZ�3ODLVWHG#GHT�LGDKR�JRY��VHOOLVRQ#SKG��LGDKR�JRY��PGPFSKHH#ESD�JRY��,QIR#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP��
WRPL#UDWKGUXPSROLFH�RUJ��+HOPLFN�,,��5RQDOG��VKLUOH\#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP��6WDF\�6LPNLQV��
VWKRPVRQ#QRUWKLGDKRVWHP�FRP��6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP��EHFN\�PH\HU#ODNHODQG����RUJ��
WRGG�NLHVEX\#DYLVWDFRUS�FRP��7\OHU�'UHFKVHO��:LOOLDP�5REHUVRQ#LWG�LGDKR�JRY
&F� FDU\#UDWKGUXP�RUJ��3DXO�/XEHU��-DFN�6PHWDQD
6XEMHFW� :LOORZ�&UHHN�0RELOH�+RPH�3DUN�38'

�ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ͕��ŝƚǇ�WůĂŶŶĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͕�/�Ăŵ�ƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/��ϭϵ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ͕�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉƌĞͲĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǇŽƵ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŵĂŝů͘�WůĞĂƐĞ�ƐĞŶĚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ĂƐ�
͞ƌĞƉůǇ�Ăůů͟�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͘

tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�D,�ƉĂƌŬ�ŝŶ�ZĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƚŚ ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĞƵƌ�Ě͛ĂůĞŶĞ�;ƐĞĞ�
ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂƉͿ͘ dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞͲƉůĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�Wh��ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǇĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚďĂĐŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƐĞƚďĂĐŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌ�ůŽƚ�ůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƌĞ�ĐŽĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ͘ /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨůŽŽĚƉůĂŝŶ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽďƐŽůĞƐĐĞŶĐĞ�
Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�Ăƚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌŬ͘ dŚĞ�Wh��ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘

WůĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�tĞĚŶĞƐĚĂǇ͕�DĂǇ�ϱƚŚ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�
�ĂƌǇ�^ŝĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ĐĂƌǇΛƌĂƚŚĚƌƵŵ͘ŽƌŐ Žƌ ϮϬϴ͘ϲϴϳ͘ϮϳϬϬ �ǆƚ͘�ϭϭϳ ͘

'ŽƌĚŽŶ��ŽďůĞƌ͕�W͘�͘
�ŽďůĞƌ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ
ϮϬϴ�ϳϱϱͲϵϳϯϮ





































From: Tomi McLean <tomi@rathdrumpolice.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 11:37 AM 
To: 'Paul luber' <ptluber@senecacp.com> 
Cc: Cary Siess <cary@rathdrum.org> 
Subject: Calls for service 
 

Paul, 
 
I have attached the calls for service we were discussing. We had over 355 calls last year in Willow Creek. 
This would be Bordon Court, Meadow Brook, Park Loop, parts of Cda St  and part of 4th St.  I also 
checked the subdivision south of Willow Creek. It consists of State ST, Parkway, Larch, Roth Court and 
half of 4th St. Total calls for that area in the same time frame was 109. So to answer the question if we 
have more calls for service in Willow Creek the answer is yes. Numbers could be off a few, but not much 
more.  
 
I did not include calls for service for Stub Meyer Park. It sits between Willow Creek and the subdivision.  
 
If you have any questions let me know. 
 
Thanks 
Chief McLean 
 

 [External Email] 



&ƌŽŵ͗�ƉŽƐƚŵĂƐƚĞƌΛƚƌĂŶƐĐĂŶĂĚĂ͘ĐŽŵ
^ĞŶƚ͗�dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕��Ɖƌŝů�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�ϲ͗ϰϯ�WD
dŽ͗�ŐŽƌĚŽŶΛĚŽďůĞƌĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͘ĐŽŵ
^ƵďũĞĐƚ͗�hŶĚĞůŝǀĞƌĂďůĞ͗��yd�ZE�>�tŝůůŽǁ��ƌĞĞŬ�DŽďŝůĞ�,ŽŵĞ�WĂƌŬͲWh�

&2�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP UHMHFWHG�\RXU�PHVVDJH�WR�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�H�PDLO�DGGUHVVHV�

6WHYHB0F1XOW\#75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP

&2�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP JDYH�WKLV�HUURU�
+RS�FRXQW�H[FHHGHG�� SRVVLEOH�PDLO�ORRS�$775��>&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP@�

$�SUREOHP�RFFXUUHG�GXULQJ�WKH�GHOLYHU\�RI�WKLV�PHVVDJH��3OHDVH�WU\�WR�UHVHQG�WKH�PHVVDJH�ODWHU�

'LDJQRVWLF�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IRU�DGPLQLVWUDWRUV�

*HQHUDWLQJ�VHUYHU��WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP

6WHYHB0F1XOW\#75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP
&2�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ������������+RS�FRXQW�H[FHHGHG�� SRVVLEOH�PDLO�ORRS�
$775��>&2�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP@�
��UIF����VWHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP

2ULJLQDO�PHVVDJH�KHDGHUV�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���%1��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������
E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP ��������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E�����E������
E\
&<�35����0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��D�������H����F��F������ZLWK
0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG����������������:HG�����$SU
�������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E�����E�FDIH������E\�'0�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E�����E������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG��������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�



KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�
FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP �����������������E\
'0�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ����������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�

6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���&2��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������
E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP ��������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�&2�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E������������
E\�%1�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E������I�������ZLWK
0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG����������������:HG�����$SU
�������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�&2�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E��������FDIH��IF��E\�&2�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E�������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG���������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�

FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP �����������������E\
&2�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ����������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�

6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���%1��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������
E\
PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP ��������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�35����&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E�����D�����
E\�&<�35����0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��D�������H����F���������ZLWK
0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG����������������:HG�����$SU
�������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E�����D�FDIH������E\�'0�35����&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E�����D������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG���������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�

FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ



GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�
5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP �����������������E\
'0�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���0:��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������
E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP ��������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E�����G������
E\
%/�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E��������������ZLWK�

0LFURVRIW
6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����

LG
���������������:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E�����G�FDIH��ID��E\�'0�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E�����G������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG���������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�

FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP �����������������E\
'0�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���%1��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������
E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP ��������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E������������
E\
%1�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E��������������ZLWK�

0LFURVRIW
6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����

LG
���������������:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E�������FDIH������E\�'0�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG���������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�

FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP �����������������E\
'0�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073



6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���'0��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ���������������
E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP ��������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�&2�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E������������
E\�'0�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP ��������E������������ZLWK
0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG����������������:HG�����$SU
�������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�&2�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E��������FDIH���F��E\�&2�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E�������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG��������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�

FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP �����������������E\
&2�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP ����������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�

6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���'0��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP����������������
E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP���������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP���������E������������
E\
%<$35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP���������E��D�����������ZLWK�

0LFURVRIW
6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����

LG
���������������:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�'0�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E�������FDIH������E\�'0�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG���������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH�GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�

FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�75$16&$1$'$�PDLO�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP������������������E\
'0�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP�����������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�

6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B&%&B6+$��LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�1$0���&2��REH�RXWERXQG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP����������������



E\�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP���������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��7/6��LG
������������7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�&2�35��&$�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP���������E������������
E\�%1�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP���������E�������F������ZLWK
0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG����������������:HG�����$SU
�������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�&2�1$0��)7����HRS�1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
��������E��������FDIH������E\�&2�35��&$�����RXWORRN�RIILFH����FRP
��������E�������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�6073�6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B��
FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG���������������YLD�)URQWHQG
7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��VSI VRIWIDLO��VHQGHU�,3�LV����������������
VPWS�PDLOIURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP��WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP��GNLP IDLO��VLJQDWXUH
GLG�QRW�YHULI\�
KHDGHU�G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�
GPDUF QRQH�DFWLRQ QRQH�KHDGHU�IURP GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�FRPSDXWK QRQH
UHDVRQ ���

5HFHLYHG�63)��6RIW)DLO��SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP��GRPDLQ�RI�WUDQVLWLRQLQJ
GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP�GLVFRXUDJHV�XVH�RI����������������DV�SHUPLWWHG�VHQGHU�

5HFHLYHG��IURP�P[�F����������SSKRVWHG�FRP������������������E\
&2�1$0��)7����PDLO�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP�����������������ZLWK�0LFURVRIW�

6073
6HUYHU��YHUVLRQ 7/6�B���FLSKHU 7/6B(&'+(B56$B:,7+B$(6B���B*&0B6+$�����LG
��������������YLD�)URQWHQG�7UDQVSRUW��:HG�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�SSV�ILOWHUG��P��������SSRSV�QHW�>���������@� E\
P[�F����������SSKRVWHG�FRP�����������������������ZLWK�6073�LG���0�S3�4������

IRU��VWHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP!��7XH�����$SU��������������������
$XWKHQWLFDWLRQ�5HVXOWV�2ULJLQDO��SSRSV�QHW� VSI SDVV
VPWS�PDLOIURP JRUGRQ#GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP� GPDUF QRQH

5HFHLYHG��IURP�SSV�UHLQMHFW��ORFDOKRVW�>���������@� E\
P[�F����������SSKRVWHG�FRP�ZLWK�(6073�LG���IY��IKEU�� �YHUVLRQ 7/6Y���
FLSKHU (&'+(�56$�$(6����*&0�6+$����ELWV ����YHULI\ 127� IRU
�VWHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP!��7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�SSV�UHLQMHFW��P��������SSRSV�QHW�>���������@� E\�SSV�UHLQMHFW
����������������������ZLWK�6073�LG���0�=;�������� IRU
�VWHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP!��7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��IURP�PDLO�SJ��I����JRRJOH�FRP��PDLO�SJ��I����JRRJOH�FRP
>��������������@� E\�P[�F����������SSKRVWHG�FRP�ZLWK�(6073�LG���IY��IK�X�

�
�YHUVLRQ 7/6Y����FLSKHU (&'+(�56$�$(6����*&0�6+$����ELWV ����

YHULI\ 127� IRU
�6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP!��7XH�����$SU��������������������

5HFHLYHG��E\�PDLO�SJ��I����JRRJOH�FRP�ZLWK�6073�LG�Q��VR������SJE����������
IRU
�6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP!��7XH�����$SU����������������������3'7�

'.,0�6LJQDWXUH��Y ���D UVD�VKD�����F UHOD[HG�UHOD[HG�
G GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP����������JDSSVVPWS�FRP��V ���������
K PHVVDJH�LG�PLPH�YHUVLRQ�GDWH�IURP�VXEMHFW�WKUHDG�WRSLF�WR�FF�
EK T&1++(�U�O<7<\20Y,5I�VOR,�%H7:&;U��;G<KT/=� �
E �+%:Q+;[O:D�(E)��T2;EK6<)TY\WN'4F�&.,NF�:N8JWF0RO-\G�PDM]LU<U/�D��
��=)VX�WKL����9.+X<$/Q%+K9)L�RP4OV+[ZII�E[�R3+�[U\;1GL�D�FY24+8(*RD�
7*)4I6,<+43�RRS0<'�,\K1$M97U:6:L0LWUDSO*�08JH,95K=):$�X8�(KF7S����:P
V�J%$QT.PYP*%FOV0�UU</+[/XFKE'F;G%��7�'E-X0'(7��<�<�$�;2�U5;8+M�IS[9
T]\6�33*N)&�K0�I*2U/53)�*4R,��G�'G��S6RF�/Y,9U[%<($�Z8SD'��\)J1KMZ%&
]L5$  

;�*RRJOH�'.,0�6LJQDWXUH��Y ���D UVD�VKD�����F UHOD[HG�UHOD[HG�



G �H����QHW��V ���������
K [�JP�PHVVDJH�VWDWH�PHVVDJH�LG�PLPH�YHUVLRQ�GDWH�IURP�VXEMHFW
�WKUHDG�WRSLF�WR�FF�

EK T&1++(�U�O<7<\20Y,5I�VOR,�%H7:&;U��;G<KT/=� �
E U�]�<[9WOJ4-�E,]$4���O;07PR�F+7+4\�NV�:F:�7S,Q�-IT*(�H.1YF��]Y]\-*
3EW6TN7�L8D5V<'H)\R-G,�U�(.I*4=&8=��X&HMKI8:R02E2L,.�(65MHG0I�ZGK6E�
&N7S(*Q8-Y�<5HM2�%Y7,HS�\E;�N�O][N�3Q)8\8J�'�Y�T&6;���OMF:�&.*28.9G�
GM���92E�=E��3]G/��Z9,+8�&Z39JOV5�PE8=�0[9�N�9�:Z�:I�/V=44/Z]<.�&�O*
N6Y:��QR51L�-&U]T(N*�$,E:�E�7L�J'%WM]�R�KOI839�6T$O48S<T;9VK-�34.ZS6
5E]J  

;�*P�0HVVDJH�6WDWH��$*L�3XEOH0�VY\Y'�V1N��+5UXH4&+=9[S8SNG<OJEU$TKG(++�X&$D3
M�N��-�,\1HM�'DR�J&Q<5YG]$  

;�*RRJOH�6PWS�6RXUFH��
$3L4\S.M\RN'%(R3F:.�W$�O�12;�K���)�85�S�//%�ZEYW�MZ+T'DR\$5JW6�1JP�'*��XDR�Z)
Z  
;�5HFHLYHG��E\������D����������ZLWK�6073�LG�
I��PU�������SJE�������������������

7XH�����$SU����������������������3'7�
5HFHLYHG��IURP�VPWS�JPDLO�FRP��>�������������@���������E\�VPWS�JPDLO�FRP�ZLWK
(60736$�LG�R�VP�������SIJ��������������������������������YHUVLRQ 7/6�B�
FLSKHU (&'+(�(&'6$�$(6����*&0�6+$����ELWV �����������������7XH�����$SU�����
����������������3'7�

0HVVDJH�,'����H�I��DD��F��IE���������G�G�#P[�JRRJOH�FRP!
0,0(�9HUVLRQ�����
'DWH��7XH�����$SU��������������������
)URP��*RUGRQ�'REOHU��JRUGRQ#GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP!
7KUHDG�7RSLF��:LOORZ�&UHHN�0RELOH�+RPH�3DUN�38'
7R���$GDP�)UHGHULFN#LGZU�LGDKR�JRY���$GDP�)UHGHULFN#LGZU�LGDKR�JRY!�

�DQJHOD�FUDQHU#XVSV�JRY���DQJHOD�FUDQHU#XVSV�JRY!���EFOHVOLH#ESD�JRY�
�EFOHVOLH#ESD�JRY!���%RUFKDUGW��&DUH\�)��

�&DUH\�%RUFKDUGW#FKDUWHU�FRP!�
�GDQLWDE#FHQWXU\WHO�QHW���GDQLWDE#FHQWXU\WHO�QHW!��'DYLG�&DOODKDQ
�GFDOODKDQ#NFJRY�XV!���HULF#UDWKGUXP�RUJ���HULF#UDWKGUXP�RUJ!�
�IOHQ�JD]#EQVI�FRP���IOHQ�JD]#EQVI�FRP!���MFPXUUD\#ESD�JRY�
�MFPXUUD\#ESD�JRY!���+RZDUG��-DPLH���-DPLH�+RZDUG#DYLVWDFRUS�FRP!�
�MDVRQ�QHEHO#FKDUWHU�FRP���MDVRQ�QHEHO#FKDUWHU�FRP!��-HUHP\�+RIHU
�-+RIHU#NHF�FRP!���LQIR#NFHPVV�RUJ���LQIR#NFHPVV�RUJ!��

�NHYLQ#UDWKGUXP�RUJ�
�NHYLQ#UDWKGUXP�RUJ!���DPDULHQDX#NPSR�QHW���DPDULHQDX#NPSR�QHW!�
�.ULVWLH�0F(QURH#GHT�LGDKR�JRY���.ULVWLH�0F(QURH#GHT�LGDKR�JRY!�
�ERQQ\#ODNHVKZ\�FRP���ERQQ\#ODNHVKZ\�FRP!��

�0DWWKHZ�3ODLVWHG#GHT�LGDKR�JRY�
�0DWWKHZ�3ODLVWHG#GHT�LGDKR�JRY!���VHOOLVRQ#SKG��LGDKR�JRY�
�VHOOLVRQ#SKG��LGDKR�JRY!���PGPFSKHH#ESD�JRY���PGPFSKHH#ESD�JRY!�
�,QIR#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP���,QIR#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP!��

�WRPL#UDWKGUXPSROLFH�RUJ�
�WRPL#UDWKGUXPSROLFH�RUJ!���+HOPLFN�,,��5RQDOG�
�URQDOG�O�KHOPLFN�LL#IWU�FRP!���VKLUOH\#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP�
�VKLUOH\#SRVWIDOOVKG�FRP!��6WDF\�6LPNLQV�

�6WDF\�6LPNLQV#LWG�LGDKR�JRY!�
�VWKRPVRQ#QRUWKLGDKRVWHP�FRP���VWKRPVRQ#QRUWKLGDKRVWHP�FRP!�
�6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP���6WHYHBPFQXOW\#WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP!�
�EHFN\�PH\HU#ODNHODQG����RUJ���EHFN\�PH\HU#ODNHODQG����RUJ!�
�WRGG�NLHVEX\#DYLVWDFRUS�FRP���WRGG�NLHVEX\#DYLVWDFRUS�FRP!��7\OHU�

'UHFKVHO
�WGUHFKVHO#QRUWKHUQODNHVILUH�FRP!���:LOOLDP�5REHUVRQ#LWG�LGDKR�JRY�
�:LOOLDP�5REHUVRQ#LWG�LGDKR�JRY!



&&���FDU\#UDWKGUXP�RUJ���FDU\#UDWKGUXP�RUJ!��3DXO�/XEHU
�SWOXEHU#VHQHFDFS�FRP!��-DFN�6PHWDQD��MVPHWDQD#URDGUXQQHU�FRP!

&RQWHQW�7\SH��PXOWLSDUW�PL[HG�
ERXQGDU\ �B���'(�(��($%���%)��%��%����%�&�����)B�

;�&/;�5HVSRQVH���7)N;*%�D(4S0HKFG(K(.:84;D��+7:[7=N-�$8�5&OK<)�[YF)�X<9[R6���
V(4S�7KGK5�Z<=�-�:%-7;5(.H8Z;<8$G8(0HD[�MF*J5&QO')�S�:K[L*+��5Z)�(4S'6%F++5�
V=(4S':5F+*[R=(4S'65FD%%RD*K(.:8�;=�=\(4S=65FDF5R4*QF**%NDF5V7(K$DGZ<<*J<D(
4S=;KGR<�N5&NO*)��<6�5=68W(6��/G8-):9�37KJ5&N12)ZG%D*5\4;�I+[SQ681OI(��+�)7�

:(�P7%�Z+%�OF)1�(4S<;%FI%%R(*[0G%[[/*5W2+[S-%5VD%%VE*J4I*J4E+KJ4*[�D+[R5&O��
=)�ZEIOS+(4S1;%FI*5J5&N[D)�O15:N5&N-3)��7<%0%<9SUE8$6(4S':KF<*K0((K�(*%VI%%
V7+%(.4O�;*[(.5)�;+[�5&N5-)[�5&N-F)[R5&N-))��F5��6<*FI(P5D(4S&7KGK5�Z<=�-�:�

%-7;5(.4NZ;E*�Z;P�K;*K/EPZ5&N-V)�K7+N0HI8[G=�=)(4S&4%GKF��M4Q%=;8�Q:%(.4OJ;�
D:)RE��7:�,<FOZ5&OS<)[V5&Q%R)��28�N=6;JIH*O'(%R5&Q%R)�SR+*8%(�KQ<9W4(%ND(4S
ZD%GW*QO�*[-]+;O/I5$=*K(.F*J;=%ZG5���**5-7%N4*5R5&Q%R)�(6+NGE=5��<��I(%ND(4�

SZD[GR+(OM:Q-�=*0F7%$D(4SZ6[GJE)�+4)VG*�1$6%$D(4SZE%GKH+13;�[I7OKG([$=*K(.F�
(0;E�S\F)OS5%OZ;%04*5R5&P��)[R5&OK1)�V5,$  
;�&/;�6KDGHV��0/;
6XEMHFW��>(;7(51$/@�:LOORZ�&UHHN�0RELOH�+RPH�3DUN�38'
;�3URRISRLQW�9LUXV�9HUVLRQ��YHQGRU IVHFXUH�HQJLQH ���������������������������
GHILQLWLRQV ����������B�������������������������VLJQDWXUHV �

;�3URRISRLQW�6SDP�'HWDLOV��UXOH LQERXQGBEORFNLQJBQRWVSDP�
SROLF\ LQERXQGBEORFNLQJ�VFRUH ��FO[VFRUH ���
SULRULW\VFRUH ���PDOZDUHVFRUH ��VXVSHFWVFRUH ��EXONVFRUH ��SKLVKVFRUH �
LPSRVWRUVFRUH ��VSDPVFRUH ��DGXOWVFRUH ��FODVVLILHU SDUVHBOLPLW�DGMXVW �
UHDVRQ PO[�VFDQFRXQW ��HQJLQH �����������������
GHILQLWLRQV PDLQ�����������

5HWXUQ�3DWK��JRUGRQ#GREOHUHQJLQHHULQJ�FRP
;�(23$WWULEXWHG0HVVDJH���
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�+7��7HQDQW
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�86�/$1*�HQ�6&/����659��,39�&$/�6)9�6.1�+�P[�F�
���������SSKRVWHG�FRP�375�P[�F�
���������SSKRVWHG�FRP�&$7�121(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�3XEOLF7UDIILF7\SH��(PDLO
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G��EF��G��D������������D�����G�H��F����
;�06�7UDIILF7\SH'LDJQRVWLF��
%1�35��0%�����_%<$35��0%�����_'0�35��0%�����_%1�35��0%�����_%/�35��0%�����_&<
�35����0%�����_%1�35��0%�����_&<�35����0%�����
;�/'�3URFHVVHG��E�FHH��F����F��I���E��E����I���E�����([W$GGU�([W$GGU�([W$GGU
;�06�2RE�7/&�22%&ODVVLILHUV��
2/0�������2/0�������2/0�������2/0�������2/0�������2/0�������2/0�������2/0����
���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"GWX-)U�4,KOY:D�XYK�R)I(:Y3=Z$VJ(7�KD.8N�U=.XLH[::QXE�Z:;O��D" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�X(�9WV&�UP=NU�6T�MG�\:[SW:&�*�7UE8:6K<T5)*.-0�80MW��UN�9V�K" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"<IQI�NJ9�OP-Y26W�D�1I1V�VWQ�*3$D<5�U66�DSTU=VVV<]�O�+�.��UD'" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"VV�R��,R�41KDE�,F&6�/T:-8EG��]VRE�TGF6HGQ�&,WE*2O�N�=��T8-H8" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"5�9V*$KK:$H�D<�G��=���8NO��L2*�J(U��*KR�M�-<:0Y)*0LQ�7XW5I08" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"E�<WNY)VV��V<]72&L/$&��E;:�2<P�919,$D,DXM'��&�+E1P1�V)U�]&3�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"'DRSIEHU<*059RM70�N)�'.8%Z(�IZ�)[�%(<(7.+K\7IN�---�8+VE�D$UE" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�:$34)W�I2�80WWMNF1��/*6&OO�]U4R<M,%IVNZU�G4M3QGL&�Y/5<%(�JK" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"D�OJFXN$25FN[[DM6D2(4N)'TW8-46JXQ0P[//0'O1,D(8TTF-N.]Q$5I837" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�PIU�.�SMJ,VIQ8S'N)21�Q'L1FH5HKVYMF�L�QS��W��L�%S(4;D9'(QZ,-" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�%07�($;&.<%%6SO%�D=)Y$W'3Q,J��XXS*\�J�S����P7'[WZ&N<-�,3;+9" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�2Y��<�S9MW0%IR9*PF6V<LK=[YKP.]J&��HY28U�(&�-V�FVHZ=*K8ETIQ�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"Q).9/P�[71IK1FHXGHOW�D6�(+HFZU�)&F�PE(S8�)U3Y'+$D30�MJSWV1O�" 



 "XV�DVFLL"4"M]*;Z:0�V46�,%77J-V�<DU�;O�V;$8��P�JV*+�/%��ZP*EN=�K:3�M+�G=" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"*O18,%%�5W7O&��RX�\�ZP��JLJGZ6�U�XM<2�-H�:�W9�&���'1�L2U��+�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4")�D*J0�=�MS�1'5�13�0�N.OVX��&�[8,�Y��(HQ�QT�9�]%5*�0=-(+\T�*" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4":K-P�;(P7MKN9*-,.�D�-Q28GY�5QK�\MZI��MM7OH,9&�0O=LQ6]K,O�U6*" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"0SZ'P**D5<=R.-NTM88G��58]P(LMOX�$&&PZ.ONO$&\5P�367ZP�'5�TSR�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"%H�-8RDL;*%\7(%��NR)SM�V=%$&365/(M,�'71J�5L'6�KFKH7V=�1Z0:+(" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�*'*2W�&'OZ�Z5M)3J�4�LR�8/\MOM�7XFI�Y\R8;�\H3YOKT+<NG<�-4))W" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�[,5E3//$'MI&V��<H+]J[9E�%3S/NT4�6'%G5QGS�\0LJ�XQ�KUS[G�NZ*O" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"1/;I]%�ROYK�0�XRHHRMQ]O:[P'7F5I5<ZJ�$FPDY9NE/�GG5Z1(:�]�O�GF" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"+��+PG/+&9ZW+61�4)3[EJF%:3;(/Y1S��);L$WL,/GL\�H2['5];�S=�H�." 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"4+�4=$�M%X7�+3��3-2,XTL65FQHE5�57DONQFM\Z�F(�X/]=4 �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��%1�35��0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��%1�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV���I���D�����D������������
��G�H���EE��
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"$5-W;+3;J\3�[:,��XG(IOF$�WQX�MNMT�1.I0JP�;�RJ<KMV�UN&T:D/%)G" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"8;S<�/��S+.�T$XK1�ZPR].[4=R]5LJ%��P1�O'�4)HJ+<<-TGRN47QO�WJ(" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"<'X*E(;6=�)�'NT)-�%NK�&I<]�MYP-���,8)�<8�+�KS&4*[LIR%KK�8P;]" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"O4\��LH/2NN3���)6,��H,%I�[;[F;.9][HT5:8��5GGT$=Y���[�0O1J(M9" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"9$�0:�]Z9U4D+�QD[*SYQZ4+�M\1O���;X2�SI.X.FP%�S;RWPUY*�/ZFF�Z" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"8���Q�*YI�=-�]�0Y\[.�:VJDDG(HGS3�O5<S�G)X\��QDY0�4,�U�$I\XT$" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"MS5�5I-R�.XS*H6HI&�]MW)�)DH)�J�*,*9D�IW8IQ�<X]=P;.[��<-8&�:'" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"6�]2*9E,�;QJ.HS/1TNK**�-�]666E$K=WH����(&:'G*6I50SQVL�)L]9M5" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4")=J(O2&�KIY<PMX�RULF2D�$�7X�[M9�*D�E[%�59&\7$MP8;0�+;�S�:KT1" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"=G5��3NY;I5�IP0J1:�YM+T�+�)+54�7L4GP8�WJ3X)JVR�*Y2)U�L9�=W(X" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"U]\&R��YD�I���QR�KJ'I0'[+.<S*6]W&&�,/�4K7$G��S$EOG1ES2�<�'�1" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"E&$.)D]V�U1�IK70E��3�5Z]��Y�G:[\-VS[4OH<7;Z779D(U&':VU9��,3Q" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"9=�EZO��H�UZT7R7HJ+HV0*3.5�LF<+3*G]��+G2��7S�4�9R�.[%.2:PFM;" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"NO�S.VE,T+.(�*2M'4��X7���H<��4\2;MT��L[EZ�%�;8�(5NE2'�679-(]" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"5=2�;E7*Y\6-%.NG��Y3G<4]9M]%))RI:O�5H�;E�=*JX(�64N�=�ZZP*EJ�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"2KE;�]�0\VSIT4=S==4LH[6[�Y;%\VH;S�Q)�2QS�;9N�L/E:�M62I3�LY=T" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�,PNGQZ;J%M�-�[P\JEV;)8�5H���]LP'W4<953-I�:0RK;6�[&�H(X(LQ.'" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"LKF*K��OW6F��*98O-=W<8J�%+��:�)/9$�<Z<Q*P�4ESI.$RZKFX:N�=K)3" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"6\5*QR-)KE:FEX/XWW.�D=)\ZGK2YJ �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��%<$35��0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��%<$35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP



;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV������I�E����������D�H��I�
��G�H���F��E
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"�.[4*/T:=NS).E�&6�<V02P/P83;28XS+%��VY4I1Q-�H3\JKT�,H�HZ1���" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�8�JVP16��R6HO�PX+*�4*�JQ(&DM�89�X8J�GP$$;8M�[%Q(YSGEKG6N;3I" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�'�8EZ=Q6�O�%<-�P��E\V�/3],([NPT5J9=I)ELXGRX;&4(,9=4\��2=Y��" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"/)�.�3[<3,�*SV.�HZ-)U[ZE�U+<;PU�$�XWLV\'�ZP�OLQ�L+4�8N�+7��N" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"+P&I\�-PW<�XVE[Q�\8:9YV�HZ�K/J�8V�M�'U'��I]��L�N4K,KW$�(%+O�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"2T6U�<�,[�W.(]3[S9�)Q2O:�LWWL[5=KOFI�9H3]/�VSFP;TF:M<0*;72N�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"U\D[(N%5.�%]IX��(Z*-U<,.0TM]�S/IL6Z()�V���WIFV/&D3T*:�P<V&2K" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�&3TW�6;2Y'U<HQ=�U�/GH7K)�&5:;,�9OPWYM$:-HM,WQTQG-�2WV*0F36�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"-P4Y9KNX�)�.WV&VX)(�/���4]\<�L&TE]�)X20RO-M[5)K�(Z�W�P�X��]1" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"I��;KS.MW%];\�VDL=N,39]<P;':��JP(X�(H7OWPDK+��/Q%7W$DYM6=K+'" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�3,[OK2T.�*�I�1D7UU-HUHD[+�RV8ED�10DHIJ&$T(5RKSKI1TFG+91-N�K" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"X��;6\Y.����<&1$=2D�F-X(1%4*YW7'OYN8',M�$P�L(�T�M�]\%�8�X��S" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4".�3<E:0X4NP4G]JX&�;5�+�PEX16;&T[R��Z-=YPV�HZ]5�;�O6�W*-<T�PM" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"M�64X*8&WN:.8T��&F+�3;<*�77P/�*3=ZKXVL�3)0H1QM8.�;-6�.P15�.U" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"$W4QQM�F7)R)Z5QR�4Q.-'GH%Z��+*4�O]�$.��S[4F��-�+5,QK�PUD.<+�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4")-P2TS$R&GS-5LKOY���[F[-K,WHW��-EP�H�4N�S,�(FZ�&-38RT+��MISI" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"M$(3Z�PD-G&U�PXS�HYPY�4<&FK�'8U.(%J�K'G.MT,1D/FFFE'(+G�&7$R$" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�W-*��4KK%0F�8J3�I]�2-N7S���M��1<�DI<J'R=L]1L6SF].Q�LQ:<�D2;" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"RMZ'��X6�&Q�&9��I�$[*�LW,<:9K$ �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��'0�35��0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��'0�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV��G��H�E������F���FI��F�H�
��G�H���F�E�
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"�FN5�29�LUX6N%�&%YV�G�7GD(['6=VX43ZOO�NLU'31�J�PW:U�/DK,X.�T" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"$=:FG<9UN�[�SFUE'�*K��$�W(�J6MX<8=VWWH�=VDD�&V�X-:-&�GQWJD��" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4":�6��LV\*I�57X�P,X,��%�2LK]YQ)4Q�G,6�9�,:6%+U9&O:\3$L8�/]K1," 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"FD8-+[EVY'�R3E9XW6�KI)\ER&+</\J=8(O5V�G9OX)ZV(0���[�-R10�2=3" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"=�O&1Q3U\��L1&QYF=L=&H7��SE6[%)U5UL�7QH2�F%]09LHI�1;�O+F�/Q�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�<V%(3S%'P391��3V4�T=�PJ0�\$/�([RLP\LD/�,&���NH+�J,�<�N��O*N" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"TXRS12.'8[N�7]L$�M(O4.�T;+�K$2�M0)IF&-=K11�2-J'*0Y.9K�$�8'�Z" 



 "XV�DVFLL"4"$-�-1�IVVWOE�=T3,V�1L�W�M�R:�\�/,�M4�PS4=0M,JN�,O�.2��&�6Q��" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"Z5%3W\<IN+G(W�(*&TPLD��)�QU�KMK(��&PD88<5�:<KM��%WI=�LHH[8))" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"XX�V��-)SUO8/-�9�99;G'V<JTP�%�8JZW+7�2L16�/20�')\-FJ*=VR�L-Z" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4")$D5�UF�5SYUZ�.=HGY<+�1W)Z3%��$V;YPXJ&T;JZ'=3Z$5<4����7Y&J�U" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"4U9V(]D�,)L�L�(S8TM&=<HX<Y<LR/+���,)R3Y�SOLHL�61�&-3;J*=).8�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"X/U2RD(=.:0/PPX1764%SQ8JWZ2R/6<<H:NU</DP��INH��\N/XP2���:H�<" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4",70�7E�PW*1SNJM\��:T<0�DMLH�Z.G'T*�N\�].�*���<(�(I(JS�T7G8,9" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�U:E�,\�;&8E�]IL��8�LX�.��R�U�LH�X9)J.LX�8W(/6];9=PD,3Y4�:WP" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"7[�9UEH1ZL5H.��9�N�LY8Z2&'\Y+7��)7,YU;K6����S:��N'=�Y7.U12(�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�EGSP,2OO��MP�U2Q��<1�LPH:.�;NGFV-L\�G-F�=8S�KS�IK�-GP��X-F$" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"SOH$�;NJX/�./[.R\QKP,FV�3D�(I*S\�%�O5$*H�7O�E[X�MZ10ZT%L]�L�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"+80&F47=[-[�+,H�YH�M=<3.0)/4.$ �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��%1�35��0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��%1�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV���F�FIHE����G����E���D���
��G�H���G�F�
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"WJ\/H1'��W%)6�P(6WREDQTEL3RN:�(;P\�%U781G6$:2I%.��]17K�H:�%�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"QR��=�/:TD5/+M��L;J9Z�H(GK(N%4,E�*Z]W\$�9OI,[%*V4P$/RF9LY2�J" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"MP[=T[<O.Z]�N�R]$$EP3�S5�Y,6NZ3<�)��)��.KH�N2+X�.7OT8Z7X�K��" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"3NS*;�2P,$.+GHG[V/�\�:S�E��1-�*5M�16(')+G,L-'Q;7:W87)�6W;�GI" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"17G<$'(9H*KMP-Y8\38O:=D;6T(�RX&*�9$�',6(\<%8LY<�GT���&�I<-�K" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"/L%OS�)*2'�W.YQ1ZS\S1/SE(-2:I\1�TJ�52F&PZ;�<��+��E�RW�84=&O�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"3K2PX+RJ�G(X;.RZTWP\JM=��R$X14\N�+F�+G7)<2*(X,8GM*M]�]V�3EJQ" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"QDF+$EJ:%XVKK60);�7�PQ)�L�5:Y6TN(�-]FSW���/*X7�6WZPZ$%NS3S;I" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"XT=�1G/9.SLK4+4W&0�PO1�)9'�.<SI2�H+�=UE:10)DIQ1�:OO)N9\IDDL;" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"S5�G'4�+�:;H�]Y��-85SZ&IX)W�G�<2GD�[L/1D,X=�;X=2''D*/�;00X:1" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�RJ]WZHPJ\��;�X�;�76\T8�OD�T\4+R�T$M-F(1EHN�P&(&&J*4XF��KWT2" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"<Y+�W%�5X�U,</3)O]�.;65�$2\�P/)'W��U<'�Q�DK��YM&8+F1(\ZPK��P" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"Q-FZ.ZK�J/�\40�]�<2$%���M7�=�R�J��;UUP4<%-IO<)�/)�O)K�I7HS�W" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4",3[]VI9FX�5FEES%,O/%18<�,5/Z-�V)*;�K3&����7�)]�H��;X$�]4�-8I" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"=��KNP0P:O�\M0Y,<%S�L;$��J�P.�-8�(L��Z&Z�I)D7:$�J&((&T7D-L�3" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"Z$+(9($��Z�6))8D;]W]QMH2O9=�Y��:&G�I'-QFRK;/1YS�',%7�-$3OQ)�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"0.N�P+'�&EXQVTZ;[9(F2KTXP;[7�R13*]I78Z]RS��FNI�-S,G*-E1.G[(D" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"QOI�]�33:�+5)L%G:\/Y)R�.'X=\]�5/T:<D:W<S�PM-+[X�=�X'(3M$O+.�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"\0KV]:OMN�.+�SOIR7)=��80��Q�IJ �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��%/�35��0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��%/�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP



;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV��FH�EF����IH�������������
��G�H���I���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"E.P7-U+J�V9\0M,5F,,[W0NK)7+��HF:�RX89R,2U��,�4ELLT1O)M<Q+�R*" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"1L/[H�=Y9W0�\K71�4OKKP\-,Q7=+3WW'PUTR4W1*-[[8��E+M6K�,��;PEM" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�X,<<�$9U��/W�V\N;5V\Z3Y*QVJ)�*-8HJTF=DO�X9G*]2X�=Y3+6ZF(N]�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4";2M\H:(V&��9IF8G(��[TM'�I;W\\M/)YOS�/�$�G.%���-P=*L4ZY$�GK�<" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"D)N��-TM3(M+/G�97Q$G1,D'T;-K-;�&N%�8KT=��F%N(Y%='$S2�&97WO�U" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"XL6T]\HJUK,UJ4X[/[T$=%-*85FM+UV+��1\�%<.�5��Z�XU]M)7:HG\2:MP" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"/)J1NKN\F\.F'G'R.��OO,+ITZ(G[�Q:)�0%81E+(�46ELL�-Y�*LNDPO2]�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"2S00-8\DS]&T7TOWV5,JU)XIO\':7T*J��7\0�2�/GS%�<ZQ)��]/NU�0�T;" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4",6V1�W%7*OO0/K8+$�8P�NMPP['�6:�H�SM8�N�T5\%\HU0[T'L=WN**T/+�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"-�&$J/QOOKR0F9(]+J4(1H76L/H�QX5�Z(�O+�979ZK��5�-77��;\:\(<FG" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"I:/Q6$�]0T*[J*D��[R;]N[=W�2;DT-]�<QE4O1�:X0\93%�&I,P�%�&3.$O" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"DUX4]$I�E-�4�/�%+10�*0T\*�&D��P*�I5J�5/+%:HYX�+(6PM\VJX*'�-;" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"X�,=\�U�\M(0SR�DY�\/P4�J/�FIX<G3N3%EL%7)�5UK]/.6GE7/;G&V0�%S" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"-�S�Y)V4RI&�-Q2Z�MXEI�-V'�V,K$O8-09�P2752$.<+)(P&FH�3�):Y-+<" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"4;G�EE�8L90Y+Z7XX+[�X3'7�FKX��M[&�Z]L�%�7NF8X$$��1�Y�O6WWF�M" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"0J[*&745+�;G�-KZZ�]1(H5S/F�T\:�K�W15=%K42M/�E'0X-)\M88;�9[1L" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"QQ[F.&W'MW[X6Y5$%S1,S��&*HIZ�+K:5$XF�72:.[R�/3XZ�2V�P6VT]��;" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"R%�6J'�\Q�F)=7X%7&6�UO)$��Y*�\+=]WV<5�H.�]K�V.JN,X+(.WLIXOSP" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"1Q;�,�<,':X�JW<[5�FOMQL]K$5X�J �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��&<�35����0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��&<�35����0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW�8QWUXVWHG��
&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV���FH�EH�H�E��I���D���ID��
��G�H������G
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�8QWUXVWHG��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�2ULJLQDO�� "XV�
DVFLL"4"N8WNJJK�*5]�2)3�[<1N2+WZK-:8S'�1�PQS3ZWX)�-.[S9F��Y5:=(V$M�H" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"8E�G[57�OER<TWFJZ/[-&P<;])��=8:%+�P)3�T)�\D<�2D0L&�+GVM7/:*&" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"];�0U72'DR�O9W6�$\P*�\:\4K�P*1V7�1S3�\1G;��5L]Y�VI&�9:�50(,]" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"+HD��.O������Y80J�)24-=I'FJJE1U�WOQZKWQ/S4\YO���*�[X)RSTG$Y," 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�R5�WIJ)��8�E%XMJ<=�\2��9]K;]6J.:68JO<G[,-$3G=�)�-N�JY9S5�ZI" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"P-X4�6K<[��9-�2R/Y]ZH24+S�ZU=Z];W��-OJ�5<[�VH;�X'F-�)$/VE%V�" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�KMPW.5�&66�:W=59EK�P�&3�2K�$�D[)9D(5�S$[�MT�/*W1/(X$S�UGN.X" 



 "XV�DVFLL"4"'T�(&2N4;[N7\�[W�7�LZ�2T3��\;Z�34�UW9+U=-JJ��G�V=W(N�.)\%�'E" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�3FE7X�1N�WY-TD:X�34UV+D9��Y$D9HMJ=�=QN�;U[/;:'O:E�$O�[F�:��" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"R�\RQ4�M�-�--�+U8�9\L;9K]�(.&N\;E1:HJ89�97U�Z�809�:�50�:��Z-" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"FI�-']VU+�ZY.\$V�,�]�I1VQ�:/7��NK�(X<D/�;8D01;IQ1K9R�4M0[XT'" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"(.,(-�%K(*-NK(P�0=+MNLI-�HR4EE3P�%�RP=&6+$���4�[�03��Y-5OM,," 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"Z���D8/S��&�P:/GL6<Y%4�R8�J�U����)L�X]Z�(K'YGF62:�,��$P*�&��" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"72�$Q1/8�KM9G8��=+3/]NU\FQZ*�/=0..35,SED��6+/7(Z'SRUG:6I��F9" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�Q�:M1<E8G�1-1,T2��P*H�,I:O�/KW�X�WD�Y2('��.�X7=T*-LQXZ)NW90" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"Q<XT<D<'&94�R]HS�YN�H�W;7,O8KSJ;F[31M�-;WY5V::�ER(+H��O6[��5" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4")S%]%.99'.075+[5WQ�PRRZ5R[S�/1JWLN'7MM��,&X�=M[9�I1WZR<+JZ9." 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"6$/5�(3)-<��EHE%=T�'M�+J+�*0='5�,E<I(\5%�'[K0�E�;%:�Z:+JVOS0" 
 "XV�DVFLL"4"�MG)�HWM5/Q�IGEH15</.9'$:13[Z4 �' �'" 

;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��%1�35��0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��%1�35��0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WULSSHG��'0�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�)RUHIURQW�$QWLVSDP�5HSRUW��&,3����������������&75<�&$�/$1*�HQ�6&/��
��659��,39�1/,�6)9�6.1�+�PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP�375�,QIR'RPDLQ1RQH[LVWHQW�&$7�1
21(�6)7<��6)6��',5�,1%�6)3��
;�06�2IILFH����)LOWHULQJ�&RUUHODWLRQ�,G�3UYV����IG��E��I������D�����H�
��G�H��D��F�
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP��%&/���
;�0LFURVRIW�$QWLVSDP�0HVVDJH�,QIR�� "XWI�
�"%"47<�<�[�1*WL9)-,0:5Z=7K8<91�FN90G'='<�=-9P�)5PVU=N�,D&��EP[Y" 
 "XWI��"%"8P[2=81�F�=Z2(�DF(K\4�W&=O$Y8NN�1Q)N0:GX6:[L6]KNE(9;9�G8=P=+" 
 "XWI��"%"1�R]D�507�G�98W-2;-(=:W14�-YF�,Z7M)ZGNONG�ORE�9PE)K%=(�X=���" 
 "XWI��"%"<�5=D*<\7\VZ1;F]8�O)2'N�D)%/E*-�1QGL6;1-FN,Y/�K�96�7D6�MG��)" 
 "XWI��"%"4Q5R7MJ�::NU/]1�76��99-9F��Y0�1[/�=*:P��2'5TD9K%6��U5:-09'1Z" 
 "XWI��"%"4��90OGO:+,\97)W<Q9N<��S5NK\5:,�/]-UE:1�5)S�5M)+2'G:G]%]HMO+" 
 "XWI��"%"4M%.7�%�F:500)KK5+5D5](�<N�S9P9NHQR�1(K�8�5SH+O&DOK[7*�==;S1" 
 "XWI��"%"E*5Y:)9P6�8]0;O(G(W�G�5X0NG5D:91:NK<=)%�2:S2D'([1*RY9*1DH*1W" 
 "XWI��"%"H*)259-(09)95(1�.��Y4:K*<;=L6P16EP<ZG+O%G:SLF8J�8�1/<8��6�(\" 
 "XWI��"%"/��(D')32:S'.\�-=N1�8:F�9���=�1'G\�R6�GZ875:1�1�:*[�=(5R9:K<" 
 "XWI��"%"8���8OK1/�S%G]K�6:[<0�G�F�)[F+)T=�VZ07OX4O9UE85X694�:NGZ=;9L" 
 "XWI��"%"=NK&F�OW5O)<1PN�289P49%.8)%[6M==H8-:4PS6=8G+<9S,F'1K88=568K." 
 "XWI��"%"19--679�1P9%G��,7��Y0:S�8(G6F)G96(-\1+=/1M-ZG+0�=;O:=7K;6([(" 
 "XWI��"%"FQ(�6;GKG(V�=NW<=N1O4OO[6:<�08)PE951H8-N6M,�GMKWHQ)=9�K�E��Z" 
 "XWI��"%".��KFNO9:MJ[0*)+9'$\D]<\58-X8;5]1'1SF�O-D�1(.�G\D]5O7*SX88��" 
 "XWI��"%"9NV\9)-5E7G%7*�-H(�.271-9:1.D*(�F:5<EO)�E'K%8(=9:*OD7MGW=P�[" 
 "XWI��"%"F�K�1QS-GORZ0N[]0�%R=O)�7�9'8LW28+9;4]9+5N�Y:8=�0\W<DN<UE;S%" 
 "XWI��"%"5)-'E�93:9O+7M=Q=:)\1)O+<MK07;1-4;19:8)N4:8�1*525NW=E*K'4ON\" 
 "XWI��"%"9)N�8L�S0�K*=M)/FM-ND)8[6��O/�-Y=8�71OG'0+5<18W0/]%'1�<UD95." 
 "XWI��"%"6]0�FN1�=:=L6'GLG'G[9*K)0;-%0)O(DMJ�4\W'F(=Q0�KT:O-0<95�7'%0" 
 "XWI��"%"6L�%780�<O=W0)-;29S56*�0E)99:P).:PKZG*-,2:=�7M1�F71R2:V[F�90" 
 "XWI��"%"9P)]7N5K1�1Q=QO91M1\8Q5*68G�:P[X4])&8N12:+S/=*G�DO1TGP92G71�" 
 "XWI��"%"6�G[9Q1Y1)G�9:N\2:�T:9S397K54P9N7�KOH(9�:QK,9(V�7*W81�GTG'=*" 
 "XWI��"%"/��7ENWV1*[RF+([58�\4:[QG�NZ7Q9(9�9K4\�\F8-�1(W(69)9GM)�:M=O" 
 "XWI��"%"HNGT9]=�4]KV:*0Y0Q([0�S<1+F\6:)TEM9/D�9%37� " 

;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV7HQDQW�2ULJLQDO$UULYDO7LPH�����$SU�������������������
�87&�



;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV7HQDQW�1HWZRUN�0HVVDJH�,G��EF��G��D������������D���
��G�H��F����
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV7HQDQW�,G��E�FHH��F����F��I���E��E����I���E����
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV7HQDQW�2ULJLQDO$WWULEXWHG7HQDQW&RQQHFWLQJ,S��
7HQDQW,G E�FHH��F����F��I���E��E�
���I���E�����,S >��������������@�+HOR >PDLO�WUDQVFDQDGD�FRP@
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV7HQDQW�)URP(QWLW\+HDGHU��+\EULG2Q3UHP
;�06�([FKDQJH�7UDQVSRUW�&URVV7HQDQW+HDGHUV6WDPSHG��&<�35����0%����
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��&<�35����0%�����QDPSUG���SURG�RXWORRN�FRP
;�2ULJLQDWRU2UJ��75$16&$1$'$�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV3URPRWHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�&URVV3UHPLVHV+HDGHUV)LOWHUHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�2ULJLQDO$UULYDO7LPH�����$SU�������������������
�87&�

;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�2ULJLQDO6HUYHU,3$GGUHVV�������������
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�0HVVDJH'LUHFWLRQDOLW\��,QFRPLQJ
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�2ULJLQDWRU2UJDQL]DWLRQ��
75$16&$1$'$�RQPLFURVRIW�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�2ULJLQDO&OLHQW,3$GGUHVV����������������
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�7UDQVSRUW7UDIILF7\SH��(PDLO
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�7UDQVSRUW7UDIILF6XE7\SH�
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�6&/����
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�$QWLVSDP�6FDQ&RQWH[W��
',5�2ULJLQDWLQJ�6)9�6.1�6.,3���;35(0�WUXH�
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�3URFHVVHG�%\�-RXUQDOLQJ��-RXUQDO�$JHQW
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�$XWK6RXUFH��&2�1$0��)7����HRS�
1$0���SURG�SURWHFWLRQ�RXWORRN�FRP
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�$XWK$V��$QRQ\PRXV
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�&URVV�3UHPLVHV�+HDGHUV�3URFHVVHG��6����3��WFSO�FD
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�2ULJLQDO6L]H���������
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�0HVVDJH6FRSH��������������������������
������������
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�+\JLHQH3ROLF\��6WDQGDUG
;�06�([FKDQJH�&URVV3UHPLVHV�5HFLSLHQW�/LPLW�9HULILHG��7UXH
;�2UJDQL]DWLRQ+HDGHUV3UHVHUYHG��6����3��WFSO�FD

tĞ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŚŽŽƐĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞƐ�ǇŽƵ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ͘�dŽ�ƐƚŽƉ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�d���ŶĞƌŐǇ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ƌĞƉůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�
͞hE^h�^�Z/��͘͟

dŚŝƐ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ�ĂƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ŽŶůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂŵĞĚ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĞ;ƐͿ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�d���ŶĞƌŐǇ�ŵĂǇ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŝǀŝůĞŐĞĚ͕�ĐŽŶĨŝĚĞŶƚŝĂů�Žƌ�
ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŵƵƐƚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞĚ͕�ĐŽƉŝĞĚ͕�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚĞĚ�Žƌ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ�
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ͘�/Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�ĞƌƌŽƌ͕�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ŶŽƚŝĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞŶĚĞƌ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůĞƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ͘�dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ͘

EŽƵƐ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŽŶƐ�ǀŽƚƌĞ�ĚƌŽŝƚ�ĚĞ�ĐŚŽŝƐŝƌ�ůĞƐ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞƐ�ĠůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝƋƵĞƐ�ƋƵĞ�ǀŽƵƐ�ƌĞĐĞǀĞǌ͘�WŽƵƌ�ŶĞ�ƉůƵƐ�
ƌĞĐĞǀŽŝƌ�ĐĞ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�Ğƚ�ĚĞƐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƐŝŵŝůĂŝƌĞƐ�ĚĞ�d���ŶĞƌŐŝĞ͕�ǀĞƵŝůůĞǌ�ƌĠƉŽŶĚƌĞ�ă�ĐĞ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�
ĂǀĞĐ�ůΖŽďũĞƚ�ͨ���^��KEE�D�Ed�ͩ͘

�Ğ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ĠůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝƋƵĞ�Ğƚ�ƚŽƵƐ�ůĞƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ũŽŝŶƚƐ�ƐŽŶƚ�ĚĞƐƚŝŶĠƐ�ƵŶŝƋƵĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂƵǆ�ĚĞƐƚŝŶĂƚĂŝƌĞƐ�
ŶŽŵŵĠƐ͘��ĞƚƚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĚĞ�d���ŶĞƌŐŝĞ�ƉŽƵƌƌĂŝƚ�ĐŽŶƚĞŶŝƌ�ĚĞ�ů͛ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌŝǀŝůĠŐŝĠĞ͕�
ĐŽŶĨŝĚĞŶƚŝĞůůĞ�ŽƵ�ĂƵƚƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽƚĠŐĠĞ�ĚĞ�ůĂ�ĚŝǀƵůŐĂƚŝŽŶ͕�Ğƚ�ĞůůĞ�ŶĞ�ĚŽŝƚ�ƉĂƐ�ġƚƌĞ�ĚŝǀƵůŐƵĠĞ͕�ĐŽƉŝĠĞ͕�



ƚƌĂŶƐĨĠƌĠĞ�ŽƵ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵĠĞ�ƐĂŶƐ�ĂƵƚŽƌŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ͘�^ŝ�ǀŽƵƐ�ĂǀĞǌ�ƌĞĕƵ�ĐĞ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ƉĂƌ�ĞƌƌĞƵƌ͕�ǀĞƵŝůůĞǌ�ĞŶ�ĂǀŝƐĞƌ�
ŝŵŵĠĚŝĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ůΖĞǆƉĠĚŝƚĞƵƌ�Ğƚ�ƐƵƉƉƌŝŵĞƌ�ůĞ�ŵĞƐƐĂŐĞ�ŝŶŝƚŝĂů͘�DĞƌĐŝ͘



Hello Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Committee, June 11, 2020 
 

My family of five has lived at our home at 15073 N. Coeur d’Alene Street for five years. 
My husband and I have three daughters in the Lakeland School District. We own our home and 
pay lot rent to Idaho Contractors Inc as part of the Willow Creek Mobile Home Park. My 
husband and I both agree and disagree with some of the proposed options for the replat of 
Willow Creek Mobile Home Park.  

We agree with the vision to make the park nicer in aspects of new updated mailboxes 
and the playground area. The current playground is very outdated and unsafe. The tennis court 
just needs to go as no one uses it and it looks uninviting. The current basketball court could be 
updated. Defined parking areas are needed but residents also need to respect those parking 
areas. I see many residents or guests parked either in the grass or halfway in the grass 
frequently. Directional signs shouldn’t necessarily be “one way” signs but “speed limit” and 
“guest parking” signs would be helpful. Our guests have nowhere to park, including the pizza 
delivery vehicles. There needs to be visible crosswalks for our children as well because a lot of 
them walk to and from school. Vehicles seldom stop for those who cross the street at Third and 
Park Loop. We think the assisted house painting proposal is a great idea for many of the homes 
within the mobile home park, not just the ones on Coeur d’Alene Street.  

We disagree with the ideas to make Coeur d’Alene Street look nicer. You may be aware 
that a “NO Parking on this side of the street” sign was recently posted on the side where the six 
new homes were built. That sign came as a surprise as none of us on Coeur d’Alene Street 
were informed of this new sign and it gives our guests nowhere to park. I would like to see a 
speed limit sign (25 mph) posted on my side of the street. It is very hard to back out of my 
“driveway” when vehicles are flying up and down Coeur d’Alene Street. Many vehicles use 
Coeur d’Alene Street as a shortcut from highway 41 to highway 53 and vice versa. In the winter, 
my husband is the one who plows out most of our neighbors on Coeur d’Alene Street. If new 
trees are added to divide our driveways, where would he put all of that snow? The city plow 
trucks usually plow us in as our driveways are not deep enough as it is.  

A good suggestion for the six homes on Coeur d’Alene Street would be  to move our 
homes to the area where the seven new homes are proposed to go on Meadow Brook Circle. It 
has come to my husband and my attention that the six homes on Coeur d’Alene Street currently 
lot share as the lot lines are not true to our yard sizes. Moving our homes would give us the 
space we need to park, and the ability to improve the look of Coeur d’Alene Street. The 
proposed fence could extend the entire distance instead of just one side of Coeur d’Alene 
Street. There could be a sidewalk and shrubs added as well. I think most of the residents will 
agree that trying to turn right onto Coeur d’Alene Street from Park Loop has its own set of 
challenges. The first home, on the corner of Park Loop and Coeur d’Alene Street, has a carport 
style parking cover, and there are shrubs there that can be difficult to see past. I have noticed 
when my husband, my neighbors and myself are backing out of our driveways on Coeur d’Alene 
Street many vehicles do not yield and go around us.  

As far as a soccer field addition to the new playground area, I think a guest parking area 
would be better for that space. There will be less grass to maintain and it will give our guests 
somewhere to park if birthday parties are held at the new playground/bbq area. Many children 



go to Stub Myer Park to play in that field already. The addition of speed bumps would be nice as 
residents also speed through the mobile home park streets. 

The appearance of Willow Creek Mobile Home Park has been poor in my opinion. The 
residents have not been held accountable to keep up on the cleanliness that is required to keep 
our neighborhood nice. When asked to clean up in March/April by our park manager, most 
cleaned up without complaint because free trash pick up was offered. Others complained and 
did not clean up until eviction was going to be legally enforced. My husband and I have been 
taking things to the Stateline transfer station to help some of our neighbors who cannot haul 
things away. Our neighborhood needs to come together and help each other out. Many of the 
residents are elderly and need the most help. The sale of the mobile home park may be what 
this neighborhood needs to “clean up.” Some improvements to our neighborhood have been 
needed for a while now.  

 
Thank you for listening. 
 
Sara Bennett 
 





Exhibit F 

Table 4 – Comprehensive Plan Consistency 

Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

II A. Population 

II A. Population, Goal 1:  Address changing 

growth trends and capacities to work toward a 

moderate and stable rate of long-range 

population growth with orderly development. 

Unknown Growth trends in Rathdrum recently have 

focused on single family housing. Lower 

income housing has been identified as needed. 

The projected population growth expected from 

this project is 11.16 people (2.79 persons per 4 

additional home sites). 

II A. Population, Goal 2:  Guide future 

development to maintain and enhance the quality 

of life of the population living within and directly 

adjacent to the community. 

Yes The proposal appears to enhance the quality of 

life of the population within the development.  

II B. Land Use 

II B. Land Use, Goal 1, Policy C: Maintain 

regulatory standards that encourage private 

property land uses and infill development consistent 

with expressed local values.    

Unknown The Commission and Council shall determine if 

the land use and infill development are 

consistent with local values. 

II E.-1 Public Services 

II E. Public Services, Goal 1, Policy A:  Coordinate 

with service providers and public safety entities to 

assure necessary and appropriate urban services 

are provided to accommodate projected types and 

densities of growth and development.  

Unknown The Rathdrum Chief of Police provided 

comment based on calls for service within the 

existing development. The projected population 

growth expected from this project is 11.16 

people (2.79 persons per 4 additional home 

sites) which may result in additional calls for 

service. It is expected that existing staffing at 

the police department can handle this growth. 

The Northern Lakes Fire Protection District 

also provided comment regarding fire fighting 

ability within the development. It is expected 

that the addition of hydrants will improve the 

service. 

II E.-2 Sewer and Water 

II E.-2 Water and Sewer, Goal 1, Policy B:  

Promote development in areas with municipal sewer 

and water systems in place.   

Yes, with 

conditions 

of approval 

Municipal water and sewer utilities are 

available to the property. Water and sewer 

mains interior to this property and stormwater 

utilities will remain in private ownership. As 

necessary, the applicant shall make 

improvements to the infrastructure to support 

the proposed use(s).   

II G. Housing 

II G. Housing, Goal 1:  Apply four primary 

principles, 1) Sense of Community, 2) Variety,                   

Yes The proposal includes the addition of more 

variety in housing options which tend to be 



Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

3) Affordability and 4) Integration, in the 

enhancement and maintenance of existing 

residential areas and the design of new housing 

developments.  

A) Sense of Community:  Promote a sense of 

community by encouraging walking and cycling, 

good lighting and safe havens for children while 

providing ready access to shared green space and 

parks.  Housing will be connected to commercial 

areas and civic centers by well-organized street 

and pathway systems, potentially including 

public transportation, all making it easy for 

people to meet and interact with each other. 

Neighborhoods should not be completely walled 

off from each other. 

B) Variety:  Provide a broad mix of housing 

choices for a mix of people with differing 

economic means, ages and lifestyles.  Types of 

housing may include, but are not limited to, 

apartments, townhouses, multi-family units, 

manufactured homes and small, as well as large, 

lot single family residences.    

C) Affordability:  Ensure affordable housing is 

available for the local household and family, 

encouraging the creation of a wide range of 

housing, including that which is affordable to the 

community’s average and lower income worker 

and family. 

more affordable.  

The proposal includes an improved gathering 

space. 

II G. Housing, Goal 2, Policy F:  Protect the 

continuity and inherent character of existing 

neighborhoods in planning and zoning decisions. 

Yes The proposal is consistent with the existing 

neighborhood. 

II G. Housing, Goal 3, Policy B:  Require 

pedestrian and bicycle pathways in new residential 

development and encourage the development of 

additional pathways in existing neighborhoods to 

provide interconnectivity. 

No The proposal does not include pedestrian and 

bicycle pathways for new development and 

there are no sidewalks or pathways within the 

existing development. There does not appear to 

be room for them. 

II G. Housing, Goal 4, Policy C:  Provide an 

adequate supply of land in appropriate land use 

designations that meets the future needs and 

demand for a broad range of residential types. 

Yes The proposal includes more land within the 

development to provide for 4 more lower 

income home sites. 

II G. Housing, Goal 5, Policy A:  Encourage infill 

and redevelopment of existing lots. 

Yes The proposed project will partially infill 

existing land which is built around. 

II H. School Facilities 

II H. School Facilities, Goal 1:  Consider the 

priorities and concerns of Lakeland School 

Unknown The Commission and Council shall be 

responsible for considering priorities and 



Goal/Policy Consistent Discussion 

District and other schools in future community 

development decisions. 

concerns of the School District.  

II I. Recreation 

II I. Recreation, Goal 1:  Maintain and develop 

facilities to support the recreational and cultural 

needs of all community members. 

Unknown The proposal includes recreational facilities. 

The Council shall determine if such meet the 

needs of the community. 

II. K.-2 Community Design Element, Balanced Development 

II K.-2 Community Design, Balanced 

Development, Goal 2, Policy A: Promote a wide 

range of residential development forms and designs, 

including a mix of housing types, from 

condominiums to townhouses to triplexes and 

duplexes to single family detached houses. 

Yes The proposal provides for diversified housing 

options. 

 

 



Exhibit G 

Recommended Conditions of Approval for Willow Creek Re-Plat and PUD. 

General 

1. This PUD approval shall replace all existing City policies pertaining to the proposed 
development. Those five (5) lots which were part of the original Willow Creek subdivision as 
specifically excluded from this decision shall be subject to any existing Willow Creek policy 
and requirements of City Code without deviation. 

2. The development shall be subject to the modified residential standards of RCC 11-5 as found 
within the Staff Report and as conditioned herein, and shall not be subject to the general 
provisions and performance standards of multifamily development and site plan review as 
found in RCC 11-5-3 and 11-5-4. 

3. The intent of this Decision and Conditions of Approval is to allow some existing conditions 
within the development to continue as long as they remain lawful, however shall in no way 
limit the City’s ability to enforce violations or conditions which do not meet this PUD approval 
or other required provisions. 

4. All improvements within the park lot / open space area, proposed directional signage 
improvements, proposed fencing and landscaping on Coeur d’Alene Street, and new / revised 
parking areas throughout the development shall be completed within eighteen (18) months 
from the date of approval of this PUD unless otherwise specified within this approval. All 
other necessary and/or conditional improvements shall be completed within twenty four (24) 
months from the date of approval of this PUD unless otherwise specified.  

Dwellings and “Home Sites” 

5. When any unit currently located within the development is moved or removed for any reason, the 
“home site” shall not be re-occupied by any structure until it has been legally permitted through 
the City of Rathdrum and meets the requirements of the PUD approval and other necessary 
provisions.  

6. “Home sites” within the development shall not be rented to RVs, nor shall RVs be given any 
other type of permission or allowance for use for dwelling purposes within the development.  
The existing RV which occupies “home site” 14 as shown within Exhibit B, Appendix A, Page 5 
(Home Site Exhibit), addressed as 8568 Meadow Brook Circle shall be removed from the 
property within twenty four (24) months of the date of approval of the Preliminary Plat / PUD.  

7. All new dwellings placed within the development shall be located a minimum of ten-feet (10’) 
from one another. Where new lots or portions thereof are adjacent to residential property 
(vs. right of way and industrial property) outside of the original Willow Creek subdivision, 
setbacks from property lines adjacent to / shared with said private property shall be as 
follows: rear yard setbacks shall be a minimum of eight-feet (8’) from the rear property line 
and side yard setbacks shall be a minimum of five-feet (5’) from property lines.  

8. New dwellings shall be set back from front property lines a minimum of five feet (5’) or as 
much as possible in compliance with required rear yard setbacks and other provisions as 
stated or conditioned herein.  



9. Existing mobile / manufactured homes which are in violation of required setbacks shall be 
considered grandfathered in relation to setbacks and shall be subject to the City’s non-
conforming provisions as found within RCC Title 11, Chapter 7 if altered, remodeled, 
discontinued or otherwise changed as found within such Code section. 

10. To address RCC 11-5-2 (K) (h), upon completed setup, manufactured homes shall be assessed 
as required by Kootenai County or other taxing jurisdiction. 

11. Address numbers shall be placed on each dwelling as required by Northern Lakes Fire 
Protection District standards (size and visibility) if not already existing. Such address shall be 
as assigned by the City and/or Kootenai County, not by space numbers assigned by the owner 
or other party. 

12. The number of dwellings per lot shall be limited to the number of “home sites” as depicted 
within Exhibit B, Appendix A, Page 5 (Willow Creek Home Site Exhibit) and Table 2 of this staff 
report. The location of dwellings within the lots shall be adjusted over time as existing 
dwellings are removed and new dwellings permitted in compliance with this PUD approval. 

13. Property owner(s) and/or tenants shall receive necessary permitting, including but not limited to 
building permitting and floodplain permitting, where applicable, prior to setting any new dwelling 
within the development. All new dwellings shall comply with the requirements of the PUD 
approval. A dimensioned site plan shall be provided showing, at minimum, the dimensions and 
placement of the building(s) to be placed on the lot and any attachments thereto (such as decks, 
stairs, etc.), distance of the building(s) from property lines and other structures, the location and 
dimensions of required parking and existing and proposed accessory structures on and adjacent to 
the “home site”. Anchoring details of the structure(s) to foundation(s), flood venting, and other 
necessary measures to address structures within floodway and floodplain shall be submitted, as 
necessary, along with structural specifications showing that the structure(s) meet the design loads 
for the Rathdrum area (for example snow, wind and seismic loads).  

14. Temporary storage of unset homes on vacant lots shall not be allowed. 

15. New dwellings set within the development shall meet the following provisions: 

a. Shall be designed for long term use by a residential household, contain a kitchen, bath, 
living and sleeping facilities, and be a minimum of 256 square feet in area. 

b. Shall have wood, asphalt or metal shingle roofing and vertical and/or horizontal aluminum, 
vinyl, simulated wood or wood siding, or other typical residential siding as approved by the 
City Building Official. 

c. Shall be permanently affixed with the running gear and towing hitch removed, and set 
upon a foundation approved as required by Idaho Code, and have an anchoring system 
that is totally concealed under the structure. Such provision may be amended by the City 
Building Official on a case by case basis to address floodplain provisions consistent with 
FEMA Publication P-85, Protecting Manufactured Homes from Floods and the PUD 
approval. 

d. Shall have a poured concrete, mortared, aluminum, vinyl, simulated wood or wood siding 
enclosure consistent with the exterior siding of the home, which surrounds the entire 
perimeter of the structure and completely encloses the under area which contains the 



blocking and anchoring system. Such provision may be amended by the City Building 
Official on a case by case basis to address floodplain provisions consistent with FEMA 
Publication P-85, Protecting Manufactured Homes from Floods and the PUD approval.  

e. Used homes may be placed within the development at the discretion of the owner if such 
home is well maintained or will be rehabbed to a well maintained condition within 120 
days of setting. 

16. Prior to placement of any new structures within the septic system area (“home sites” 151 through 
157 as shown within Exhibit B, Appendix A, Page 5), the existing septic tank shall be removed and 
the drain field shall be mitigated as determined necessary by the City Building Official. The City may 
require geotechnical evaluation, engineering, compaction testing or other measures as necessary 
to address building code requirements and safety at this location. 

17. When any dwelling unit currently located within the floodway is substantially altered or 
substantially damaged as defined by RCC 11-7, Non-Conforming Provisions, it shall be removed 
from the floodway within 120 days. Such unit shall not be placed in any location within the 
subdivision unless it conforms entirely to the PUD approval. New dwellings may be placed within 
floodway in compliance with FEMA Publication P-85, Protecting Manufactured Homes from Floods 
and the PUD approval. 

18. New dwellings to be placed outside of floodway and floodplain shall be standard set above 
grade on top of subgrade concrete piers (not “pit set”) to accommodate the nature of the 
development as a “Mobile Home Community” where privately owned dwellings are placed 
on leased land and are subject to moving based on lease agreement and other factors.   

Utilities 

19. All on-site water, sewer and stormwater infrastructure shall remain in private ownership of 
the Applicant / Owner and shall be maintained in good repair and function by the owner. 
Malfunctions, breaks, leaks or other problems shall be repaired at the sole expense of the 
owner in a timely manner. 

20. The Applicant / Owner shall be required to abandon and cap one of the water and sewer 
services on each of the following consolidated “home spaces” as shown within Exhibit B, 
Appendix A, Page 2 (1979 Infrastructure Plan): Spaces 10 and 11, spaces 87 and 88, and spaces 
95 and 96. The Applicant shall call for inspection by the Public Works Department to ensure 
such service connections have been appropriately abandoned. 

21. A new water meter to serve the development shall not be required at this time. City utility 
billing shall be charged to the property owner on a monthly basis as the base fee for a single 
family dwelling (1 ERU) for water and sewer use per installed service connection.  

22. The Applicant / Owner shall obtain a right-of-way encroachment permit from Rathdrum 
Public Works Department and remit payment for such permitting for new utility connections. 
Connection, capitalization and impact fees for four (4) new utility connections shall also be 
remitted to the City at the time of installation of such new services. Payment for this number 
of connections provides credit for the three (3) connections which are to be abandoned. 

23. A new fire hydrant shall be installed in compliance with City standards in order to accommodate 
the new “home sites” (151 through 157, as shown within Exhibit B, Appendix A, Page 5 (Home Site 



Exhibit)). The location of the hydrant shall be as approved by the Northern Lakes Fire Protection 
District and the City and subject to City right of way and other necessary permitting. Such hydrant 
shall be installed at the sole expense of the Applicant. Additional hydrants within the development 
may be installed at the discretion of the Applicant. The Applicant will not be required to replace / 
upgrade existing water lines to serve the required hydrant. The flow rate of any new hydrant will 
be based on the capacity of the existing water line in the street adjacent to the hydrant location. 

Parking and Vehicles 

24. Each “home site” shall be provided with an improved parking area subject to the following 
standards: 

a. New parking areas shall provide a minimum of two (2), but no more than three (3), 
parking stalls for each “home site”.  

b. Each parking stalls within the parking area shall be a minimum of twenty feet (20’) in 
length and a minimum of nine feet (9’) in width, per vehicle, not to exceed twenty 
seven feet (27’) in width, excluding three-foot (3’) wings, for the entire parking area 
for each “home site”.  

c. Parking areas for each “home site” shall be contiguous parking stalls (side by side or 
end to end parking for each dwelling).  Side by side parking is preferred as shown 
within Exhibit B, Appendix B, Page 9. 

d. Parking areas shall be located entirely on private property where possible.  

e. Parking areas shall be separated from other “home site” parking areas and guest 
parking areas as far as possible. 

f. In no case shall the required parking areas / stalls be located within or overlapping 
paved roadway.  

g. Where possible, the existing gravel driveway surfacing may be utilized and modified 
as necessary to accommodate the parking. Where new surfacing is necessary a 
minimum of four-inches (4”) deep, compacted three quarter inch minus (¾”-) gravel 
shall be utilized. 

h. Each driveway and parking area shall be edged with landscape edging / border (ex. 
typical polyethylene or rubber, ridged, three inch (3”) to four inch (4”) high flexible 
edging) or other material approved by the City, to differentiate / clearly identify the 
parking area and contain gravel.  

i. Asphalt paving may be utilized in lieu of gravel and edging at the discretion of the 
Applicant.  

j. Driveway surfacing shall connect the parking area to the paved roadway surfacing. 

k. Wings / driveway approaches shall be no greater than three feet (3’) wide at the edge 
of street, tapering to the maximum driveway width at four feet (4’) length (a 3-4-5 
triangle). 

l. Parking shall NOT occur outside of the installed gravel parking areas and will be 
subject to enforcement action. 



25. For those “home sites” accessed from Coeur d’Alene Street parking areas shall be located 
entirely outside of public right of way. Each driveway shall be a maximum of twenty feet (20’) 
in width, excluding three-foot (3’) wings. Additional parking for each “home site” may be 
provided, where room is available, in a tandem (front to back) configuration that does not 
widen the width of the driveway / parking. For Space 165 as shown within Exhibit B, Appendix 
A, Page 5 (Home Site Exhibit), addressed as 15093 Coeur d’Alene Street, said driveway and 
parking shall be located as far as possible from the intersection of Park Loop Drive and Coeur 
d’Alene Street.  

26. Guest parking stalls shall be provided and installed by the Applicant in compliance with the 
standards as conditioned herein throughout the community where space is available that 
does not crowd required “home site” parking. At minimum two to three parking stalls shall 
be installed on each side of the “park”.  Guest parking spaces shall be signed or otherwise 
clearly marked as reserved for guests only. 

27. All existing automobiles without current license plates, non-operational vehicles, and all 
recreational vehicles, boats and trailers within the development shall be removed within 12-
months from the date of approval of the PUD. ATVs / ORVs such as snowmobiles, side by 
sides, four wheelers and other small recreational vehicles and their trailers may not be stored 
within the development unless within an enclosed shed as approved by the property owner. 

Landscaping and Fencing 

28. All areas of the property / lots and all rights of ways adjacent to paved streets which are not 
occupied by a structure, roadway or allowed driveway / parking area shall be landscaped as 
defined within RCC 11-5-2 (B) (1) (c) and appropriately maintained in a healthy, growing 
condition, including watering and mowing as necessary. A single pathway per “home site” of 
up to five feet (5') in width which provides egress from the parking area to the primary 
structure shall be excluded from this area. 

29. Soil amendment as necessary and lawn grass and/or other landscaping shall be installed for 
newly set dwellings prior to issuance / allowance of final occupancy for the dwelling. 
Provisional occupancy is available to facilitate occupation prior to completed landscaping 
when weather or other factors prevent it, in compliance with Code. No trees shall be required 
in landscaped areas. Existing trees within the development shall be retained to the maximum 
extent possible. 

30. No new fencing or vegetation in excess of three-feet (3’) in height shall be placed within the 
sight view triangle as shown within RCC 11-5-1 (C) as it currently exists or may be amended. 
Any existing fencing or vegetation within these areas shall be removed by the property owner 
within 24-months from the date of approval of this Preliminary Plat / PUD. 

31. Fencing shall be subject to the provisions of RCC 11-5-1 (D). Existing fencing within the 
development may remain as long as it is not constructed of a dilapidated material (RCC 11-5-
3 (D) (4)) and is not structurally unsound or falling over. All fencing remaining within the 
development which is in a dilapidated or structurally unsound condition shall be removed or 
repaired by the owner within 24-months from the date of approval of this Preliminary Plat / 
PUD. 

  



Accessory Structures and Additions 

32. Existing porches, canopies, platforms, covered patios and similar architectural projections or 
additions which were legally permitted and are structurally sound as determined by the City 
Building Official shall be grandfathered and may remain as long as they remain otherwise 
lawful. The City may require removal of non-permitted and/or non-compliant structures in 
accordance with Code. 

33. Not more than one accessory residential structure, not to exceed an area of two hundred 
(200) square feet, shall be located in association with a single “home site.” Such accessory 
structure shall be located no closer than within three feet (3’) of the dwelling with which it is 
associated, and no closer than within ten feet (10’) of any other dwelling. No accessory 
structure shall be located in the front yard (yard adjacent to the street) / in front of a dwelling. 
Accessory structures shall be separated from one another by a minimum of three feet (3’). All 
existing accessory structures within the development which violate these provisions or which 
are in a structurally unsound condition shall be removed, repaired and/or relocated by the 
owner within 24-months from the date of approval of this PUD, with the exception that any 
existing accessory structures located in the front yard / in front of a dwelling shall be removed 
within eighteen (18) months.  

Final Plat 

34. A proposed final plat shall be submitted to the City for approval prior to recording in 
compliance with RCC 12-3. The final plat shall show the following minimum provisions: 

a. The name of the subdivision which shall specify that it is both a Re-Plat of portions 
the Willow Creek subdivision and also that it is a Planned Unit Development. 

b. The complete legal description of the land contained within the subdivision. 

c. The names and mailing addresses of all persons, firms and corporations holding 
interests in said lands. All corporations shall furnish a copy of the last annual 
corporate report as filed with the secretary of state. 

d. The location of the boundary lines of the proposed subdivision in relation to section, 
quarter section and quarter-quarter section lines and any adjacent corporate 
boundaries of the city which are part of the legal description of the property. 

e. The scale of the plat and an indication of the north direction. 

f. The boundaries and approximate dimensions of all blocks and lots within the 
proposed subdivision, together with numbers proposed to be assigned each block and 
lot. 

g. The location, names and width of all streets, roads and easements within and adjacent 
to the subdivision. 

h. The developer's signed statement of provision for irrigation/domestic water supplies, 
sewage disposal and stormwater management. Such shall include information 
showing that the owner is responsible for all utilities located interior to the 
development, even if located within right of ways, and warranting that the required 
water, sewer and stormwater improvements and facilities will be maintained by the 
owner. 



35. A title report issued within the preceding 30-days confirming that title of the land in the proposed 
subdivision is vested in the name of the owner whose signature appears on the plat certificate shall 
be provided. 

36. A plat note shall be placed on the face of the final plat which requires that all lots within the 
plat be maintained in common ownership for the life of the development (no new lots shall 
be individually sold). A plat note shall also be placed on the plat which reserves the .6 acre 
park lot (Lot 8) for use of the tenants of the development, to be maintained in an improved 
condition by the property owner for the life of the development. 

37. The Applicant may bond for required improvements in order to complete and record the plat 
or as necessary to obtain financing. The City shall work with the Applicant to determine a 
reasonable amount and time for provision of surety for each required improvement, which 
may be bonded together or separately. Bonding requirements shall be as provided within City 
Code. 

 



April 20, 2020

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission
June 17, 2020 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission
June 17, 2020 

Willow Creek Mobile Home Community 
PUD & Improvement Plan

Prepared by:
Seneca Capital Partners & Frame & Smetana Engineering  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 1



Key Points – Willow Creek PUD  

1. Overall Objectives for Willow Creek 
2. Issues

a. Zoning & Regulatory Issues    
b. Management Issues  

3. Summary of Proposed Solutions 
4. Team – Capable Manufacturer Housing Community Owner 

a. Local Team 
b. Seneca Capital Partners
c. Other Seneca Manufactured Home Communities 

5. Zoning Reconciliation, 
6. Flood Plain Clarifications  
7. Improved Management &
8. Physical Improvements 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 2



Shared Objectives of City & Applicant for Willow Creek MHC 

1. Continuing Use as Mobile Home Community   

2. Improve Appearance of the Community 

3. Provide Work Force Housing 

a. Clean, 

b. Safe, 

c. Affordable, 

d. Unsubsidized & 

e. Attractive 

4. Affordable Housing Stock for +/- 550 Rathdrum Residents 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 3



Issues 

Zoning & Regulatory Issues  

1. Lot Line Encroachments & Setbacks  

2. Flood Plain Restriction on Placing New Homes 

Management Issues 

1. Park is Run Down 

2. Too Many Vehicles & Parking issue 

3. Junk in the Yards 

4. Home Appearance

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 4



Four Parts to Our Proposed Solution: 

1. Solve the Zoning & Flood Plain Issues  

2. Physical Improvements in the Community -

3. Improve Community Management –

a. Focus – Clutter, Parking & Home Appearance  

4. Work with Residents - Improve Home Appearance
a. Paint Program  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 5



Seneca’s Local CDA Team

Pre-Acquisition

Frame & Smetana Engineers  

• Gordon Dobler PE – Planning & Engineering 

• Jack Smetana – Surveying and Platting 

• Russ Honsaker’s – Surveying 

Operations After Purchase  

CRITICAL TEAM MEMBER - CDA Based 3rd Party Property Manager
• Regional Manager 
• On Site Manager – May live in the Community 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 6



Seneca Capital Partners –

• Over 100 Collective Years of Commercial Real Estate 
Experience 

• Over 20 Collective Years in Manufactured Housing

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 7

Hunter Foreman
Lead Analyst

Roles:
Financial Analysis
Acquisition Due 
Diligence

Larry Nelson CPA 
Asset Management

Roles: 
Operations & Cap X 
Due Diligence, 
Financial 
Management    

Paul Luber
Partner and 
COO

Roles: Acquisitions, 
Financing & 
Operations  

Rhett Trees 
Founder and CEO

Roles:
Investor Relations, 
Acquisitions & 
Fund 
Administration



TX
2 Communities

241 Sites  

FL 
1 Community

157 Sites  

NC  
5 Communities

380 Sites  

WI 
5 Communities

773 Sites  

ID 
2 Communities

199 Sites  

Seneca HQ  
Denver, CO 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 8

Seneca Mobile Home Communities June 2020
15 Communities – 1,761 Sites



Wisconsin Portfolio – 1 hr. West of MilwaukeeWisconsin Portfolio – 1 hr. West of Milwaukee
Location Fond du Lac and Sheboygan, WI

One hour north & west of Milwaukee, WI 
Local Economy  Manufacturing & Diary/Milk/Cheese  
Acquisition Date August 2019
Portfolio Five Communities 19 – 299 sites  
Home-Sites 774
Park Owned Homes 84

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 9



Wisconsin PortfolioWisconsin Portfolio

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 10



Wisconsin PortfolioWisconsin Portfolio

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 11



High Point MHC - McKinney, TX (DFW Metro)High Point MHC - McKinney, TX (DFW Metro)
Location McKinney, TX (Collin County North Dallas suburbs)

Great schools, high growth area  
Local Economy Part of DFW metro Plex – Diversified & Growing 
Acquisition Date November 2017
Sites = 174 Size 
Business Plan, New Common Area Amenities  and improve cub appeal 

basketball court, entertainment pavilion, BBQ smoker, soccer 
fields, monument sign, community center remodel, Installed 8 
new off-street parking pads

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 12



High Point MHC – Recreation Area  High Point MHC – Recreation Area  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 13



High Point MHC – Play Structure High Point MHC – Play Structure 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 14



High Point MHC  High Point MHC  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 15

Community Room 



Lazy Lane MHC Spring TX (Houston) Lazy Lane MHC Spring TX (Houston) 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 16

Location Spring/ Conroe, TX 
North Houston suburb
Great schools, high growth area  

Local Economy Part of Houston metro Plex – Diversified & Growing 
Acquisition Date November 2017
Sites = 67 Lots  
Business Plan, New Roads, New Common Area Amenities  and 

entertainment pavilion, BBQ smoker, soccer fields, 
monument signs 



Tranquil Acres MHC –
I-40 Corridor Central FL Between Orlando & Tampa 
Tranquil Acres MHC –
I-40 Corridor Central FL Between Orlando & Tampa 

Location = Auburndale, FL (Lakeland suburb – between Tampa and Orlando)
Acquisition Date = March 2019
Lots 157 Sites 

Value-Added Opportunity
• Added Concrete paved Driveways 
• Common Area Amenities  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 17



Tranquil Acres MHCTranquil Acres MHC

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 18



SCIRE Fund IISCIRE Fund II

Acquisition Pipeline

Assets = Willow Creek MHC and Hayden Pines MHC
Location = Rathdrum (Coeur d’Alene, ID Spokane, WA MSA) 
Acquisition Date = September 2020
Number of Home-Sites 212 (182 WC & 30 PH) 
Occupancy at Acquisition = 94%

Asset = The Timbers MHC Acquired Monday 6/15/20
Location = Raleigh/Durham, NC (Raleigh MSA)
Acquisition Date = May 2020
Number of Home-Sites = 90

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 19



Willow Creek – Existing Condition - 1979 Infrastructure Plan – 185 Lots  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 20



Willow Creek Plat – 140 Lots  - August 3,  1981 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 21



Over Lay of Actual Conditions (1979 Plan -185 Lots) vs. 
1981 Plat – 140 Lots 1981 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 22



Home Site Exhibit – 182 Home Site Using Super Block Concept   

Home 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 23



Willow Creek Floodway & Flood Plain    

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 24



Willow Creek Flood Plain & Floodway 

1. Based on Interpretation of FEMA regulations, the City 
historically was prohibiting replacement of Homes in Floodway

2. Careful Engineering Research of: 

a. Existing Conditions at Rathdrum Creek

i. Existing Earth Dike 

ii. Base Flood Elevation relative to Ground Level in Park 

1. Flood waters at BFE would be 1’-2’ deep.  

b. “FEMA Publication P-85 Protecting Manufactured Homes 
from Floods & Other Hazards 11-2019” (“P-85”). 

i. Show that home can be set in Flood way or Flood 
plain if set 36” above the Based Flood Elevation (BFE)

ii. Property Tie Downs, foundations &  waterproof utilities

3. Maureen O’Shea, NFIP State Coordinator, Idaho Dept. of 
Water Resources, confirmed our findings.      

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 25



Willow Creek - Improved Community Management – a Public Benefit 

1. The City & stakeholders concerns 

a. Parking - Manner & number vehicles, 
i. Campers, Trailers and Boats  
ii. Manner of parking – snow clearing 

b. Debris in yards & accessory structures 
c. Home appearance and 
d. Unpermitted structures. 

2. Hire Competent Local Management & Strong Oversight by 
Applicant.

3. On-Site Manager. Hopefully to live on-site.  

4. Enforce Rules. Only as good as the willingness of the 
Community Manager to monitor and enforce them for the 
benefit of all residents.  

5. The Model Rules & Regulations. 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 26



Willow Creek Improvement Plan – Open Recreation Area  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 27

Open Space 
Recreation 

Area



Willow Creek Improvement Plan – Open Recreation Area  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 28



Willow Creek Improvement Plan – Parking Schematic 

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 29



Willow Creek - Other Physical Improvements - Public Benefit  

1. Six-foot white vinyl privacy fence on CDA St., N of Park Loop Dr. 

2. Plant trees in newly created yards area between driveways on CDA  St. 
South of Park Dr.   

3. Remove carport on S Corner of CDA & Park Loop

4. Install improved directional signage within the Community for improved 
way finding & life safety. 

5. Install new entry signage. 

6. Mailboxes will be upgraded or replaced.  

7. “Paint Program”  - work with residents to paint and otherwise improve 
the exterior of the tenant owned homes.  

a. Free or low-cost paint for use by the residents. 

8. Demolish the concrete “eye sore” Imhoff Tank at vacant area in 
connection with 7 new homes sites.  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 30



Thank You!Thank You!

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 31

We look forward to making a positive impact 
at Willow Creek and in the City of Rathdrum



Reference Slide – Lot Count  Reference Slide – Lot Count  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 32



Reference Slide – Police Statistics  Reference Slide – Police Statistics  

Rathdrum Planning & Zoning Commission 33

Police Calls Normalized for Number of Households  

• 2.2 calls per household/year at Willow Creek
• 1.8 call per household/year at Neighborhood to he south 

Neighborhood # of Police Calls # of Households
Calls per 

Household/ year 

Willow Creek 355 165 2.2

Neighborhood S. of 
Willow Creek

109 62 1.8

Willow Creek vs. Neighborhood to the South 
 Police Calls in 2019 ‐ Normalized for Number of Households  


	01a Council Agenda 07-08-20
	01b July Calendar
	05a Council Minutes  06-24-20
	05b Special Minutes 06-30-20
	05c July Bills
	05d Westwood Pines FINAL DA
	10a Memo KJ-CC - DEA Supplement - 6.29.2020
	10b Willow Creek Preliminary Replat & Planned Unit Development
	10b Willow Creek Prelim Re-Plat.PUD 2020-03 Staff_CC
	10ba Ex.A Policy Memo Willow Creek 2019
	10bb Ex.A Willow Creek Policy Notice 3-10-08
	10bc Ex.B 1 Willow Creek PUD Narrative 5 15 20[46065]
	10bd Ex.B 2 Wilow Creek Appendix_A
	10be Ex.B 3 Willow Creek PUD APPENDIX B Code Analysis 5 15 20[46059]
	10bf Ex.B 4 Willow Creek Proposed Preliminary Re-plat
	10bg Ex.B 5 Willow Creek Appendix_C_R&Rs_05.14.20
	10bh Ex.B 6 Willow Creek Open Space Diagram 6 2 20
	10bi Ex.C  ITD
	10bj Ex.C Agency notification
	10bk Ex.C Attachment to Agency notice
	10bl Ex.C Bnsf-wrong address
	10bm Ex.C BPA
	10bn Ex.C IDWR
	10bo Ex.C KC EMS
	10bp Ex.C Memo KJ-CS - 6.15.2020
	10bq Ex.C Northern Lakes
	10br Ex.C PHD comments
	10bs Ex.C RPD Comment Attachment
	10bt Ex.C RPD Comment
	10bu Ex.C Steve Mcnulty
	10bv Ex.D Willow Creek Comment. Bennett
	10bw Ex.E Willow Creek Final Plat Exhibit 6-12
	10bx Ex.F Comp Plan Analysis
	10by Ex.G Conditions of Approval Amended by PZ
	10bz Ex.H Seneca Rathdrum P&Z 6 17 20 FINAL




